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CORPORATE 
PROFILE

Soilbuild	Construction	Group	Ltd.	(the	“Group”	or	“Soilbuild”)	is	a	leading	builder	with	a	long	
and	successful	track	record	of	constructing	a	sterling	award-winning	portfolio	of	residential	
and	business	space	properties.	Since	its	inception	in	1976,	Soilbuild	charts	over	40	years	0f	
success	in	offering	a	full	spectrum	of	real	estate	services	which	includes	Design	and	Build,	
Construction,	Turnkey	Construction,	Project	Management	Consultancy,	Procurement	and	
Mechanical	&	Electrical	Installation.

Soil-Build	(Pte.)	Ltd.,	a	subsidiary	of	the	Group,	is	A1-graded	under	CW01	(General	Building)	
and	A2-graded	under	CW02	(Civil	engineering)	by	the	Singapore’s	Building	and	Construction	
Authority	(BCA).	The	A1	grading	under	CW01	allows	us	to	tender	for	public	sector	projects	in	
Singapore	of	unlimited	contract	value,	while	the	A2	grading	under	CW02	allows	us	to	tender	
for	public	sector	civil	engineering	projects	valued	up	to	S$90.0	million.	Our	track	record	in	
public	sector	projects	puts	us	in	good	stead	as	we	compete	in	future	tenders	by	the	local	
public	agencies	including	the	Housing	and	Development	Board	(“HDB”)	and	Land	Transport	
Authority	(“LTA”).	Projects	in	which	Soil-Build	(Pte.)	Ltd.,	acted	as	the	main	contractor,	have	
achieved	building	excellence	in	winning	several	architectural	and	environment	awards	over	
the	years.

Since	 2012,	 the	 Group	 expanded	 our	 construction	 business	 into	 Myanmar.	 As	 of	 to-
date,	we	have	secured	three	main	construction	projects	and	several	contracts	to	provide	
construction,	professional	consultancy	and	project	management	services	for	developments	
in	Myanmar.	The	Group	intends	to	further	strengthen	our	presence	in	Myanmar.

As	at	31	December	2016,	our	order	books	based	on	letters	of	 intent,	secured	contracts	
and	variation	orders	amounted	to	approximately	S$385.7	million.	Our	on-going	projects	
in	Singapore	 include,	amongst	others,	five	public	housing	projects	with	HDB	in	Ang	Mo	
Kio,	 Yishun,	 Sembawang,	 Bukit	 Batok	 and	 Tampines/Paya	 Lebar	 Way,	 two	 civil	 works	
projects	with	LTA,	a	multiple-user	general	 industrial	development	at	 Jalan	Lam	Huat,	a	
commercial	development	at	Jalan	Besar,	a	residential	flat	development	at	Balmoral	Road	
and	more.		In	Myanmar,	our	on-going	projects	include	a	residential	development	project,	
a	condominium/serviced	apartment	development	project	and	an	addition	&	alternation	
works	of	a	shopping	centre.
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On	behalf	of	 the	Board	of	Directors,	 I	present	 the	annual	
report	of	Soilbuild	Construction	Group	Ltd.	(the	“Group”)	for	
the	financial	year	ended	31	December	2016	(“FY2016”).

During	 FY2016,	 the	 domestic	 economy	 continued	 to	 face	
challenges	from	the	slowdown	in	the	economic	growth.	The	
global	 market	 uncertainties	 adversely	 affected	 all	 sectors	
of	 Singapore’s	 economy,	 including	 the	 real	 estate	 and	
construction	industries.	In	view	of	this,	the	overall	construction	
demand	from	the	domestic	private	sector	remained	subdued,	
and	the	trend	is	likely	to	continue	into	2017.

Riding with confidence through the challenging local 
market conditions

Driven	 by	 market	 conditions,	 competition	 in	 tenders	 for	
local	construction	projects	had	further	intensified	in	FY2016,	
arising	 from	 fewer	 construction	 contracts	 in	 the	 private	
sector	available	 for	 tender.	Consequently,	 the	Group	only	
secured	two	new	construction	contracts	in	Singapore	with	
an	aggregate	value	of	S$13.1	million	 in	FY2016	compared	
to	nine	construction	contracts	with	an	aggregate	value	of	
S$193.9	 million	 in	 the	 previous	 year.	 Responding	 to	 the	
less	favourable	market	conditions,	the	Group	continued	its	

strategy	of	sharpening	its	competitive	edge	in	order	to	stay	
relevant.	Going	 into	2017,	 the	Group	 is	pleased	 to	 report	
that,	as	at	the	date	of	this	statement,	it	has	secured	two	new	
construction	contracts	in	Singapore	with	an	aggregate	value	
of	S$176.5	million.	The	Group	is	confident	that	with	its	track	
record	and	experience	gained	over	40	years	of	operation,	
it	 will	 be	 able	 to	 ride	 through	 the	 difficult	 operating	
environment.

Expanding our footprint in the Myanmar market

In	 contrast	 to	 the	 business	 environment	 in	 Singapore,	
the	 prospects	 in	 Myanmar	 was	 encouraging	 throughout	
FY2016.	During	the	year	under	review,	the	Group	secured	
its	second	and	third	construction	contracts	in	Myanmar	–	a	
design	and	build	project	for	addition	and	alteration	works	of	
a	shopping	centre	in	downtown	Yangon,	and	a	construction	
contract	 to	build	a	26	½	storey	 serviced	apartment	and	a	
26	 ½	 storey	 condominium	 in	 Yangon	 Central	 Area.	 The	
award	of	these	projects	contributed	approximately	S$150.3	
million	to	the	Group’s	order	book.	More	importantly,	it	also	
demonstrated	the	Group’s	progress	in	achieving	its	vision	to	
be	the	preferred	builder	in	Myanmar.	
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Including	 the	 two	 new	 contracts	 secured	 in	 FY2016,	 as	
at	 31	 December	 2016,	 the	 Group	 has	 three	 on-going	
construction	projects	 in	Myanmar.	The	Group's	Myanmar	
entity	 contributed	 approximately	 S$11.4	million	 (FY2015:	
S$1.3	million)	and	S$2.1	million	(FY2015:	S$0.4	million)	of	
revenue	and	profit	before	tax,	respectively,	to	the	Group.	
The	 Group	 expects	 that	 these	 projects	 in	 Myanmar	 will	
continue	 to	 contribute	 more	 revenue	 and	 profit	 to	 the	
Group	going	forward.

The	Group	remains	cautiously	optimistic	about	its	continued	
growth	 in	 the	business	environment	 in	Myanmar	and	will	
strive	 to	secure	more	contracts	going	 forward.	As	part	of	
the	Group’s	 expansion	 strategy	 in	Myanmar,	 the	Group’s	
professional	 team	 in	Myanmar	has	grown	 in	 FY2016	 to	a	
total	 staff	strength	of	more	 than	60	compared	with	33	 in	
the	previous	year.

As	 at	 31	 December	 2016,	 the	 Group’s	 order	 book	 stood	
at	 S$385.7	 million	 (FY2015:	 S$639.0	 million),	 of	 which	
47%	 comprised	 local	 projects	 while	 the	 remaining	 53%	
comprised	projects	in	Myanmar.

Continuing our strategies to enhance productivity and 
efficiency

The	 Group	 continues	 to	 embraces	 new	 technology	 and	
recognises	 that	 its	 adoption	 and	 implementation	 in	 the	
organisation	is	key	to	ensure	we	will	continue	to	strengthen	
our	position	in	the	construction	industry.

In	 September	 2015,	 the	 Group	 was	 awarded	 the	 tender	
for	 the	 development	 of	 an	 Integrated	 Construction	 and	
Precast	Hub	(“ICPH”).	As	at	the	date	of	this	statement,	the	
construction	of	the	ICPH	is	progressing	on	schedule	and	the	
Group	expects	the	overall	development	to	be	substantially	
completed	in	2017.	

Other	 than	 the	 ICPH,	 the	 Group	 also	 intends	 to	 embark	
on	 other	 new	 construction	 methodologies,	 and	 adopt	
new	 technologies	 that	 include	 Pre-fabricated	 Pre-
finished	 Volumetric	 Construction.	 The	 aim	 is	 to	 improve	
construction	productivity	and	be	more	efficient	in	our	work	
and	processes,	while	enhancing	the	quality	of	our	buildings	
and	 optimising	 safety	 measures	 at	 construction	 sites.	 
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The	 Group	 believes	 that	 equipping	 itself	 with	 the	 new	
technologies	 will	 enable	 us	 to	 further	 distinguish	 our	
capabilities	from	our	competitors	in	the	industry.

Review of financial performance

The	Group	recorded	higher	revenue	during	FY2016	resulting	
from	 the	 progressive	 revenue	 contributions	 from	 its	 on-
going	 local	 building	 projects,	 as	 well	 as	 its	 construction	
contracts	 in	 Myanmar	 and	 the	 local	 civil	 engineering	
construction	contracts.

The	 Group’s	 lower	 gross	 profits	 for	 FY2016	 reflected	 the	
revenue	recognition	from	its	HDB	projects,	which	generally	
tend	to	have	relatively	lower	profit	margins,	and	the	increase	in	
construction	cost	for	certain	projects	following	the	extended	
construction	 period	 of	 these	 projects.	 Correspondingly,	
the	Group’s	net	profit	for	FY2016	is	lower	at	S$11.9	million	
compared	to	S$18.6	million	reported	in	FY2015.

The	 Group’s	 balance	 sheet	 remained	 healthy	 with	 zero	
gearing	as	at	31	December	2016.

Appreciation

In	 view	 of	 the	 Group’s	 financial	 performance	 for	 the	
year,	 and	 to	 reward	our	 shareholders,	we	are	pleased	 to	
recommend	a	final	dividend	of	S$0.0050	per	share	and	a	
special	dividend	of	S$0.0075	per	share	for	FY2016.	The	final	
and	special	dividend,	once	approved	by	the	shareholders	in	
the	forthcoming	annual	general	meeting	of	the	Company,	
together	 with	 the	 interim	 dividend	 declared	 and	 paid	 to	
shareholders,	would	make	up	a	total	dividend	of	S$0.0175	
per	share	for	FY2016	(FY2015	:	S$0.020	per	share).

On	 behalf	 of	 the	 Board,	 I	 would	 like	 to	 express	 our	
sincere	 appreciation	 to	 our	 management	 and	 staff	 for	
their	 perseverance,	 and	 our	 partners,	 customers	 and	
shareholders	for	their	continuous	support	and	belief	in	us.

Lim Chap Huat 
Executive Chairman

29	March	2017
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BREAKDOWN OF REVENUE
FY2016 FY2015 FY2014 FY2013 FY2012

S$’000 % S$’000 % S$’000 % S$’000 % S$’000 %

Business	space	projects 146,656 36.7 184,869 56.3 	190,608	 			66.8	 	219,663	 			66.3	 	147,098	 			68.9	
Residential	projects 252,378 63.2 142,163 43.3 			94,052	 				33.0	 	110,683	 				33.4	 			65,800	 				30.8	
Project	management 613 0.1 1,238 0.4         589 						0.2	         986 						0.3	         603 						0.3	
Total 399,647 100.0 328,270 100.0 	285,249	 		100.0	 	331,332	 		100.0	 	213,501	 		100.0	

Internal	projects1 12,852 3.2 15,682 4.8 	109,120	 				38.3	 	186,234	 				56.2	 	124,680	 				58.4	
External	projects2 386,795 96.8 312,407 95.2 	176,129	 				61.7	 	145,098	 				43.8	 			88,821	 				41.6	
Total 399,647 100.0 328,270 100.0 285,249 100.0 331,332 100.0 213,501 100.0

FINANCIAL RESULTS
FY2016

S$’000
FY2015

S$’000
FY2014

S$’000
FY2013

S$’000
FY2012

S$’000

Revenue 399,647 328,270 		285,249	 		331,332	 		213,501	
Gross	profit 22,331 30,619 				31,175	 				31,562	 				28,074	
Profit	before	income	tax 14,410 21,180 				23,778	 				27,500	 				25,683	
Profit	after	income	tax 11,876 18,562 				20,887	 				24,037	 				22,027	
Profit	attributable	to	shareholders 11,941 18,616 				20,885	 				24,036	 				22,027	

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FY2016

S$’000
FY2015

S$’000
FY2014

S$’000
FY2013

S$’000
FY2012

S$’000

Property,	plant	and	equipment 23,474 17,217 				13,664	 				11,377	 							4,724	
Land	lease	prepayment 25,535 26,423 - - -

Cash	and	cash	equivalents 32,830 6,721 				51,247	 				75,956	 							5,267	
Current assets 138,432 144,974 		124,892	 		134,598	 				56,358	
Total	assets 215,322 212,747 		168,251	 		161,534	 				71,460	
Current	liabilities 115,837 121,289 				83,320	 				87,545	 				55,112	
Total	liabilities 117,231 121,874 				83,782	 				88,398	 				55,960	
Working	capital 22,595 23,685 				41,572	 				47,053	 							1,246	
Equity	attributable	to	owers	of	the	Company 98,091 90,873 				84,469	 				73,136	 				15,500	

RATIOS
FY2016

S$’000
FY2015

S$’000
FY2014

S$’000
FY2013

S$’000
FY2012

S$’000

Current	ratio	(times) 1.20 1.20 									1.50	 									1.54	 									1.02	
Return	on	equity	attributable	to	owners	of	the	
Company	(%)3

12.57 21.17 							26.51	 							54.24	 							86.48	

Return	on	assets	(%)3 5.55 9.74 							12.67	 							20.63	 							25.30	
Basic	earnings	per	share	(“EPS”)	(cents)4 1.78 2.79 									3.15	 									4.02	 									4.44	
Net	asset	value	per	share	(“NAV”)	(cents)4 14.65 13.64 							12.72	 							11.01	 									3.13	

 

Notes:
1		 Internal	projects	refer	to	projects	awarded	by	(i)	our	related	companies,	Soilbuild	Group	Holdings	Ltd.,	its	subsidiaries	and	associated	companies,	excluding	our	Company,	our	

subsidiaries	and	joint	ventures,	and/or	(ii)	our	Company’s	controlling	shareholder	and	his	Associates
2	 External	projects	refer	to	projects	awarded	by	third	parties
3	 In	calculating	return	on	equity	attributable	to	owners	of	the	Company	and	return	on	assets,	the	average	basis	has	been	used
4.	 In	Basic	EPS	and	NAV	in	cents	are	calculated	based	on	the	net	profit	and	net	asset	value	attributable	to	owners	of	the	Company	divided	by	the	weighted	average	number	of	

ordinary	shares	in	issue	during	the	financial	year.

FIVE-YEAR 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Soilbuild	Construction	Group	Ltd

Five-Year	Financial	H
ighlights
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REVENUE (S$’000)
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O
perating	And	Financial	Review

March 2016

Business space

Tellus	Marine
Erection	of	4-storey	factory	extension	at	Senoko	Way

S$1.7m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE	(IN	MILLION)1

June	2016

Residential

26	Wilkinson	Road
Construction	works	in	relation	to	erection	of	detached	

dwelling	houses	at	Wilkinson	Road

S$3.2m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE	(IN	MILLION)1

November	2016

Business space

Reebonz
Design	and	build	of	an	8-storey	single-user	E-commerce	hub	

at	Tampines	North

S$17.1m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE	(IN	MILLION)1

May	2016

Business space

Pepperl	+	Fuchs
Main	building	works	for	a	Global	Distribution	Center 

at	Pioneer	Turn

S$39.6m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE	(IN	MILLION)1

November	2016

Business space

Tampines	Plot	8
Erection	of	a	single	user	4-storey	general	warehouse	complex	

at	Tampines	Industrial	Drive

S$7.7m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE	(IN	MILLION)1

November	2016

Residential

Hospice
Development	of	hospice	at	Thomson	Road

S$50.3m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE	(IN	MILLION)1

Note:
1		 Completion	date	refers	to	TOP	date	or	date	of	completion	certificate,	where	applicable.

2		 Contract	value	refers	to	the	contract	value	of	building	works,	architectural	works	and/or	project	management	services,	as	applicable,	and	includes	any	variation	orders	confirmed	

or	expected	as	at	31	December	2016

OPERATING REVIEW

(A) Construction contracts

(i) Completed	projects

During	 the	 financial	 year	 under	 review,	 the	 Group	
completed	the	following	construction	projects:
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(II)	 On-going	Projects

During	 the	 financial	 year	 under	 review,	 the	 Group	
secured	 a	 total	 of	 four	 new	 construction	 projects,	
comprising	 one	 business	 space	 design	 and	 build	
project,	 namely	 St	 John	 Project,	 three	 residential	
construction	 projects,	 namely	 28	 Wilkinson	 Road	
Project,	40	Wilkinson	Road	Project	and	68	Residences	
Project.	 With	 these	 new	 construction	 projects,	 the	
Group	has	16	on-going	construction	projects	as	at	31	
December	2016.	The	Group	expects	that	these	projects	
will	be	progressively	completed	and	recognised	over	
the	next	two	years.	

Note:
1		 Contract	 value	 refers	 to	 the	 contract	 value	 of	 building	 works,	 architectural	 works	 and/or	 project	 management	 services,	 as	 applicable,	 
	 and	includes	any	variation	orders	confirmed	or	expected	as	at	31	December	2016.

Jalan	Lam	Huat	(Main	Contract)
Erection	of	a	7-storey	multiple-user	general	industrial 
development	at	Jalan	Lam	Huat

S$162.2m

PROJECT:

Business Space

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

2017
COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE1:

2017

Business Space

KH	Roberts
Erection	of	a	single-user	food	industrial	development 
at	Buroh	Lane

S$14.6m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE1:

2017

Business Space

ARC	380
Erection	of	a	16-storey	commercial	development	at	Jalan	Besar	/	
Lavender	Street

S$61.8m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE1:

2017

Business Space

St	John
Design	and	build	of	addition	and	alteration	works	of	 
a	shopping	centre	in	downtown	Yangon

S$12.9m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE1:

2017

Civil	works

Lift	shafts
Construction	of	lift	shafts	to	existing	pedestrian	
overhead	bridges

S$19.9m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE1:

2017

Civil	Works

Covered	Linkways
Construction	of	covered	linkways	to	Downtown	Line	3	
and	Tuas	West	Extension	Stations

S$20.3m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE1:
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2017

Residential

Bukit	Batok	HDB
Design	and	build	for	an	upgrading	project	at	Bukit	Batok	
Street	31	and	at	Bukit	Batok	West	Avenue	8

S$21.9m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE1:

2017

Residential

Ang	Mo	Kio	HDB
Erection	of	a	public	housing	development	at	Ang	Mo	Kio	
Avenue	3/Street	51

S$100.0m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE1:

2017

Residential

Sembawang	HDB
Erection	of	a	public	housing	development	at	Sembawang

S$127.8m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE1:

2018

Residential

Rosehill	Residences	(Main	Construction) 
Erection	of	24-storey	residential	development	at	Yangon,	Myanmar

S$68.5m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE:

CONTRACT	VALUE1:

2017

Residential

40	Wilkinson	Road
Construction	works	in	relation	to	erection	of	detached	
dwelling	houses	at	Wilkinson	Road

S$5.4m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE1:

2017

Residential

Goodwood	Grand
Erection	of	a	residential	flat	development	at	Balmoral	Road

S$39.6m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE1:

2017

Residential

Yishun	HDB
Erection	of	a	public	housing	development	at	Yishun	
Avenue	4	/	Yishun	Ring	Road

S$166.8m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE1:

2017

Residential

G19D	HDB
Design	and	build	of	upgrading	projects	at	Paya	Lebar	
Way	/	Aljunied	Road	and	Tampines	Street	42

S$24.8m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE1:

2017

Residential

28	Wilkinson	Road
Construction	works	in	relation	to	erection	of	detached	
dwelling	houses	at	Wilkinson	Road

S$7.7m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE1:

2018

Residential

68	Residence	Project
Construction	and	completion	of	a	26½	storey	serviced	apartment	
and	a	26½	storey	condominium	in	Yangon	Central	Area

S$137.4m

PROJECT:

TYPE	OF	PROJECT:

COMPLETION	DATE

CONTRACT	VALUE1:
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Review of Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive 
Income 

Revenue
In	 FY2016,	 the	Group’s	 revenue	 increased	 by	 21.7%	 from	
S$328.3	million	in	FY2015	to	S$399.6	million.	The	increase	
was	attributable	to	revenue	contribution	from	construction	
projects	in	FY2016	including	Jalan	Lam	Huat	(Main	Contract)	
Project,	 Yishun	 HDB	 Project,	 Sembawang	 HDB	 Project,	
Ang	 Mo	 Kio	 HDB	 Project,	 Goodwood	 Grand	 Project	 and	
Hospice	Project.	Of	the	total	revenue	recognised	in	FY2016,	
the	revenue	recognised	from	the	Group's	Myanmar	entity	
amounted	 to	 approximately	 S$11.4	 million	 as	 compared	
with	S$1.3	million	in	FY2015,	which	represent	an	increase	of	
approximately	776.9%.

Gross	Profit	and	Gross	Profit	Margin
Despite	 recording	 21.7%	 increase	 in	 the	Group’s	 revenue	
in	 FY2016,	 the	 Group’s	 gross	 profit	 	 decreased	 by	 27.1%	
from	S$30.6	million	in	FY2015	to	S$22.3	million	in	FY2016,	
due	mainly	 to	 revenue	 recognised	 for	 HDB	 projects	 that	
generated	relatively	lower	profit	margin	as	well	as	increase	
in	construction	cost	for	certain	projects.

The	 Group’s	 gross	 profit	 margin	 was	 5.6%	 in	 FY2016	 as	
compared	with	9.3%	FY2015.	

Other Income

The	Group’s	 other	 income	 increased	 from	S$1.5	million	 in	
FY2015	to	S$2.4	million	in	FY2016,	due	mainly	to	the	increase	
in	 service	 income,	 rental	 income	as	well	 as	 the	 receipts	of	
grants	under	the	Productivity	Innovative	Project	scheme.

(B) Project management service contracts

Leveraging	 on	 the	 Group’s	 experience	 as	 a	 construction	 company	 and	
expertise	in	the	various	complementary	construction	activities,	the	Group	
also	secured	several	construction	project	management	service	contract	in	
the	local	market	as	well	as	in	Myanmar.

As	at	31	December	2016,	the	Group	has	three	on-going	project	management	
service	 contracts	 in	 Singapore	 and	 six	 project	 management	 service	
contracts	in	Myanmar,	with	total	order	book	amounting	to	approximately	
S$0.5	million.
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Other	Gains	/	(Losses),	net
The	 Group’s	 other	 gains	 of	 S$0.3	million	 in	 FY2016	 were	
attributable	 to	 foreign	 exchange	 gains	 of	 S$0.6	 million,	
which	were	partially	offset	by	loss	on	disposal	of	property,	
plant	 and	 equipment	 during	 the	 year	 under	 review.	 The	
other	 losses	 of	 S$0.2	million	 in	 FY2015	 were	 due	mainly	
to	 loss	on	disposal	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	and	
foreign	exchange	losses.	

Administrative	Expenses
In	FY2016,	the	Group’s	administrative	expenses	decreased	
by	S$1.1	million	or	11.7%	from	S$9.7	million	 in	FY2015	 to	
S$8.6	million.	The	decrease	in	administrative	expenses	was	
mainly	attributable	to	the	decrease	in	various	administrative	
expenses,	 including	 directors’	 remuneration	 and	 other	
payroll	expenses.	

Other	Operating	Expenses
The	Group’s	other	operating	expenses	 increased	by	S$0.8	
million	 from	 S$1.1	 million	 in	 FY2015	 to	 S$1.9	 million	 in	
FY2016.	 The	 increase	 in	 other	 operating	 expenses	 was	
mainly	 due	 to	 higher	 depreciation	 charges	 for	 motor	
vehicles	as	well	as	amortisation	charges	on	the	land	lease	
prepayment	in	FY2016.

Share	of	Profit	of	Joint	Ventures
The	 Group’s	 share	 of	 profits	 of	 joint	 ventures	 decreased	
by	 approximately	 S$31,000	 from	 S$58,000	 in	 FY2015	 to	
S$27,000	 in	 FY2016.	 The	decrease	was	mainly	 due	 to	 the	
completion	 of	 the	 projects	 undertaken	 by	 the	 respective	
joint	venture	in	prior	years.

Profit	Before	Income	Tax
The	 Group’s	 profit	 before	 income	 tax	 decreased	 by	 S$6.8	
million	 from	 S$21.2	million	 in	 FY2015	 to	 S$14.4	million	 in	
FY2016.	The	decrease	in	the	Group’s	profit	before	income	tax	
was	attributable	to	the	decrease	in	the	Group’s	gross	profit	
of	S$8.3	million	and	the	increase	in	other	operating	expenses	
of	S$0.8	million,	which	were	partially	offset	by	the	increase	
other	gains	and	decrease	in	administrative	expenses.

Income	Tax	Expenses
The	 Group’s	 income	 tax	 expenses	 decreased	 from	 S$2.6	
million	in	FY2015	to	S$2.5	million	in	FY2016.

After	 adjusting	 for	 the	 Group’s	 share	 of	 profits	 of	 joint	
ventures,	 which	 was	 reported	 net	 of	 tax,	 the	 Group’s	
effective	 tax	 rate	 for	 FY2016	and	FY2015	were	17.6%	and	
12.4%	 respectively.	 	 The	 effective	 tax	 rate	 in	 FY2015	was	
lower	than	the	Singapore	statutory	tax	rate	of	17%	mainly	
due	to	the	utilisation	of	tax	benefits	available	to	the	Group	
and	 FY2016	 was	 higher	 than	 the	 Singapore	 statutory	 tax	
rate	 of	 17.0%	mainly	 due	 to	 higher	 statutory	 tax	 rate	 on	
profit	reported	from	the	Myanmar	projects.

Net	Profit
The	 Group’s	 net	 profit	 decreased	 from	 S$18.6	 million	 in	
FY2015	to	S$11.9	million	in	FY2016	as	a	result	of	the	decrease	
in	profit	before	income	tax	of	S$6.8	million,	partially	offset	
by	the	lower	income	tax	expenses	in	FY2016.

The	 Group’s	 net	 profit	 margin	 was	 3.0%	 in	 FY2016	 as	
compared	with	5.7%	in	FY2015.
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Review of the Group’s Balance Sheet

Current	Assets
The	 Group’s	 current	 assets	 decreased	 from	 S$145.0	
million	as	at	31	December	2015	to	S$138.4	million	as	at	31	
December	 2016.	 The	 decrease	was	mainly	 attributable	 to	
the	decrease	in	trade	and	other	receivable	by	S$33.5	million	
which	was	due	to	lower	construction	contracts	and	progress	
billings	receivable	for	construction	projects.

The	decrease	in	current	assets	discussed	above	was	partly	
offset	by	the	increase	in	cash	and	cash	equivalents	by	S$26.1	
million	in	FY2016.	The	increase	in	cash	and	cash	equivalents	
in	FY2016	was	due	to	cash	inflow	from	operating	activities.	

Non-current	Assets
The	 Group’s	 non-current	 assets	 increased	 from	 S$67.8	
million	as	at	31	December	2015	to	S$76.9	million	as	at	31	
December	2016.	The	increase	was	mainly	attributable	to:	

(I)	 increase	 in	 property,	 plant	 and	 equipment	 by	 S$6.3	
million	 which	 was	 attributable	 to	 the	 additions	 of	
property,	plant	and	equipment;	and	

(II)	 Increase	 in	non-current	 trade	and	other	 receivables	
by	 S$3.8	 million.	 The	 non-current	 trade	 and	 other	
receivables	comprise	mainly	of	retention	receivables	
from	construction	projects.

Current	Liabilities
The	 Group’s	 current	 liabilities	 decreased	 from	 S$121.3	
million	as	at	31	December	2015	to	S$115.8	million	as	at	31	
December	2016.	The	decrease	was	attributable	mainly	to	the	
decrease	in	trade	and	other	payables	of	S$4.8	million,	which	
is	 resulted	 from	 the	 decrease	 in	 sub-contractors	 claims	
and	the	decrease	in	payables	for	purchases	of	construction	
materials	during	the	year	under	review.

Non-current	Liabilities
The	Group’s	non-current	liabilities	increased	to	S$1.4	million	
mainly	due	to	the	increase	in	deferred	income	tax	liabilities	
as	at	31	December	2016.

 

	Total	equity
The	 Group’s	 total	 equity	 increased	 by	 S$7.2	 million	 from	
S$90.9	million	as	at	31	December	2015	to	S$98.1	million	as	
at	31	December	2016.	The	increase	was	attributable	to	the	
net	profit	after	tax	of	the	Group	for	FY2016	which	amounted	
to	 S$11.9	 million	 as	 well	 as	 the	 net	 proceeds	 from	 the	
preferential	offering	of	warrants	amounting	to	S$8.2	million,	
partially	offset	by	the	dividends	declared	and	paid	in	FY2016	
which	amounted	to	approximately	S$13.4	million.



Annual Report 2016

15

CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY REVIEW

Corporate	Social	Responsibility	Review

The	 Group	 places	 emphasis	 on	 the	 importance	 of	
achieving	 a	 good	 equilibrium	 between	 value	 creation	 for	
all	 stakeholders,	 including	 our	 community,	 shareholders,	
customers	 and	 employees,	 and	 enhancing	 our	 role	 as	 a	
leading	and	responsible	corporate	citizen.	

With	 an	 extensive	 network	 of	 all	 stakeholders,	 we	 are	
committed,	amongst	others,	to:	

(I)	 create	 stability	 in	 our	 business	 and	 the	 social	
environment;	

(II)	 achieve	continual	growth	in	our	financial	performance	
for	our	shareholders;	

(III)	 deliver	quality	buildings	to	our	customers;	and	
(IV)	 provide	a	friendly	and	encouraging	work	environment	

for	our	employees.

ENVIRONMENTAL AWARENESS

The	 Group	 believes	 in	 building	 a	 greener	 future	 and	
creating	a	friendlier	environment	for	all	our	stakeholders	by	
minimising	 the	usage	of	 natural	 resources	 and	 the	waste	
in	our	operations.	We	have	implemented	an	environmental	
management	system	to	identify	and	manage	environmental	
aspects.	 These	 aspects	 are	managed	by	 setting	 reduction	
targets	 and	 implementing	 programmes	 to	 achieve	 these	
targets.	

The	 Group’s	 effort	 to	 preserve	 our	 environment	 includes	
the	following:	

(I)	 monitoring	and	analysing	energy	and	water	usage	in	
construction	sites	 for	all	projects	under	construction	
for	any	abnormality,	for	immediate	rectification;	

(II)	 implementing	 various	 measures	 to	 reduce	 energy	
consumption,	 including	 the	 consideration	 of	 energy	
efficient	equipment	with	the	Energy	Star1	logo	when	
purchasing	new	office	equipment;	

(III)	 using	 rainwater	 or	 recycled	 water	 to	 wash	 vehicles	
before	 they	 leave	 the	 construction	 sites,	 and	 using	
recycled	 water	 for	 washing	 before	 casting.	 Water-
saving	devices	like	thimbles	in	taps	are	also	installed	
wherever	 possible	 in	 our	 project	 sites	 and	 our	
corporate	office;	and

(IV)	 embarking	 on	 a	 paper	 usage	 reduction	 drive	 by	
providing	 our	 staff	 with	 tips	 on	 paper	 conservation	
such	as	reducing	printing	unless	necessary,	and	reusing	
and	recycling	used	paper	by	printing	on	both	sides	of	
the	page.	Construction	waste	is	separated	and	placed	
into	the	appropriate	recycling	bins	at	our	project	sites.	

The	 Group	 supports	 the	 authorities’	 efforts	 in	 promoting	
sustainability,	 environmental	 protection	 and	 considerate	
practices.	Some	of	the	key	features	adopted	include:	

(I)	 using	 recycled	 aggregates	 for	 non-structural	
applications	like	drains,	road	kerbs	and	wheel	stoppers;	

(II)	 using	 recycled	 aggregates	 and	 green	 cement	 for	
structural	components,	where	possible;	

(III)	 using	 energy	 efficient	 lightings	 and	 green	 label	
photocopiers	in	the	site	offices;	and	

(IV)	 providing	 covered	walkways	 around	 the	 sites	where	
there	is	heavy	usage	by	the	general	public

As	 an	 endorsement	 of	 our	 environmental	 management	
system,	 the	 Group	 has	 obtained	 the	 ISO	 14001:2004	
certification	for	the	scope	of	building	and	civil	engineering	
construction	services.

During	the	year	under	review,	the	Group	has	been	awarded	
“BCA	Construction	Productivity	Award	2016”	by	the	Building	
and	Construction	Authority,	as	a	recognition	of	the	Group’s	
efforts	 towards	 designs,	 construction	 methods,	 process	
and	technologies	adopted	that	have	significant	productivity	
impact	in	the	construction	projects.	The	Group	has	also	been	
awarded	 “BCA	Green	 and	Gracious	 Builder	 Award”	 for	 the	
Group’s	 efforts	 in	 promoting	 environment	 protection	 and	
gracious	practices	during	the	construction	phase	of	projects.	

In	2016,	the	Group	has	participated	in	the	“Singapore	World	
Water	 Day”,	 an	 event	 that	 highlights	 the	 importance	 of	
water	sustainability	in	our	society.

BCA	Construction	Productivity	Awards	and	
BCA	Green	&	Gracious	Builder	Award	Certificate
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 RESPONSIBILITY TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

The	 Group	 values	 corporate	 transparency	 and	 strives	
to	 uphold	 high	 standards	 of	 corporate	 governance	 and	
disclosure,	in	accordance	with	the	principles	and	guidelines	
of	the	Code	of	Corporate	Governance.	

We	 are	 committed	 to	 delivering	 accurate	 and	 timely	
disclosure	 of	 material	 corporate	 developments,	 quarterly	
and	full	year	results,	which	are	released	on	SGXNET	as	well	
as	 on	 our	 corporate	 website:	 www.soilbuildconstruction.
com.	Our	 corporate	website	 provides	 information	 on	 the	
Group’s	background,	corporate	and	management	structure,	
our	services	as	well	as	our	financial	information.	

We	meet	up	with	our	shareholders	and	potential	investors	
at	 various	 seminars	 and	 briefings	 as	 we	 believe	 that	 it	
is	 important	 to	 provide	 open	 and	 direct	 communication	
channels	 with	 the	 shareholder	 and	 investor	 communities	
in	 order	 to	 facilitate	 better	 understanding	 of	 the	Group’s	
business	model	and	growth	strategy,	and	to	address	their	
concerns,	if	any.	

COMMITMENT TO OUR CUSTOMERS

The	 Group	 takes	 pride	 and	 places	 great	 emphasis	 on	
the	 quality	 aspects	 of	 all	 projects.	 We	 strongly	 believe	
in	 delivering	 high	 standards	 of	 quality	 and	 service	 levels	
to	 our	 customers	which	 are	 key	 to	maintaining	 customer	
satisfaction.	

The	Group	has	established	the	following	quality	objectives:	

(I)	 to	 comply	and	continually	 improve	 the	effectiveness	
of	the	quality	management	system	which	satisfies	all	
requirements	of	ISO	9001:2008	standard	requirements,	
or	any	relevant	statutory	and	regulatory,	customer	or	
other	obligations	to	which	the	organisation	subscribes;	

(II)	 to	provide	total	customer	satisfaction	and	encourage	
repeated	 patronage	 by	 consistently	 exceeding	
customers’	expectations	with	reliable	quality	works;	

(III)	 to	 deliver	 projects	 on	 time	 and	 operate	 within	 an	
allocated	budget;	and	

(IV)	 to	 constantly	 provide	 training	 to	 all	 staff,	 and	
upgrading	 of	 work	 processes	 to	 improve	 our	 work	
quality	 procedure	 so	 as	 to	 improve	 efficiency	 and	
reduce	wastage	of	resources.	

As	an	endorsement	of	our	quality	management	system,	the	
Group	has	obtained	the	ISO	9001:2008	certification	for	the	
scope	of	building	and	civil	engineering	construction	services.	
The	 attainment	 of	 the	 above	 certification	 will	 strengthen	

our	 customers’	 confidence	 in	 the	 quality	 of	 our	 products	
and	services	and	differentiate	us	from	our	competitors	who	
have	not	attained	such	certification.

 

 

ISO	9001:2008	Certificate

PEOPLE DEVELOPMENT AND CARE FOR OUR EMPLOYEES

We	 recognise	 that	 our	 employees	 are	 invaluable	 to	 the	
success	 of	 our	 Group.	We	 are	 committed	 to	 cultivating	 a	
balanced	work-life	 environment	 for	 all	 our	 employees,	 as	
well	as	to	developing	the	new	workforce	in	our	industry.

Training
We	offer	training	to	assist	employees	in	achieving	a	higher	
level	 of	 competency	 and	 safety	 standards,	 in	 order	 to	
further	enhance	 the	quality	of	our	products	and	services.	
Such	 training	 also	 aims	 to	 build	 a	 well-motivated,	 stable	
workforce	with	a	high	level	of	team	work.	

A	key	objective	of	training	is	to	develop	competencies	which	
would	 enable	 our	 employees	 to	 perform	 their	 current	 or	
future	 jobs	 successfully.	 All	 our	 training	 programmes	 are	
geared	towards	the	following	objectives:	

(I)	 strengthening	the	job	skills/	knowledge	of	employees;	
(II)	 improving	operational	efficiency	and	productivity;	and	
(III)	 developing	 and	 maximising	 the	 potential	 of	

employees,	 to	 the	mutual	 benefit	 of	 the	Group	 and	
their	own	respective	selves.

People Development

The	 Group	 is	 committed	 to	 develop	 human	 capital	 and	
industry	 talent	 in	 the	 built	 environment	 through	 various	
programmes.	
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The	following	are	the	initiatives	that	the	Group	has	taken	to	
promote	people	development:	

(I)	 continued	 to	 take	 part	 in	 the	 BCA-Industry	 Built	
Environment	Undergraduate	Scholarship	programme	
to	offer	opportunities	 to	potential	 awardees	 to	 take	
up	a	career	in	the	built	environment;	

(II)	 worked	with	BCA	and	overseas	academic	institutions	
to	offer	internship	opportunities	to	students;	

(III)	 initiated	 a	 staff	 mentorship	 programme	 with	 the	
objectives	of	attracting,	retaining	and	motivating	talents.

During	the	year	under	review,	the	Group	signed	the	Pledge	
for	a	Better	Built	Environment	Workplace	as	a	commitment	
to	the	adoption	of	good	human	resource	practice	based	on	
various	key	human	resource	principles.

Employees’ Welfare

The	Group	holds	several	yearly	corporate	events,	including	
an	annual	Chinese	New	Year	 lunch,	a	 fruit	party,	workers	
appreciation	 event	 and	 Labour	 Day	 celebration,	 for	 our	
staff	as	part	of	our	efforts	to	promote	a	balanced	work-life	
environment.	In	addition,	the	Group	also	held/participated	
in	 certain	 events	 with	 our	 staff	 during	 the	 year	 under	
review,	which	includes

(I)	 “Soilbuild	Walk	for	Rice”,	a	company-wide	charity	walk	
campaign	 that	 donate	 1	 pack	 of	 rice	 (5kg)	 for	 every	
1km	 walk	 clocked	 by	 each	 employee	 of	 the	 Group,	
where	 a	 total	 of	 4,320kg	 rice	 were	 donated	 by	 the	
Group	to	the	needy;	and

(II)	 “Future	of	Us	Exhibition”	which	is	an	event	that	offers	
our	employees	a	glimpse	into	the	possibilities	of	how	
we	can	live,	work,	play,	care	and	learn	in	the	future.

In	 2016,	 the	 Group	 launched	 ‘Soilbuild	 Bursary”	 scheme	
which	 offer	 financial	 assistance	 to	 lower-income	 staff	 by	
partially	funding	their	children’s	education.

Health and Safety

Health	and	safety	at	our	workplace	is	of	utmost	importance	
to	the	Group.	We	have	regular	and	continuous	audits	on	our	
workplace	health	and	safety	practices	to	ensure	compliance	
on-site	at	all	times.	

The	Group	is	also	actively	promoting	work	safety	and	good	
environmental	 awareness	 by	 continuously	 upgrading	
the	 skills	 of	 our	 employees	 in	 order	 to	 increase	 their	
knowledge	and	efficiency	in	operational	safety	supervision	
and	management.	Planned	events	like	“Safety	Time	Out”	–	
an	event	where	company	take	time	off	from	their	routine	
operations	to	take	stock	and	review	particular	work	activity	
or	 system	 to	 ensure	 safe	 operations,	 were	 conducted	 at	
construction	sites.	

The	 Group	 has	 implemented	 appropriate	 procedures	 and	
policies	to	prevent	and	mitigate	the	spread	of	communicable	
diseases	 for	 the	corporate	office	and	all	construction	sites.	
Furthermore,	we	are	committed	 to	managing	occupational	
health	and	safety	issues,	and	preference	is	given	to	engaging	
OHSAS	 18000-certified	 or	 bizSAFE-certified	 vendors/	
contractors	 for	 our	 projects.	 The	 Group	 has	 also	 been	
certified	by	the	Workspace	Safety	and	Health	Council	to	have	
fulfilled	 the	 requirements	 to	 attain	 bizSAFE	 Level	 Star	 and	
obtained	the	OHSAS	18001:2007	certification	for	 the	scope	
of	building	and	civil	engineering	construction	services.	

OHSAS	18001	:	2007	Certificate

On	30	June	2016,	the	Group	was	announced	to	be	the	Silver	
Award	Winner	of	the	ROSPA	HEALTH	&	SAFETY	AWARDS	for	
various	projects	undertaken	by	its	subsidiaries.

Our	 employees	 are	 encouraged	 to	 report	 any	 potentially	
improper	 and/or	 unethical	 conduct	 that	 they	 become	
aware	of	at	their	workplace	or	in	connection	with	their	work.	 
We	believe	that	we	have	an	environment	that	enables	our	
employees	 to	 raise	both	 legitimate	and	genuine	concerns	
internally.
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MR LIM CHAP HUAT
Executive	Chairman

Age	63,	Mr	 Lim	Chap	Huat	 is	 the	Company’s	
Executive	 Chairman.	 Mr	 Lim	 was	 appointed	
to	 the	 Board	 on	 14	 January	 2013	 and	 was	
last	 re-elected	 as	 Director	 on	 25	 April	 2014.	
He	 charts	 the	 Group’s	 strategic	 direction,	
business	 planning	 and	 development	 as	 well	
as	 succession	 planning.	 Leveraging	 on	 his	
extensive	 industry	 experience,	 Mr	 Lim	 also	
oversees	the	Group’s	operations	and	provides	
guidance	 in	project	management	and	 tender	
submission	for	the	Group’s	various	projects.

Mr	Lim	is	a	co-founder	of	Soilbuild	Group	with	
over	40	years	of	experience	in	the	construction	
and	 property	 development	 business.	 Apart	
from	 his	 role	 in	 strategic	 planning	 and	
development	 of	 corporate	 policies,	 Mr	 Lim	
has	 been	 involved	 in	 all	 key	 aspects	 of	 the	
operations	and	businesses	of	Soilbuild	Group	
to	ensure	quality	at	key	planning,	design	and	
implementation	levels,	including	the	oversight	
of	the	tendering	and	management	processes	
of	construction	and	development	projects.	He	
has	also	established	a	network	of	relationships	
with	 developers,	 customers,	 consultants	 and	
architects	within	the	real	estate	industry.

Prior experience
•		 Co-founder	 of	 Soilbuild	 Group	 with	 over 
40	years	of	experience	 in	 the	construction	
and	property	development	business

Currently,	Mr	Lim	also	serves	as	the	Executive	
Chairman	of	Soilbuild	Group	Holdings	Ltd.	as	
well	as	a	director	on	the	board	of	all	subsidiaries	
of	Soilbuild	Group.	He	is	also	a	non-executive	
director	of	SB	REIT	Management	Pte.	Ltd.,	the	
manager	 of	 Soilbuild	 Business	 Space	 REIT	
which	is	listed	on	the	SGX-ST.

Mr	 Lim	 holds	 a	 Technician	 Diploma	 (Civil	
Engineering)	 from	 the	 Singapore	 Polytechnic.	
He	is	active	in	community	service	and	currently	
serves	 as	 the	 Chairman	 of	 the	 Chong	 Pang	
Community	 Club	 Management	 Committee.	
In	 recognition	 of	 his	 contributions	 to	 the	
community,	Mr	 Lim	was	 conferred	 the	Pingat	
Bakti	Masyarakat	(Public	Service	Medal)	and	the	
Bintang	Bakti	Masyarakat	 (Public	Service	Star)	
by	the	President	of	the	Republic	of	Singapore	in	
2003	and	2009	respectively.

Pursuant	 to	 article	 94	 of	 the	 Company’s	
Constitution,	Mr	Lim	will	retire	by	rotation	and	
is	 eligible	 for	 re-election	 in	 the	 forthcoming	
Forth	Annual	General	Meeting	of	the	Company.

MR HO TOON BAH
Executive	Director

Age	 54,	 Mr	 Ho	 Toon	 Bah	 is	 the	 Company’s	
Executive	Director,	and	was	appointed	to	the	
Board	 on	 14	 January	 2013	 and	 was	 last	 re-
elected	 as	 Director	 on	 24	 April	 2015.	Mr	 Ho	
supports	 the	 strategic	growth	of	 the	Group’s	
operations	 and	 drives	 the	 development	 and	
execution	of	its	business	strategies,	including	
securing	 construction	 contracts	 through	
structuring	 contracts	 and/or	 partnerships	
with	potential	 customers.	His	 responsibilities	
also	 include	 day-to-day	 operations	 of	 the	
Company,	 capital	 management,	 human	
resources	and	investor	relations	of	the	Group.
 

Prior experience
•		 2009	to	2013,	Executive	Director	of	Soilbuild	
Group	Holdings	Ltd.	

•		 2008	to	2009,	Head	of	Consumer	Banking	at	
Standard	Chartered	Bank	in	Malaysia	

•		 2006	to	2008,	Head	of	Consumer	Banking	at	
Standard	Chartered	Bank	in	Indonesia

•		 2004	 to	 2005,	 General	 Manager	 of	 SME	
Banking	at	Standard	Chartered	Bank	

•		 2002	to	2003,	General	Manager	for	Wealth	
Management	at	Standard	Chartered	Bank	

•		 2001	 to	 2002,	 General	 Manager	 for	
Mortgages	and	Auto	at	Standard	Chartered	
Bank	

•		 2000	 to	 2001,	 Senior	 Manager	 for	 Branch	
Banking	 and	 Direct	 Sales	 at	 Standard	
Chartered	Bank

Mr	Ho	 is	 also	 a	non-executive	director	of	 SB	
REIT	 Management	 Pte.	 Ltd.,	 the	 manager	
of	 Soilbuild	Business	 Space	REIT,	 and	 a	 non-
executive	 director	 of	 IREIT	 Global	 Group	 Pte	
Ltd,	 the	 manager	 of	 IREIT	 Global.	 Soilbuild	
Business	 Space	 REIT	 and	 IREIT	 Global	 are	
listed	on	the	SGX-ST.	

Mr	 Ho	 holds	 a	 Bachelor	 of	 Business	
Administration	 from	 the	 National	 University	
of	 Singapore.	 He	 is	 also	 a	 Chartered	 
Financial	Analyst.

MS LIM CHENG HWA
Non-Executive	Director

Age	44,	Ms	Lim	Cheng	Hwa	is	the	Company’s	
Non-Executive	Director.	Ms	Lim	was	appointed	
to	the	Board	on	8	May	2013	and	was	last	re-
elected	as	Director	on	26	April	2016.	Ms	Lim	
has	over	20	years	of	experience,	having	served	
in	 finance	 departments	 of	 various	 listed	
companies.	

Prior experience
•		 Since	2011,	Executive	Director	of	 	Soilbuild	 
Group	Holdings	Ltd.	and	also	serves	as	the	
director	of	 certain	 subsidiaries	of	Soilbuild	
Group	Holdings	Ltd.	

•		 Since	 2010,	 Director	 of	 Capital	 and	
Investment	 Management	 of	 Soilbuild	
Group	Holdings	Ltd.,	handling	all	financial,	
accounting,	 tax	 and	 treasury	 matters,	
business	 and	 investment	 development,	
corporate	 communications,	 human	
resources	and	administration	of	the	Group	

•		 2007	 to	 2009,	 Group	 Financial	 Controller 
	at	Soilbuild	Group	Holdings	Ltd.	

•		 1999	 to	 2007,	 Financial	 Controller	 at	MTQ	
Corporation	Limited	

•		 1995	 to	 1999,	 Accountant	 and	 Senior	
Accountant	 at	 L&M	 Group	 Investments	
Limited	

Ms	Lim	is	also	a	non-executive	director	of	SB	
REIT	 Management	 Pte.	 Ltd.,	 the	 manager	 of	
Soilbuild	 Business	 Space	 REIT	which	 is	 listed	
on	the	SGX-ST.

Ms	 Lim	 holds	 a	 Bachelor	 of	 Accountancy	
(Honours)	 from	 the	 Nanyang	 Technological	
University.
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MR POON HON THANG
Lead	Independent	Director

Age	68,	Mr	Poon	Hon	Thang	is	the	Company’s	
Lead	 Independent	 Director.	 Mr	 Poon	 was	
appointed	to	the	Board	on	8	May	2013	and	was	
last	re-elected	as	Director	on	24	April	2015.	Mr	
Poon	is	the	Chairman	of	the	Audit	Committee	
of	the	Company,	and	a	member	of	Nominating	
and	Remuneration	Committee	of	the	Company.	
Mr	Poon	has	over	30	years	of	experience	in	the	
financial	industry.	

Prior experience
•		 1988	 to	2006,	worked	at	UOB	Bank	where	
he	was	responsible	 for	consumer	banking,	
corporate	 banking,	 commercial	 banking,	
corporate	 finance	 and	 international	
banking.	In	2006,	Mr	Poon	retired	as	Senior	
Executive	Vice	President	from	UOB	Bank

•		 1979	to	1988,	worked	at	Citibank	N.A.	where	
he	 was	 responsible	 for	 credit,	 marketing,	
remedial	 management	 and	 structured	
finance	

Mr	Poon	is	an	independent	director	of	Enviro-
Hub	 Holdings	 Ltd.	 and	 UOL	 Group	 Limited	
which	are	listed	on	SGX-ST.

Mr	 Poon	 holds	 a	 Bachelor	 of	 Commerce	
(Honours)	 from	 the	 Nanyang	 University	 
of	Singapore.	

MR TAN JEE MING
Independent	Director

Age	 58,	 Mr	 Tan	 Jee	 Ming	 is	 the	 Company’s	
Independent	Director.	Mr	Tan	was	appointed	
to	the	Board	on	8	May	2013	and	was	last	re-
elected	as	Director	on	26	April	2016.	Mr	Tan	
is	the	Chairman	of	the	Nominating	Committee	
of	the	Company,	and	a	member	of	Audit	and	
Remuneration	 Committee	 of	 the	 Company.	
Mr	Tan	has	over	30	years	of	experience	in	the	
legal	practice.	

Prior experience
•	 Since	2010,	Director	at	Straits	Law	Practice	
LLC,	practicing	general	civil	and	criminal	law	

•	 1996	to	2010,	set	up	own	sole	proprietorship	
law	firm,	Tan	Jee	Ming	&	Partners	

•	 1989	to	1995,	practice	at	various	 law	firms	
and	 then	 became	 a	 Partner	 at	 Derrick	
Jeffrey	&	Ravi	

•	 1986,	commenced	legal	practice	at	RCH	Lim	
& Co

Mr	Tan	is	an	independent	director	of	PS	Group	
Holdings	Ltd.	which	is	listed	on	the	SGX-ST.	

Mr	 Tan	 holds	 a	 Bachelor	 of	 Laws	 (Honours)	
from	the	National	University	of	Singapore	and	
is	a	member	of	the	Singapore	Academy	of	Law,	
the	 Law	 Society	 of	 Singapore	 Compensation	
Fund	Committee,	the	Law	Society	of	Singapore	
Inquiry	 Panel	 and	 the	 Singapore	 Institute	 
of	Directors.

MR TEO CHEE SENG
Independent	Director

Age	 63,	Mr	 Teo	Chee	 Seng	 is	 the	Company’s	
Independent	Director.	Mr	Teo	was	appointed	
to	the	Board	on	8	May	2013	and	was	last	re-
elected	as	Director	on	25	April	2014.	Mr	Teo	is	
the	Chairman	of	the	Remuneration	Committee	
of	the	Company,	and	a	member	of	Audit	and	
Nominating	 Committee	 of	 the	 Company.	
He	 has	 been	 a	 lawyer	 in	 private	 practice	 in	
Singapore	for	over	30	years.	He	is	a	member	
of	the	Law	Society	of	Singapore	Inquiry	Panel.	

Prior experience 
•		 Since	2006,	Managing	Director	of	Able	Law	
Practice	LLC	

•		 1986	to	2006,	practicing	at	Chee	&	Teo	

•		 1981	to	1986,	practicing	at	Chee	Hee	&	Teo

Mr	Teo	is	an	independent	director	of	Envictus	
International	Holdings	 Limited	 and	 Lasseters	 
International	 Holdings	 Limited	 which	 are	 
listed	on	the	SGX-ST.	He	is	also	an	independent	 
director	of	United	Overseas	Australia	Limited,	
which	is	listed	on	both	the	Australian	Securities	
Exchange	and	the	SGX-ST.	

Mr	 Teo	 holds	 a	 Bachelor	 of	 Laws	 (Honours)	
from	the	University	of	Singapore.

Pursuant	 to	 article	 94	 of	 the	 Company’s	
Constitution,	Mr	Teo	will	retire	by	rotation	and	is	
eligible	for	re-election	in	the	forthcoming	Fourth	
Annual	 General	 Meeting	 of	 the	 Company.	
Upon	 re-election,	 Mr	 Teo	 will	 remain	 as	 the	
Chairman	 of	 the	 Remuneration	 Committee	
of	 the	Company,	and	a	member	of	Audit	and	
Nominating	Committee	of	the	Company.
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MR LOH CHYE AIK
Director,	Operations

Mr	 Loh	 Chye	 Aik	 is	 our	 Director	 of	
Operations	 and	 joined	 the	 Group	 in	 2012.	
His	 responsibilities	 include	 strategising	
operations,	 managing	 resources,	 monitoring	
of	 costs,	 quality	 assurance	 and	 control,	
environmental	 sustainability,	 as	 well	 as	
safety	 matters.	 Mr	 Loh	 has	 over	 30	 years	
of	 experience	 in	 the	 area	 of	 construction	
management	in	the	construction	industry.	

Prior experience
•		 2011	 to	 2012,	 Project	 Director	 in	 charge	
of	 construction	 management	 at	 ACP	
Construction	Pte	Ltd	

•		 2008	 to	 2011,	 General	 Manager	 at	 Ryobi	
Kiso	Holdings	Ltd.	

•		 2007	 to	 2008,	 Business	 Development	
Manager	at	Lai	Yew	Seng	Pte	Ltd	

•		 1997	 to	 2007,	 Senior	 Project	 Manager	 at	
Greatearth	Construction	Pte	Ltd	

•		 1995	to	1996,	General	Manager	at	Kamikaya	
Sdn	Bhd	

•		 1984	to	1995,	Operations	Manager	at	Khian	
Heng	Construction	Pte	Ltd	

Mr	Loh	Chye	Aik	graduated	from	the	National	
University	 of	 Singapore	 with	 a	 Bachelor	 of	
Engineering	 (Civil)	 (First	 Class	 Honours)	 in	
1984	 and	 obtained	 his	 Master	 of	 Business	
Administration	from	the	National	University	of	
Singapore	in	1997.

MR CHOOI YUE CHIONG
Director,	Design	And	Planning

Mr	Chooi	 Yue	Chiong	 is	 our	Director,	Design	
and	Planning.	He	is	involved	in	the	construction	
design,	 specifications	 and	 drawings	 in	 our	
construction	 projects	 to	 derive	 cost	 savings	
through	 improvements	 in	 construction	
methods,	 sequence	 and/	 or	 material	 use.	
Mr	 Chooi	 has	 nearly	 30	 years	 of	 related	
experience	 in	 the	 construction	 industry,	
having	 worked	 in	 various	 engineering	 and	
construction	companies.	

Prior experience
•		 2011	 to	 2013,	 worked	 for	 SB	 Procurement	
Pte.	 Ltd.,	 responsible	 for	 driving	 the	
Group’s	 procurement	 planning	 and	
spearheading	improvements	in	construction	
methodologies	

•		 2007	 to	 2011,	 General	 Manager	 at	 Soil-
Build	 (Pte.)	Ltd.,	responsible	for	day-to-day	
operations	of	the	projects	and	construction	
management,	 and	 oversees	 the	 quantity	
survey	department	and	the	deployment	of	
key	staff	and	project	training	

•		 2006	to	2007,	Project	Manager	at	Sunhuan	
Construction	Pte	Ltd	

•		 2003	 to	 2005,	 Senior	 Project	 Manager	 at	
Sanchoon	Builder	Pte	Ltd	

•		 2001	 to	2003,	Senior	Project	Manager	at	a	
subsidiary	of	Soilbuild	Group	Holdings	Ltd.,	
heading	 the	 projects	 and	 quantity	 survey	
departments	

•		 1992	to	2000,	Project	Manager	at	Soil-Build	
(Pte.)	Ltd.

Mr	Chooi	holds	a	Diploma	in	Civil	Engineering	
from	Singapore	Polytechnic	and	a	Bachelor	of	
Applied	 Science	 (Construction	 Management)	
with	 Honours	 (First	 Class)	 from	 the	 Royal	
Melbourne	Institute	of	Technology.

MR HO CHAN TECK PATRICK
Director,	Projects

Mr	 Ho	 Chan	 Teck	 Patrick	 is	 our	 Director,	
Projects	 and	 his	 role	 includes	 the	 overall	
management	 of	 projects	 to	 ensure	 that	 the	
relevant	project	is	on	time,	within	budget	and	
adhere	to	the	safety	and	health	standard	with	
acceptable	quality,	planning	and	implementing	
of	 project	 work	 schedules	 and	 formulation	
of	 construction	 budgets.	 Mr	 Ho	 has	 nearly	
30	 years	 of	 experience	 in	 the	 construction	
industry.	

Prior experience
•		 2004	 to	 2012,	 Deputy	 General	 Manager	
at	 Soilbuild	 Group	 Holdings	 Ltd.	 and	
Head	 of	 Soilbuild	 Group	 Holdings	 Ltd.’s	
development	management	division	

•		 1997	to	2004,	Manager/Project	Manager	at	
Soil-Build	(Pte.)	Ltd.	

•		 Prior	to	1997,	worked	in	various	roles	such	
as	 a	 Site	 Foreman	 and	 a	 Site	 Manager	 in	
various construction companies 

Mr	 Ho	 obtained	 a	 Technician	 Diploma	 in	
Building	 from	Singapore	Polytechnic	 in	1984. 
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MR NG KWOON HONG
Director,	Projects

Mr	Ng	 Kwoon	Hong	 is	 our	Director,	 Projects	
and	his	key	focus	is	on	the	Group’s	government	
related	 projects.	 Leveraging	 on	 his	 previous	
work	experiences,	he	is	currently	responsible	
for	 managing	 budgets	 and	 ensuring	 the	
quality,	 safety	 and	 timely	 delivery	 of	 each	
project.	 Mr	 Ng	 brings	 to	 the	 Group	 over	 30	
years	of	 industry	expertise,	having	worked	in	
both	public	and	private	sectors.	

Prior experience
•		 2009	to	2013,	General	Manager	and	Project	
Director	 at	 Soilbuild	 Group	 Holdings	 Ltd.	
and	 Soil-Build	 (Pte.)	 Ltd.	 respectively,	
overseeing	projects	to	ensure	quality	builds	
and	timely	delivery	

•		 2007	 to	2009,	Deputy	General	Manager	 at	
SB	 Development	 Pte.	 Ltd,	 responsible	 for	
reviewing	 and	 monitoring	 with	 architect	
and	structural	engineer	for	PP,	WP	and	BP	
submission	

•		 1986	to	2007,	held	various	positions	at	Soil-
Build	 (Pte.)	 Ltd.	which	 includes	 Senior	 Site	
Foreman,	Senior	Site	Manager	and	Assistant	
Project	Manager	

•		 1982	to	1986,	Site	Foreman	at	Eka	General	
Construction

MS WINNY MONICA OEI
Director,	Contract	&	Procurement

Ms	 Winny	 Oei	 is	 our	 Director,	 Contract	 &	
Procurement,	 who	 leads	 and	 monitors	
the	 Group’s	 purchasing	 and	 procurement	
procedures	 in	daily	operation	since	2012.	Her	
other	 responsibilities	 include	 developing	 and	
implementing	 procedures	 for	 internal	 work	
processes,	establishing	 long-term	cooperation	
with	external	vendors,	maintaining	relationship	
with	clients	and	securing	new	tenders	or	 jobs	
for	the	Group.	Having	joined	the	Group	in	2000,	
she	brings	with	her	nearly	30	years	of	related	
experience	in	the	industry.	

Prior experience
•		 2000	 to	 Present,	 since	 joining	 the	 Group,	
she	 held	 a	 few	 roles	 in	 QS	 and	 Contract	
department	and	Procurement	department	

•		 1992	 to	 1994,	 Senior	 Cost	 Estimator	 at	 PT	
Nusa	 Raya	 Cipta,	 Indonesia	 (previously	
under	Astra	Group	Indonesia)	

•		 1990	to	1992,	Assistant	Project	Manager	at	
PT	Pan	Karib,	Indonesia	

Ms	 Winny	 Oei	 holds	 a	 Bachelor	 of	 Science	
in	 Civil	 Engineering	 (with	 honours)	 from	 the	
University	 of	 HKBP	 Nommensen	 Indonesia	
and	is	registered	as	member	of	Auditor	under	
Ministry	of	Manpower,	Indonesia.

MR LIM THIAM LAY
Director,	Mechanical	&	Electrical

Mr	Lim	Thiam	Lay	is	our	Director,	M&E	and	is	
responsible	 for	 the	 day-to-day	 operation	 of	
all	 mechanical	 and	 electrical	 (“M&E”)	 related	
works	which	include	tender	bidding	and	design	
development.	 Having	 worked	 in	 various	 civil	
engineering	 and	 construction	 companies,	
Mr	 Lim	brings	 to	 the	Group	over	 20	 years	 of	
related	experience	in	the	construction	industry.
 
Prior experience
•		 2001	 to	 2014,	 since	 joining	 the	 Group,	
he	 held	 various	 positions	 in	 the	 M&E	
department,	 including	 M&E	 Coordinator,	
Assistant	 M&E	 Manager,	 M&E	 Manager,	
Deputy	Head	and	Senior	M&E	Manager,	and	
Head	of	M&E	at	Soil-Build	(Pte.)	Ltd.	

•		 Prior	to	2001,	he	had	6	years	of	experience	
as	 M&E	 Coordinator/	 Assistant	 Manager	
liaising	 and	 coordinating	 all	 M&E,	
structural	and	architectural	works	for	Toda	
Corporation,	Tekken	Corporation	and	Arab	
Malaysian	Toda	Sdn	Bhd	

Mr	 Lim	 obtained	 a	 Diploma	 in	 Electrical	 &	
Electronics	 Engineering	 from	 the	 Institute	
Teknologi	Jaya,	Malaysia	in	1992.
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MR DING YEN SHEE DANIEL
Director,	Civil	Engineering

Mr	 Ding	 Yen	 Shee	 Daniel	 is	 our	 Director	 of	
Civil	Engineering.	Mr	Ding	joined	the	Group	in	
2015.	His	 responsibilities	are	 to	 lead	 the	civil	
engineering	division	of	the	Group,	strategising	
the	 day-to-day	 operation	within	 the	 division,	
leading	the	tender	bidding	and	overseeing	the	
execution	of	the	civil	works	projects.	

Prior experience: 
•		 2012	 to	 2015,	 Director,	 Business	
Development	 &	 Investment	 at	 Soilbuild	
Group	Holdings	Ltd.	

•		 2008	to	2012,	Senior	Investment	Manager	at	
Mapletree	Logistics	Trust	Management	Ltd	

•		 2007	 to	 2008,	 Associate	 at	 IFS	 Capital	
Limited	

•		 2005	to	2007,	Deputy	Business	Development	
Manager	(Regional)	at	VSL	Singapore	Pte	Ltd	

•		 2004	 to	 2005,	 Business	 Development	
Manager	(based	in	China)	at	OKP	Investment	
(China)	Pte	Ltd	

•		 2002	 to	 2004,	 Marketing	 Engineer	 at	 VSL	
Singapore	Pte	Ltd	

Mr	 Ding	 graduated	 from	 the	 Nanyang	
Technological	 University	 of	 Singapore	 with	 a	
Bachelor	of	Civil	&	Environmental	Engineering	
(Honours)	 in	 2002.	 He	 obtained	 his	 Master	
of	 Business	 Administration	 (specialized	 in	
Strategy)	 from	 the	 Nanyang	 Technological	
University	of	Singapore	in	2010.

MR WONG YOON THIM
Director,	Corporate	Services

Mr	 Wong	 Yoon	 Thim	 is	 our	 Director,	
Corporate	 Services	 and	 is	 responsible	 for	
the	 execution	 and	 day-to-day	 operation	 of	
various	functions	of	the	Group	which	include	
finance	and	accounting,	human	resource	and	
administration,	as	well	as	corporate	affairs.	

Prior experience: 
•		 2010	to	2013,	Group	Chief	Financial	Officer	
and	 Company	 secretary	 of	 OTO	 Holdings	
Limited	

•		 2006	to	2010,	Chief	Financial	Officer	of	CMZ	
Holdings	Ltd	

•		 2005	 to	 2006,	 Finance	 Manager	 of	
Muhibbah	 Petrochemical	 Engineering	
Sdn.	Bhd.	

Mr	 Wong	 is	 a	 member	 of	 the	 Institute	 of	
Singapore	Chartered	Accountants.
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MR MOE ZAW
Non-executive	Chairman	for	Myanmar Business

Mr	Moe	 Zaw	 is	 the	 Non-executive	 Chairman	
for	 the	 Group’s	 business	 in	 Myanmar.	 He	
is	 responsible	 to	 provide	 leadership	 to	
our	 management	 team	 and	 to	 promote	
our	 business	 in	 Myanmar.	 Mr	 Moe	 Zaw	
has	 over	 40	 years	 of	 experience	 in	 various	
industrial	sectors	 in	Myanmar	and	the	global	
market	 across	 Asia,	 Europe	 and	 the	 United	
States	 of	 America,	 which	 include	 oil	 and	
gas	 sector,	 logistic	 operations,	 supply	 chain	
management,	pharmaceutical	manufacturing,	
sales	 and	 marketing,	 engineering	 as	 well	
as	 fund	 management.	 He	 has	 also	 acted	 as	
business	advisors	and	 involved	 in	various	re-
organisation,	 re-structuring,	 acquisition	 and	
merger	exercises	of	multi-national	corporations	
both	 in	 the	western	countries	and	Myanmar.	 
 

Mr	Moe	 Zaw	 holds	 a	 Bachelor	 of	 Economics	
(Planning	 and	 Development)	 from	 the	
Rangoon	 Institute	 of	 Economics,	 Myanmar,	
Diploma	in	Marketing	from	Chartered	Institute	
of	 Marketing	 UK	 and	 attended	 executive	
education	 programs	 at	 universities	 including	
the	 Harvard	 University	 and	 the	 Harvard	
Business	School.

MR NGWE ZAW
Director,	Myanmar	Business

Mr	 Ngwe	 Zaw	 is	 our	 Director,	 Myanmar	
Business.	 He	 joined	 the	 Group	 in	 2013.	 His	
responsibilities	 are	 to	 lead	 the	 day-to-day	
operation	 of	 the	 Group’s	 subsidiaries	 in	
Myanmar,	 leading	 the	 tender	 bidding	 and	
overseeing	 the	execution	of	 the	 construction	
works	in	Myanmar.

Prior experience: 
•		 2005	 to	 2013,	 Project	 Director	 at	 MA	
Builders	Pte	Ltd

•		 2000	to	2005,	Deputy	Project	Manager	at	Ban	
Teck	Construction	Pte	Ltd

•		 1998	 to	 2000,	 Site	 Engineer	 at	 Aoki	
Corporation	Singapore	Branch

Mr	 Ngwe	 Zaw	 holds	 a	 Diploma	 in	 Civil	
Engineering	 from	 Government	 Technical	
Institute,	 Insein,	Myanmar,	and	a	Bachelor	of	
Science	 in	 Construction	 Management	 from	
Heriot-Watt	University.

M
yanm

ar	Team



Soilbuild	Construction	Group	Ltd.

24

GROUP
STRUCTURE

G
r
o

u
p

 S
tr

u
c
tu

r
e

SOILBUILD	E&C	PTE.	LTD. SOIL-BUILD	(PTE.)	LTD.

SOILBUILD	CONSTRUCTION	
ENGINEERING	PTE.	LTD.

SOILBUILD	CONSTRUCTION	
INTERNATIONAL	PTE.	LTD.

SB	PROJECT	SERVICES	 
PTE.	LTD.

SB	PROCUREMENT	 
PTE.	LTD.

SOLSTICE	DEVELOPMENT	 
PTE.	LTD.

SOILBUILD	CONSTRUCTION	
(MYANMAR)	CO.,	LTD.

50%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100%100% 100%

100%

19%

SOILBUILD-SHINCON	J.V.

51%

FORTE	BUILDER	PTE.	LTD.

SOILBUILD	(MYANMAR)	 
CO.,	LTD.



Annual Report 2016

1

FINANCIAL CONTENTS
26  Corporate Governance Report
46 Directors’ Statement
55 Independent Auditor’s Report
60 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
61 Balance Sheets
62 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
64 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
65 Notes to the Financial Statements
116 Statistics of Shareholders
118 Statistics of  Warrantholders
119 Notice of Fourth Annual General Meeting
124 Notice of Books Closure and Dividend Payment Dates
 Proxy Form
 Appendix to the Notice of Fourth Annual General 

Meeting



Soilbuild Construction Group Ltd.

26

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
REPORT
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to ensuring the highest standards of corporate governance are practised 
throughout Soilbuild Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), as a 
fundamental part of discharging its responsibilities to protect and enhance shareholder value, while seeking to achieve 
operational excellence and delivering the Group’s long-term strategic objectives. The Board has also established various 
self-regulatory and monitoring mechanisms, where applicable, to ensure that effective corporate governance is practised. 

Set out in the Report are the Group’s corporate governance practices and structures that have been adopted with specific 
reference to the Code of Corporate Governance 2012 (the “Code”) and where applicable, the Listing Manual (“SGX-ST Listing 
Manual”) of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST”), the Companies Act (Cap.50 of Singapore) 
(the “Companies Act”) and the Guidebook for Audit Committees in Singapore, focusing on areas such as internal controls, 
risk management, financial reporting, internal and external audit.

The Board confirms that for the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has adhered to the principles and 
guidelines as set out in the Code, where applicable, and has specified and explained any deviations from the Code in this 
report. The Board considers that the alternative corporate governance practices are sufficient to meet the underlying 
objective of the Code.

(A) BOARD MATTERS 

The Board’s Conduct of Affairs 

Principle 1 
Every company should be headed by an effective Board to lead and control the company. The Board is collectively responsible for 
the long-term success of the company. The Board works with Management to achieve this objective and the Management remains 
accountable to the Board. 

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising the management of the business and corporate affairs, 
and the overall performance of the Group. Board members are expected to act in good faith and exercise independent 
judgement in the best interests of the Group. 

The principal functions of the Board are: 

•  providing entrepreneurial leadership, reviewing and setting the strategic directions and broad policies, ensuring that 
the necessary financial and human resources are in place for the Group to meet its objectives and monitoring the 
organisational performance towards them; 

•  approving the Group’s annual budgets, key operational matters, investment and divestment proposals, corporate or 
financial restructuring, material acquisitions and disposal of assets, making decisions in the interests of the Group, 
interested person transactions of a material nature, convening of shareholders’ meetings and major funding proposals; 

•  establishing and reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s framework of risk management systems, 
internal controls and financial reporting systems; 

•  ensuring the Group’s compliance with relevant laws, regulations, policies, directives, guidelines, internal codes of 
conduct and obligations to shareholders; 

•  approving all Board appointments or re-appointments and appointments of any persons who have authority and 
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company (“key management personnel”) as 
well as evaluating their performance and reviewing their compensation packages; 

•  ensuring accurate, adequate and timely reporting to, and communication with shareholders; 
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•  setting the Group’s values and standards of conduct and assuming the responsibility for the satisfactory fulfilment of 

social responsibilities of the Group; and 

•  reviewing the performance of the Group towards achieving adequate shareholder value including but not limited to 
the declaration of interim and final dividends, if applicable, approval of financial results of the Group and the audited 
financial statements and timely announcements of material transactions.

To facilitate effective management and assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities and to enhance the Group’s corporate 
governance framework, the Board has delegated specific responsibilities to three committees, namely, the Audit Committee 
(“AC”), Nominating Committee (“NC”) and Remuneration Committee (“RC”) (each a “Board Committee” and collectively, the 
“Board Committees”), details of which are set out below. These Board Committees have the authority to review and examine 
particular issues and to report to the Board their recommendations. The ultimate responsibility for the final decision on all 
matters, however, lies with the entire Board, which will take into consideration the overall interests of the Company. 

The Board has adopted a set of internal guidelines on matters requiring its approval. Matters which are specifically reserved 
for the Board’s decision include those involving corporate plans and budgets, material acquisitions and disposals of assets, 
corporate strategy, financial restructuring, share issuances, dividend and other returns to shareholders, major financial 
decisions such as investment and divestment proposals, expenditure beyond a prescribed amount as well as interested 
person transactions. 

The Company conducts an induction programme for newly appointed directors which seeks to familiarise directors with 
the Group’s businesses, board processes, internal controls and governance practices. The induction programme includes 
meetings with various key management personnel and briefings on key areas of the Company’s operations. The Company 
provides a formal letter to each new director upon his appointment, setting out clearly the director’s duties and obligations. 

The directors are also provided with updates and/or briefings from time to time by professional advisers, auditors, 
the management of the Company (“Management”) and the Company Secretary in areas such as directors’ duties and 
responsibilities, corporate governance practices, risk management matters and changes in financial reporting standards. 
The Company also encourages, and where it feels appropriate, will arrange for training courses to supplement and keep 
directors updated on areas such as accounting, legal and industry-specific knowledge. The Company is responsible for 
funding the training of directors. 

The Board meets at least four times a year with additional meetings convened as and when necessary. Fixed meetings 
are scheduled at the start of each financial year. The Company’s Constitution allows for Board meetings to be conducted 
by way of telephone conferencing or other methods of simultaneous communication by telegraphic or electronic means, 
whereby all persons participating in the meeting are able to communicate as a group without requiring the directors’ 
physical presence at the meeting. Each Board member brings with him independent judgment, diversified knowledge and 
experience when dealing with issues of strategy, performance, resources and standards of conduct. 

The matrix on the frequency of the Board and Board Committee meetings and the attendance of directors at these meetings 
during the financial year ended 31 December 2016 is disclosed below:

Meeting of Board AC NC RC

Total meetings held 4 4 1 1

Total meetings attended 
Lim Chap Huat 4 4* 1* -
Ho Toon Bah 4 4* 1* -
Lim Cheng Hwa 4 4* 1* 1*

Poon Hon Thang 4 4 1 1
Tan Jee Ming 4 4 1 1
Teo Chee Seng 3 3 1 1
*Attendance by invitation of the relevant Board Committee
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Board Composition and Guidance 

Principle 2 
There should be a strong and independent element on the Board, which is able to exercise objective judgement on corporate affairs 
independently, in particular, from Management and 10% shareholders. No individual or small group of individuals should be 
allowed to dominate the Board’s decision making. 

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises two Executive Directors, three Independent Directors and one 
Non-Executive Director. The Board composition is as follows: 

Executive Directors: 

Mr Lim Chap Huat (Executive Chairman) 
Mr Ho Toon Bah (Executive Director)
 
Non-Executive Director: 

Ms Lim Cheng Hwa

Independent Directors:

Mr Poon Hon Thang (Lead Independent Director) 
Mr Tan Jee Ming
Mr Teo Chee Seng 

The size and composition of the Board are reviewed by the NC annually to ensure that the current Board size and number 
of Board Committees facilitates effective decision making, taking into account the size, nature and scope of the Group’s 
present operations. 

The NC, with the concurrence of the Board, is of the opinion that the current Board size of six directors is appropriate 
and that the Board possesses the appropriate mix of gender, skills, knowledge, expertise and experience to provide core 
competencies in areas such as accounting or finance, business or management experience, industry knowledge, strategic 
planning experience and customer-based experience or knowledge relevant to the Group and to the expansion of the 
Group. Further details on each director, including their academic and professional qualifications, shareholding in the 
Company and its subsidiaries, Board Committees served on (as a member or Chairman), dates of first appointment and the 
last re-election as a director, directorships or chairmanships both present and those held over the preceding three years 
in other listed companies and other major appointments or principal commitments, are presented under the “Directors’ 
Statement” and “Board of Directors” sections of this Annual Report.

Of the four Non-Executive Directors, three are independent and make up half of the Board. Therefore, no individual or group is 
able to dominate the Board’s decision-making process. There is also an appropriate balance in the Board because of the presence 
of Independent and Non-Executive Directors who have the calibre necessary to carry sufficient weight in Board decisions.
 
The Board and Management fully appreciate that an effective and robust Board whose members engage in open and 
constructive debate and challenge Management on its assumptions and proposals is fundamental to good corporate 
governance. Although all the directors have equal responsibilities towards the Group’s operations, the role of the 
Independent and Non-Executive Directors is particularly important in ensuring that the strategies proposed by the executive 
management team are fully discussed and examined, and take into account the long-term interests of shareholders as well 
as employees, customers, suppliers, and the various communities which the Group conducts business with. They also 
review the performance of Management in meeting agreed goals and objectives and monitor the reporting of performance.

The Company has adopted initiatives to ensure that the Non-Executive Directors are well supported by accurate, complete 
and timely information, have unrestricted access to Management, and have sufficient time and resources to discharge their 
oversight function effectively. These initiatives include regular informal meetings for Management to brief the directors on 
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prospective deals and potential developments at an early stage, and the circulation of relevant information on business 
initiatives, industry developments, and analyst and media commentaries on matters in relation to the Company and the 
industries in which it operates. 

Non-Executive Directors also meet on a need-to basis without the presence of Management to discuss the matters in 
relation to the corporate development of the Group to ensure effective and independent review of the Management. 

The Board also confirms that there is no director who has served on the Board beyond nine years from the date of his 
first appointment. 

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director 

Principle 3 
There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the leadership of the Board and the executives responsible for managing 
the company’s business. No one individual should represent a considerable concentration of power. 

The Executive Director, Mr Ho Toon Bah assumes the responsibilities of a Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of the Company, 
which include the making of strategic proposals to the Board, executing the approved strategies and managing and 
reviewing the development of strategies. 

There is a clear separation of the roles and responsibilities between the Executive Chairman and the Executive Director of 
the Company. 

Role of the Chairman

Mr Lim Chap Huat is the Executive Chairman of the Company. 

The Executive Chairman charts the Group’s strategic direction, and the business planning and development. The Executive 
Chairman also ensures that Board meetings are held as and when necessary and approves the Board meeting agenda 
in consultation with the Executive Director, Mr Ho Toon Bah. The Executive Chairman reviews the Board papers together 
with the Executive Director, before they are presented to the Board, and ensures that Board members are provided with 
complete, adequate and timely information. Management staff who have prepared the papers or can provide additional 
insight into the matters to be discussed are invited to present the papers or attend the relevant Board meetings. The 
Executive Chairman monitors communications and relations between the Company and its shareholders, between the 
Board and Management, between Executive and Non-Executive Directors and between Independent and Non-Independent 
Directors, with a view to encourage constructive relations and dialogue amongst them. The Executive Chairman also works 
to facilitate the effective contribution of Non-Executive Directors and assists to ensure procedures are introduced to comply 
with the Company’s guidelines on corporate governance. 

Role of the Executive Director

Mr Ho Toon Bah is the Executive Director of the Company. 

The role of the Executive Director includes: 

•  running the day to day operations of the Company; and 

•  implementing the Company’s strategies and policies. 

The Executive Chairman and the Executive Director are not related. In line with the best practices in corporate governance, 
the duties and responsibilities of the Executive Chairman and the Executive Director have been formalised in writing and 
approved by the Board.
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Lead Independent Director 

As the Executive Chairman and Executive Director are both part of the management team, the Board has appointed  
Mr Poon Hon Thang as Lead Independent Director to lead and co-ordinate the activities of the Independent Directors of the 
Company. The Lead Independent Director assists the Board in ensuring effective corporate governance in managing the 
affairs of the Board and the Company. 

Led by the Lead Independent Director, the Independent Directors meet regularly without the presence of other directors 
to discuss matters such as board processes, corporate governance initiatives, succession and leadership development 
planning, and remuneration matters. Feedback on the outcomes of these discussions is provided to the Executive Chairman 
after such meetings. 

Board Membership 

Principle 4 
There should be a formal and transparent process for the appointment and re-appointment of directors to the Board.
 
The Company has established an NC to, among other things, make recommendations to the Board on all Board appointments 
and oversee the Company’s succession and leadership development plans. 

The NC, regulated by a set of written terms of reference, comprises the following three members, all of whom, including the 
Chairman, are Independent Directors: 

Mr Tan Jee Ming (Chairman) 
Mr Poon Hon Thang 
Mr Teo Chee Seng 

The Lead Independent Director is a member of the NC.

The NC is responsible for the following under its terms of reference:
 
•  reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and Board Committees and making recommendations to 

the Board, where appropriate; 

•  giving full consideration to succession planning for directors and other key management and senior executives in 
the course of its work, taking into account the challenges and opportunities facing the Company, and what skills and 
expertise are therefore needed on the Board in the future; 

•  to establish procedures for and make recommendations to the Board on all board nominations and re-nominations;
 
•  reviewing and recommending to the Board the nomination of retiring directors and those appointed during the year 

standing for re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”), having regard to the director’s contribution 
and performance; 

•  reviewing and evaluating whether or not a director is able to and has been adequately carrying out his duties as a 
director of the Company, particularly when he has multiple board representations; 

•  reviewing and determine annually if a director is independent, bearing in mind the circumstances set forth in the Code 
and any other salient factors; 

•  deciding how the Board’s performance may be evaluated and propose objective performance criteria, which allow 
for comparison with industry peers and address how the Board has enhanced long term shareholders’ value, for 
approval by the Board; 
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•  implementing a process to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution by each individual 
Director to the effectiveness of the Board and for assessing the contribution of the Chairman and each individual 
Director to the effectiveness of the Board of Directors;

•  ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a formal letter of appointment setting 
out clearly what is expected of them in terms of time commitment, committee service and involvement outside board 
meetings; and 

•  such other duties or functions as may be delegated by the Board or required by regulatory authorities. 

The NC has had one meeting during the financial year ended 31 December 2016. The matrix on the frequency of meetings 
and the attendance of directors at these meetings is disclosed on page 27 of this Annual Report. 

In its search and selection process for new directors, the NC considers the attributes of the existing Board members, such 
as balance and diversity of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board, and the requirements of the Group. In the light 
of such evaluation and in consultation with Management, the NC determines the role and the desirable competencies and 
experience that an incoming director should possess. 

The NC will tap on the resources of directors’ personal contacts for recommendations of potential candidates and 
appraises the nominees independently to ensure that the candidates possess the desirable competencies and experience. 
Independent external help such as executive recruitment consultants that are not affiliated with the Group or any of its 
directors may be used to source for potential candidates if required. 

New directors are appointed by way of a Board resolution, upon their nomination by the NC. Newly appointed executive 
directors will be provided with service agreements setting out their term of office and terms of appointment. The service 
agreement is subject to the RC’s recommendations, and may be renewed for such period as the Board may decide after 
the expiry of its first term of appointment, unless terminated by either party. For Non-Executive Directors, formal letters of 
appointment setting out their terms of appointment will be issued to new appointees to the Board. 

The NC has adopted the Code’s definition of an independent director and guidelines as to relationships, 10% shareholding 
in the Company and the period of the appointment in determining the independence of a director. In addition the NC 
requires each Non-Executive Director to state whether he considers himself to be independent despite the relationships, 
10% shareholding in the Company and the period of appointment identified in the Code which would deem him not to be 
independent, if any.

Mr Tan Jee Ming is the Director of Straits Law Practice LLC, which provides legal and professional services to the Group 
from time to time. The NC is of the view that the business relationship with Straits Law Practice LLC will not interfere with 
the exercise of independent judgement by Mr Tan Jee Ming in his role as an Independent Director as matters involving the 
Group are usually handled by the other directors of Straits Law Practice LLC. As such, the NC considers Mr Tan Jee Ming to 
be independent under the Code. During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, Straits Law Practice LLC rendered legal 
consultancy services to the Group and payment of approximately S$120,000 was made to Straits Law Practice LLC for such 
legal consultancy services received.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the NC has reviewed the independence of the Board members with 
reference to the guidelines set out in the Code and has determined Mr Poon Hon Thang, Mr Tan Jee Ming and Mr Teo Chee 
Seng to be independent and free from any of the relationships and relevant shareholding in the Company’s shares, as outlined 
in the Code. Each of the directors has also confirmed his independence. The Board has concurred with the NC’s views. 

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the NC has also conducted an annual review of the performance of 
Mr Lim Chap Huat, the Executive Chairman of the Company, including whether Mr Lim is able to and has been adequately 
carrying out his duties as Executive Chairman of the Company, and has made such recommendations to the Board as 
appropriate. The NC is satisfied and the Board has concurred that Mr Lim Chap Huat had carried out his duties as Executive 
Chairman of the Company. 
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Save as disclosed, none of the directors on the Board are related and do not have any relationship with the Company or 
its related companies or its officers which could interfere or be reasonably perceived to interfere with the exercise of their 
independent judgement. 

The NC is also responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the re-nomination of directors, having regard to 
the director’s contribution and performance including, if applicable, as an independent director. 

Pursuant to the Company’s Constitution, at least one-third of the Board, including executive and non-executive Directors, 
must retire from office by rotation and are subject to re-election at every AGM. All directors are required to retire at 
least once every three years. Newly appointed directors are subject to retirement and re-election at the AGM immediately 
following their appointment. This will enable all shareholders to exercise their rights in selecting all board members.

At the forthcoming AGM, Mr Lim Chap Huat and Mr Teo Chee Seng will retire and seek re-election pursuant to Article 94 of 
the Company’s Constitution.
 
The Board does not encourage the appointment of alternate directors. No alternate director is appointed to the Board. 

The NC also considers annually whether directors who serve on multiple boards are able to commit the necessary time to 
discharge their responsibilities as directors of the Company. The NC has taken into account the results of the assessment of the 
effectiveness of the individual director, and the respective director’s actual conduct on the Board in making this determination 
and is satisfied that sufficient time and attention are being given by each director to the affairs of the Group, notwithstanding 
that some of the directors may have multiple board representations. In view of the foregoing, the NC does not consider it 
necessary to determine a maximum number of listed company board representations which any director may hold. 

The Group recognises that its Executive Directors may be invited to become non-executive directors of other companies 
and that exposure to such non-executive duties can broaden the experience and knowledge of its Executive Directors 
which will benefit the Group. Executive Directors are therefore allowed, with the Board’s consent, to accept non-executive 
appointments, as long as these are non-competing companies and are not likely to lead to conflicts of interest. Executive 
Directors are allowed to retain the fees received. 

The directors are also kept updated on revisions to relevant laws and regulations through presentations and workshops 
organised by the Management. The Board supports directors receiving further relevant training in connection with their 
duties, particularly on relevant new laws and regulations. In addition, Management facilitates attendance at such training 
sessions by disseminating information on the availability of such training sessions to each director. 

The key information and profile of the directors are disclosed in pages 18 and 19 of this Annual Report.

Board Performance 

Principle 5 
There should be a formal annual assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and its Board Committee and the 
contribution by each director to the effectiveness of the Board. 

The Company has adopted a system to assess the performance of the Board as a whole. 

The NC, together with the Board, assesses the effectiveness of each director, the Board as a whole and the Board 
Committees on an annual basis. In this aspect, both qualitative and quantitative criteria were adopted. The quantitative 
performance criteria includes return on assets, return on equity and profitability on capital employed. The qualitative 
measures include the effectiveness of the Board in its monitoring role and the attainment of the strategic and long-term 
objectives set by the Board. The NC considers the required mix of skills and experience of the members including core 
competencies which the Non-Executives Directors should bring to the Board, during this assessment. The NC and the Board 
endorse the performance criteria. 
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The NC then presents the results and conclusions to the Board and an action plan is drawn up to address any areas  
for improvement. 

The NC is generally satisfied with the results of the board performance for the financial year ended 31 December 2016, 
which indicated areas of strengths and those that could be improved further. The NC, with the concurrence of the Board, 
is of the opinion that the Board has met its performance objectives. No significant problems were identified. The NC had 
discussed the results with Board members who agreed to work on those areas that could be improved further. 

The NC will continue to evaluate the process for such review and its effectiveness from time to time.

Access to Information 

Principle 6 
In order to fulfil their responsibilities, directors should be provided with complete, adequate and timely information prior to board 
meetings and on an on-going basis so as to enable them to make informed decisions to discharge their duties and responsibilities. 

Board reports are provided to the directors prior to the Board meetings. This is issued in sufficient time prior to the meeting 
to enable the directors to obtain further explanations, where necessary, in order to be briefed properly before the meeting. 
The Board report includes, among others, the following details: 

•  minutes of meetings of all Board Committees; 

•  background and explanations of proposals submitted to the Board for approval; 

•  relevant budgets, forecasts and projections, including explanations on any material variances between the projections 
and actual results; 

•  copies of disclosure documents; 

•  major operational and financial information issues; 

•  updates on corporate developments; and 

•  market responses to the Group’s strategies. 

All analysts’ and media reports on the Group, if any, are forwarded to the directors on an on-going basis. The Board 
receives financial highlights of the Group’s performance and development which are presented on a quarterly basis at 
Board meetings. The Group’s Executive Director and key management personnel are present at these presentations to 
address any queries which the Board may have.

All directors have separate and independent access to the Group’s key management personnel, senior management and 
the Company Secretary. All directors are provided with complete and adequate information prior to Board meetings and 
on an on-going basis. The Company Secretary provides secretarial support to the Board and ensures adherence to Board 
procedures and relevant rules and regulations which are applicable to the Company. The Company Secretary attends 
all Board and Board Committee meetings. The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary are subject to the 
approval of the Board. 

Where decisions to be taken require expert opinion or specialised knowledge, the directors, whether as a group or 
individually, may seek independent professional advice as and when necessary in furtherance of their duties at the 
Company’s expense. The appointments of such independent professional advisors are subject to approval by the Board. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
REPORT



Soilbuild Construction Group Ltd.

34

(B) REMUNERATION MATTERS 

Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies 

Principle 7 
There should be a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the 
remuneration packages of individual directors. No director should be involved in deciding his own remuneration. 

The RC is responsible for ensuring a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on executive remuneration, 
and for fixing the remuneration packages of individual directors, the CEO and key management personnel.

The RC, regulated by a set of written terms of reference, comprises the following three members, all of whom, including the 
Chairman, are Independent and Non-Executive Directors: 

Mr Teo Chee Seng (Chairman) 
Mr Tan Jee Ming 
Mr Poon Hon Thang 

The RC is responsible for the following under its terms of reference: 

•  recommending to the Board, in consultation with the Executive Chairman, for endorsement, a comprehensive 
remuneration policy framework and guidelines for computation of directors’ fees, as well as remuneration of 
Executive Directors and the key management personnel. For Executive Directors and the key management personnel, 
the framework covers all aspects of executive remuneration (including but not limited to directors’ fees, salaries, 
allowances, benefits in kind, bonuses, incentive payments and share options or other share awards); 

•  in the case of service agreements, reviewing the Company’s obligations arising in the event of termination of the 
Executive Director and key management personnel’s service agreements, to ensure that such service agreements 
contain reasonable termination clauses which are not overly generous with a view to be fair and avoid rewarding poor 
performance;

 
•  approving performance targets for assessing the performance of each of the key management personnel and 

recommending such targets as well as employee specific remuneration packages for each of such key management 
personnel, for endorsement by the Board; 

•  periodically considering and reviewing remuneration packages in order to maintain their attractiveness, to retain 
and motivate (a) the directors to provide good stewardship of the Company and (b) key management personnel to 
successfully manage the Company, and to align the level and structure of remuneration with the long-term interest 
and risk policies of the Company, such as through the participation in the respective options plans, share plans and/
or other equity based plans (collectively, the “share plans”) implemented or that may be implemented by the Group;

•  administering the performance bonus scheme and share-based schemes for the employees of the Group, in 
particular, the Soilbuild Construction Employee Share Option Scheme and Soilbuild Construction Performance 
Share Plan (“PSP”); and 

•  ensuring that, to the extent applicable, all provisions regarding disclosure of remuneration as set out in the Code 
are fulfilled. 

In setting remuneration packages, the employment and pay conditions within the industry and in comparable companies are 
taken into consideration. Where necessary, the RC will seek both internal and external expert advice on the remuneration 
of directors and key management personnel. The remuneration policy recommended by the RC is submitted for approval 
by the Board. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
REPORT



Annual Report 2016

35

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the RC made recommendations regarding the framework of 
remuneration for the directors and submitted them for endorsement by the entire Board. The RC’s recommendations 
covered all aspects of remuneration, including but not limited to the directors’ fees, salaries and benefits in kind. In setting 
remuneration packages, the RC has taken into account the performance of the Group, as well as the performance of 
individual directors and key management personnel in order to align their interests with those of the shareholders and to 
promote the long-term success of the Company, linking their remuneration to corporate and individual performance. In 
the course of deliberations, the RC has taken into consideration industry practices and norms in compensation. The RC has 
also reviewed the remuneration of key management personnel during the year under review. No director was involved in 
deciding his own remuneration. 

The RC has had one meeting during the financial year ended 31 December 2016. The matrix on the frequency of meetings 
and the attendance of directors at these meetings is disclosed on page 27 of this Annual Report.

Level and Mix of Remuneration 

Principle 8 
The level and structure of remuneration should be aligned with the long-term interest and risk policies of the company, and 
should be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate (a) the directors to provide good stewardship of the company, and (b) key 
management personnel to successfully manage the company. However, companies should avoid paying more than is necessary 
for this purpose. 

The Company has adopted the objectives as recommended by the Code to determine the framework and levels of 
remuneration for directors and key management personnel so as to ensure that the Company sets an appropriate level 
of remuneration to attract, retain and motivate the directors and key management personnel needed to run the Group 
successfully, without being excessive. 

The component parts of remuneration are structured so as to link rewards to the performance of the Group, the respective 
business units and individual performance, and to align the interests of the directors and key management personnel with 
those of shareholders. In the case of Non-Executive Directors, the level of remuneration reflects the experience and level of 
responsibilities undertaken and time spent by the particular Non-Executive Director concerned. 

Remuneration paid/payable to Executive Directors are determined by the Board after considering the performance of the 
individual and the Company against comparable organisations. The fees paid/payable to Non-Executive Directors take 
into account factors such as effort and time spent and responsibilities of these directors. Each director is paid a basic fee. 
In addition, Non-Executive Directors who serve as members of the Board Committees are paid additional fees, with the 
Chairman of each Board Committee being paid a higher fee in view of the heavier responsibilities carried by that office. 

The Non-Executive Directors do not have service agreements and are required to seek nomination and re-election at 
regular intervals. If the Non-Executive Director occupies a position for part of the financial year, the fees payable will be 
pro-rated accordingly. No compensation is payable for the early termination of a Non-Executive Director. The directors’ fees 
for directors are subject to the approval of shareholders at the AGM.

The Company has a service agreement with: 

•  Mr Lim Chap Huat, which commenced on 1 January 2016 and lasts for a period of three (3) years, unless otherwise 
terminated by not less than six (6) months’ notice in writing by either party; and 

•  Mr Ho Toon Bah, which commenced on 1 January 2016 and lasts for a period of three (3) years, unless otherwise 
terminated by not less than six (6) months’ notice in writing by either party. 
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The total remuneration package of Executive Directors and key management personnel comprises a fixed cash component, 
annual performance incentive and long-term incentive. The annual fixed cash component comprises the annual basic salary, 
statutory employer’s contributions to the Central Provident Fund and other fixed allowances. The annual performance 
incentive is tied to the performance of the Group, business unit and individual employee. To align the interests of the 
directors and executives of the Group with the interests of shareholders, the Group also has adopted the Soilbuild 
Construction Employee Share Option Scheme and the PSP. Further details on the Soilbuild Construction Employee Share 
Option Scheme and the PSP are presented under the “Directors’ Statement” section of this Annual Report. 

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, share awards in respect of an aggregate of up to 7,696,000 ordinary 
shares in the Company have been granted under the 2016 PSP awards to the Executive Directors and key management 
personnel. Details of the share awards granted are set out in pages 50 to 53 of this Annual Report. 

The RC has reviewed the level and mix of remuneration for the Non-Executive Directors and the Executive Directors during 
the financial year ended 31 December 2016 as well as that of the key management personnel (other than the directors) of the 
Company to ensure that the levels and mix are appropriate to attract, retain and motivate the required talents for the Group 
and are sufficiently linked to performance. While the remuneration components are regularly benchmarked against those 
of comparable companies, the RC remains mindful that there is a general correlation between increased remuneration and 
performance improvements.

Disclosure on Remuneration 

Principle 9 
Every company should provide clear disclosure of its remuneration policies, level and mix of remuneration, and the procedure for 
setting remuneration in the company’s Annual Report. It should provide disclosure in relation to its remuneration policies to enable 
investors to understand the link between remuneration paid to directors and key management personnel, and performance. 

Level and Mix of Remuneration 

The following information relates to the level and mix of remuneration of the directors and key management executives 
(other than directors) of the Group during the financial year ended 31 December 2016:

Name of directors Fee
S$’000

Salaries
S$’000

Variable /  
Performance  

bonus
S$’000

Benefits in 
kind

S$’000

Long-term 
incentives1

S$’000
Total
S$’000

Executive Directors:
Mr Lim Chap Huat 70 258 –* 6 242 576
Mr Ho Toon Bah 40 456 24 64 227 811

Non-executive Directors:
Mr Poon Hon Thang 70 – – – – 70
Mr Tan Jee Ming 60 – – – – 60
Mr Teo Chee Seng 60 – – – – 60
Ms Lim Cheng Hwa 40 – – – – 40

* In accordance with Mr Lim Chap Huat’s Service Agreement, he is entitled to an annual performance incentive amounting to 
approximately S$239,000 for the financial year ended 31 December 2016. Mr Lim Chap Huat has submitted a request to the RC to 
voluntarily relinquish his full entitlement of the annual performance incentive for the financial year ended 31 December 2016. The 
RC has accepted Mr Lim Chap Huat’s request.
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Name of key management personnel: Salaries
%

Variable / 
Performance 

bonus
%

Benefits in 
kind

%

Long-term 
incentives2

%
Total

%

S$200,000 to S$400,000
Mr Loh Chye Aik 93 – 5 2 100

Mr Chooi Yue Chiong 64 27 7 2 100

Mr Ho Chan Teck Patrick 76 14 8 2 100

Mr Ng Kwoon Hong 80 12 6 2 100

Ms Winny Monica Oei 77 13 8 2 100

Mr Lim Thiam Lay 75 14 9 2 100

Mr Ding Yen Shee, Daniel 83 10 7 – 100

Mr Wong Yoon Thim 79 12 7 2 100

1  Long term incentives relate to awards granted to the Directors pursuant to the Soilbuild Construction Performance 
Share Plan during the financial year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. 

2  Long term incentives relate to awards granted to the employees pursuant to the Soilbuild Construction Performance 
Share Plan during the financial year ended 31 December 2014. 

The aggregate total remuneration paid to the above listed key management personnel (who are not directors or the CEO of 
the Company) amounted to S$1,784,586 for the financial year ended 31 December 2016. 

Although Guideline 9.1 recommends the disclosure of the aggregate of any termination, retirement and post-employment 
benefits that may be granted to directors, the CEO and the top five key management personnel of the company and  Guideline 
9.3 of the Code recommends the disclosure of the remuneration at least top five individual key management personnel in 
the bands of S$250,000, the Board believes that disclosure in such detail may be prejudicial to the business interest of the 
Group given the highly competitive environment it is operating in as well as competitive pressures in the market.

There were no employees of the Group who are immediate family members of a Director or the CEO for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2016. 

(C) ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT ACCOUNTABILITY 

Principle 10 
The Board should present a balanced and understandable assessment of the company’s performance, position and prospects. 

The Board is responsible for providing a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s financial performance, 
position and prospects to the shareholders. Financial results are released on a quarterly basis to the shareholders within 
the timeline stipulated in the SGX-ST Listing Manual. All the financial information presented in the results announcement or 
Annual Report have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and approved by the 
Board before being released to the SGX-ST and the public through SGXNET.

In line with the SGX-ST Listing Manual, negative assurance statements were issued by the Board to accompany its quarterly 
financial results announcements, confirming to the best of its knowledge that, nothing had come to its attention which 
would render the Company’s quarterly results to be false or misleading. The Company is not required to issue negative 
assurance statements for its full year results announcement. 
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Management provides the Board with information on the Group’s performance, position and prospects on a quarterly 
basis to ensure that it effectively discharges its duties. This is supplemented by updates on matters affecting the financial 
performance and business of the Group, if such event occurs. 

Risk Management and Internal Controls 

Principle 11 
The Board is responsible for the governance of risk. The Board should ensure that Management maintains a sound system of 
risk management and internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ interests and the company’s assets, and should determine the 
nature and extent of the significant risks which the Board is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives. 

The Board recognises the importance of sound system of risk management and internal controls for good corporate 
governance. The Board affirms its overall responsibility for the Group’s system of risk management and internal controls, 
including financial, operational, compliance, sustainability and information technology controls, and risk management 
policies and systems to safeguard shareholders’ interest and maintain accountability of its assets, and for reviewing the 
adequacy and integrity of those systems on an annual basis. However, due to the inherent nature of risk management and 
control systems, it should be noted that such systems are meant to provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against 
material misstatement of loss, safeguarding of assets, maintenance of proper accounting records, reliability of financial 
information and compliance with relevant legislation. 

The Group has adopted a balanced risk approach that spans across the organisational structure, from the Board to all 
operating business units. In this way, risks can be assessed and managed across the Group by leveraging on the expertise 
within each business unit and the sharing of best practices.

While the Board has overall responsibility for establishing the objectives and underlying principles of risk management 
for the Group, the AC is tasked with providing an oversight for the entire risk management system, including the setting 
up of risk management strategies, regularly enhancing the risk management assessments and processes, reviewing its 
comprehensiveness and effectiveness, business continuity planning as well as guiding Management in the formulation 
of risk policies, procedures and processes to prioritise, manage, mitigate and monitor risks arising from its business. The 
AC also ensures that adequate resources and expertise are available and allocated for the risk management process and 
evaluates the need to engage independent external advisers to supplement such efforts. 

The AC has set up a risk management team, comprised mainly of key management personnel and led by the Executive 
Director, to establish and implement the Group’s overall risk management framework. Key indicators of such risks will be 
monitored and reported on a regular basis to the AC and the Board. Where necessary, these will also be circulated outside 
of the regular Board and AC meetings. Each business unit also identifies the risks pertaining to the respective units and is 
accountable for the integration and embedding of risk management into their business operations and processes. 

The Group’s internal auditors conduct an annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s material internal controls, 
including internal financial controls, operational and compliance controls. Any material non-compliance or failures in 
internal controls and recommendations for improvements are reported to the AC. The AC also reviews the effectiveness of 
the actions taken by Management on the recommendations made by the internal auditors in this respect. 

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the AC and the Board have reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness 
of the Group’s risk management procedures and internal controls established by the Management and the regular audits, 
monitoring and reviews performed by the internal auditors. Based on the above, the Board, with the concurrence of the 
AC, is satisfied that the Group’s risk management system and internal controls, including financial, operational, compliance, 
sustainability and information technology controls, are effective and are adequate to meet the needs of the Group in its 
current business environment. 
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The Executive Director and the key management personnel have provided their confirmation to the Board that to the best 
of their knowledge, the risk management and internal control system is effective, the financial records have been properly 
maintained and the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Group, and its operations and finances.

The Board, together with the AC and Management, will continue to enhance and improve the existing risk management and 
internal control framework to identify and mitigate any relevant risks. 
Audit Committee 

Principle 12 
The Board should establish an AC with written terms of reference which clearly set out its authority and duties. 

The AC, regulated by a set of written terms of reference, comprises the following three members, all of whom, including the 
Chairman, are Independent and Non-Executive Directors: 

Mr Poon Hon Thang (Chairman) 
Mr Tan Jee Ming 
Mr Teo Chee Seng 

The AC meets at least four times a year, as and when deemed appropriate to carry out its function. 

The AC has had four meetings during the financial year ended 31 December 2016. The matrix on the frequency of the 
meetings and the attendance of directors at these meetings is disclosed on page 27 of this Annual Report. The meetings 
were also attended by the Executive Chairman, Executive Director and Non-Executive Directors, as well as the internal and 
external auditors.

The AC has explicit authority from the Board to investigate any matter within its terms of reference. It has unrestricted 
access to any information pertaining to the Group, full access to the internal and external auditors, and all employees of 
the Group, and has full discretion to invite any director or executive officer to attend its meetings. The AC has adequate 
resources to enable it to discharge its responsibilities properly and is also authorised by the Board to obtain external legal 
or other independent professional advice when necessary and at the expense of the Group. 

The AC is responsible for the following under its terms of reference: 

•  reviewing the external auditor’s audit plan and audit report, and the external auditor’s evaluation of the system of 
internal accounting controls, with the external auditor, as well as the assistance given by Management to the external 
auditor, and reviewing and assessing the annual internal audit plan; 

•  reviewing the procedures to ensure co-ordination between internal and external auditors, co-operation from 
Management and assistance given to facilitate their respective audits and discussing problems and concerns, if any, 
arising from the interim and final audits, and any matters which the internal and external auditors may wish to discuss 
(in the absence of Management, where necessary); 

•  reviewing the quarterly and full year financial results announcements of the Group before submission to the Board 
for approval, focusing in particular on changes in accounting policies and practices, major risk areas, significant 
adjustments resulting from the audit, compliance with accounting standards and compliance with the SGX-ST Listing 
Manual and other relevant statutory or regulatory requirements; 

•  reviewing and discussing with the external auditors any suspected fraud or irregularity, or suspected infringement 
of any relevant laws, rules or regulations which has or is likely to have material impact on the Company’s operating 
results or financial position; 

•  reviewing annually the cost effectiveness of the audit and the independence, objectivity and performance of the 
external auditors and reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function; 
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•  reviewing arrangements under which staff of the Group may in confidence, raise concerns about possible wrongdoing 
in financial reporting or, other matters; 

•  nominating and reviewing the appointment or re-appointment of the external auditors and the head of the internal 
audit function, or the accounting/auditing firm or corporation to which the internal audit function is outsourced, and 
matters relating to the resignation or dismissal of the auditors, if any; 

•  reviewing interested person transactions (if any) falling within the scope of Chapter 9 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual; and 

•  reviewing conflicts or potential conflicts of interest, if any, and ensuring that appropriate measures are put in place to 
mitigate such conflicts of potential conflicts. 

The AC has met with the Group’s internal and external auditors and Management to review accounting, auditing and 
financial reporting matters so as to ensure that effective internal controls and a sound risk management system are 
maintained in the Group.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the AC has carried out its functions which included the following: 

•  reviewed the internal and external audit plans, including the nature and scope of work before commencement of 
these audits; 

•  met up with the Group’s internal and external auditors without the presence of Management to discuss their findings 
set out in their respective reports to the AC. Both the internal and external auditors have confirmed that they had 
access to and received full co-operation and assistance from Management and no restrictions were placed on the 
scope of auditors;

•  reviewed and approved the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, statements of financial position, 
statements of changes in equity, statement of consolidated cash flows and auditors’ reports (including key audit 
matters and matters involving difficult or complex auditors’ judgements); and 

•  conducted a review of the non-audit services provided by the external auditors and is satisfied that the nature and 
extent of such services will not prejudice the independence and objectivity of the external auditors as well as the cost 
effectiveness of the audit before confirming their re-nomination. 

External Auditors 

The Company has engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as its external auditor, to audit the accounts of the Company and its 
subsidiaries. The report of the external auditor is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” section of this Annual Report. 

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of fees paid to the external auditors amounted 
to S$229,000, comprising S$187,000 in audit fees and S$42,000 in non-audit fees.

The AC has undertaken a review of all the non-audit services provided by the external auditors for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2016, which pertained mainly to the Company’s income tax advisory services. In the AC’s opinion, the 
provision of such non-audit services does not affect the independence and objectivity of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as 
the external auditor. 

After considering the adequacy of the resources and experience of the current auditing firm and the audit engagement 
partner assigned to the audit, the firm’s other audit engagements, the size and complexity of the Group and the number 
and experience of supervisory and professional staff assigned to the particular audit, the AC has recommended the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the external auditor for the Company at the forthcoming AGM. 
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In relation to its appointment of auditing firms, the Company has complied with Rules 712 and 715 of the SGX-ST Listing 
Manual, as PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has been appointed as the external auditor for the Company as well as the 
Company’s Singapore-incorporated subsidiaries.

Whistle-blowing Policy 

The Group has put in place a whistle-blowing policy (“Whistle-blowing Policy”) which provides well-defined and accessible 
channels in the Group through which employees, suppliers, sub-contractors and vendors may in confidence, raise concerns 
about possible wrongdoing in financial reporting, fraudulent activities, malpractices or improper conduct within the Group, 
in a responsible and effective manner. There were no whistle-blowing reports received for the financial year ended 31 
December 2016. 

Internal Audit 

Principle 13 
The Company should establish an effective internal audit function that is adequately resourced and independent of the activities 
it audits. 

The Group has outsourced its internal audit function to a suitably appointed qualified firm of accountants which meets the 
standards set by internationally recognised professional bodies including the Standards for the Professional Practice of 
Internal Auditing set by The Institute of Internal Auditors. 

The internal audit function is independent and reports directly to the AC Chairman on audit matters and to the Executive 
Director on administrative matters. The internal auditor assists the AC in ensuring that the Company maintains a sound 
system of internal controls through regular monitoring of key controls and procedures and ensuring their effectiveness, 
undertaking investigations as directed by the AC, and conducting regular audits of high-risk areas.

The AC also reviewed and approved the internal auditor’s plan during the AC meeting of each financial year to ensure that 
the scope of the internal auditor’s plan is adequate and covers the reviewing of the significant internal controls of the Group, 
including financial, operational, compliance, sustainability and information technology controls. Audits were carried out on all 
significant business functions of the Group and all internal audit findings and reports were submitted to the AC for deliberation 
with copies of these reports extended to the Executive Chairman, Executive Director, and the relevant key management 
personnel. The internal auditor’s summary of findings and recommendations are discussed at the AC meetings. 

The AC has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function and is satisfied that the team is adequately 
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company. 

(D) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

Shareholder Rights 

Principle 14 
Companies should treat all shareholders fairly and equitably, and should recognise, protect and facilitate the exercise of 
shareholders’ rights, and continually review and update such governance arrangements. 

Communication with Shareholders 

Principle 15 
Companies should actively engage their shareholders and put in place an investor relations policy to promote regular, effective and 
fair communication with shareholders. 
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Conduct of Shareholder Meetings 

Principle 16 
Companies should encourage greater shareholder participation at general meetings of shareholders, and allow shareholders the 
opportunity to communicate their views on various matters affecting the company.

The Group values dialogue with investors and believes in regular, effective and fair communication with its shareholders, 
and is committed to hearing shareholders’ views and addressing their concerns where possible. The Group adopts the 
practice of regularly communicating major developments in its business and operations through SGXNET and news releases 
and, where appropriate also directly to shareholders, other investors, analysts, the media, the public and its employees. 

Relevant key management personnel are tasked to deal with all investor relations (“IR”) matters of the Group, including 
managing the dissemination of corporate information to the media, institutional investors and public shareholders and 
facilitating effective and regular communication with such parties. Contact details of the Group’s IR representative are also 
provided in the news releases and on the Group’s website, http://www.soilbuildconstruction.com.
 
The Group monitors the dissemination of material information to ensure that it is made publicly available on a timely 
and non-selective basis. Quarterly and full year results as well as the annual reports are announced or issued within the 
mandatory period. However, any information that may be regarded as undisclosed material information about the Group 
will not be given. The Group issues announcements and news releases on an immediate basis where required under the 
SGX-ST Listing Manual. Where an immediate announcement is not possible, the announcement is made as soon as possible 
to ensure that the stakeholders and the public have fair access to the information. 

Briefings and meetings for analysts and the media generally coincide with the release of the Group’s quarterly and full year 
results. Presentations are made, as appropriate, to explain the Group’s strategies, performance and major developments. 

The Group believes in encouraging shareholder participation at general meetings. All shareholders of the Group receive the 
annual report, circulars and notices of all shareholders’ meetings. The notices are advertised in the newspapers and made 
available on both SGXNET and the Company’s website.

Shareholders are invited during such meetings to put forth any questions they may have on the motions to be debated and 
decided upon. A shareholder who is unable to attend the general meetings is entitled to appoint up to two proxies, unless 
the shareholder is a “relevant intermediary” (as defined in Section 181 of the Companies Act). A relevant intermediary is 
entitled to appoint more than two proxies, but each proxy must be appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different 
share or shares held by such shareholder. 

The Board is not implementing absentia voting methods by mail, e-mail or fax until security, integrity and other pertinent 
issues are satisfactory resolved and until SGX-ST Listing Manual has been amended to allow for such voting methods. 

At each general meeting, separate resolutions will be proposed for each substantially separate issue. This is consistent with 
the Code’s recommendation that companies should avoid “bundling” resolutions unless the resolutions are interdependent 
and linked so as to form one significant proposal. Each item of special business included in the notice of the meeting will 
be accompanied by a full explanation of the effects of a proposed resolution. The Board also encourages shareholders to 
participate during the question and answer session. 

The Executive Chairman of the Board, AC, NC and RC, will be present at the AGM, and other general meetings held by the 
Company, if any, to address shareholders’ queries. The external auditors have also been invited to attend the AGM and 
will be available to address shareholders’ queries on the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the 
auditors’ report. Appropriate key management personnel will also be present at general meetings to respond, if necessary, 
to operational questions from shareholders. 
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The proceedings of the general meeting will be properly recorded, including substantial and relevant comments or queries 
from shareholders relating to the agenda of the meeting and responses from the Board and Management. Minutes of such 
meetings will be made available to shareholders upon their request. 

Pursuant to the SGX-ST Listing Manual and in order to promote greater transparency in general meetings and shareholders’ 
engagement, with effect from 1 August 2015, the Company has conducted and will continue to conduct poll voting for all 
resolutions to be passed at the annual and extraordinary general meetings of the Company. The detailed voting results of 
each of the resolutions tabled will be announced on the same day after the meetings. The total numbers of votes cast for 
or against the resolutions will also be announced after the meetings via SGXNET.

(E) OTHER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS 

Dealing in Securities 

Pursuant to Rule 1207(19) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual regarding compliance with best practices in respect of dealings in 
securities, the Group has adopted an internal code of conduct which prohibits the directors, key management personnel of 
the Group and their connected persons from dealing in the Company’s shares during the “black-out” period commencing 
two weeks and one month immediately preceding the announcement of the Company’s quarterly and full-year financial 
statements respectively, or if they are in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group. In addition, 
directors, key management personnel and their connected persons are expected to observe insider trading laws at all 
times even when dealing in securities within the permitted trading periods. They are also discouraged from dealing in the 
Company’s shares on short-term considerations. 

Material Contracts 

Pursuant to Rule 1207(8) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual, the Company confirms that there were no material contracts of the 
Group involving the interests of any director or controlling shareholders, either still subsisting at the end of the financial year 
ended 31 December 2016 or if not then subsisting, entered into since the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Interested Person Transactions 

The Company has adopted an internal policy governing procedures for the identification, approval and monitoring of 
interested person transactions. All interested person transactions are subject to review by the AC at its quarterly meetings 
to ensure that such transactions are conducted on an arm’s length basis and are not prejudicial to the interests of the 
minority shareholders. 
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The AC with the concurrence of the Board has confirmed that no other interested person transactions have been entered 
into during the financial year ended 31 December 2016, save for those disclosed below pursuant to the disclosure under 
Rule 920 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual:

Name of Interested Person

Aggregate value of all interested 
person transactions during the 
financial period under review 
(excluding transactions less 

than S$100,000 and transactions 
conducted under shareholders’ 
mandate pursuant to Rule 920)

S$’000

Aggregate value of all interested 
person transactions conducted under 

shareholders’ mandate pursuant to 
Rule 920 (excluding transactions less 

than S$100,000)
S$’000

Construction contract awarded 
during the financial year:

SB (Westcove) Investment Pte. Ltd. – 7,650

SB (Westpoint) Investment Pte. Ltd. – 5,420

Renovation/property reinstatement 
services and Service income

Soilbuild Group Holdings Ltd. and its 
subsidiaries – 371

Share of common overheads
Soilbuild Group Holdings Ltd. and its 

subsidiaries – 409

Rental of office premises
Soilbuild Group Holdings Ltd. and its 

subsidiaries – 723

Legal consultancy fee
Straits Law Practice LLP 120 –

Use of Proceeds from the Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) 

Pursuant to the IPO, the Company received net proceeds from the issue of the new shares of approximately S$39.4 million 
after deducting the actual issue expenses of S$2.6 million as set out below. The utilisation of the net proceeds from the IPO 
is as follows:

Use of IPO proceeds

Amount 
allocated

S$’000

Amount 
utilised as at 
31 December 

2016
S$’000

Amount 
unutilised 

as at 31 
December 

2016
S$’000

Investment in productivity improvements Up to 10,000 10,000 –

Expansion of construction business to certain countries in Asia Up to 5,000 5,000 –

Working capital purposes 24,400 24,400 –

Total 39,400 39,400 –

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has fully utilised the proceeds from the IPO.
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Use of Proceeds From Preferential Offering of Warrants 

Pursuant to the preferential offering of warrants during the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Company received 
net proceeds from the issue warrants of approximately S$8.2 million after deducting the actual issue expenses of S$0.2 
million as set out below. The utilisation of the net proceeds from the preferential offering of warrants is as follows:

Use of proceeds from the preferential offering of warrants

Amount 
allocated

S$’000

Amount 
utilised as at 
31 December 

2016
S$’000

Amount 
unutilised 

as at 31 
December 

2016
S$’000

Acquisition of plant and equipment for construction works in Myanmar Up to 2,500 – 2,500

Working capital purposes Up to 5,700 3,500 2,200

Total 8,200 3,500 4,700

The Company will continue to make periodic announcements on the use of the balance of the proceeds through SGXNET as 
and when the proceeds are materially disbursed. Pending the utilisation of the net proceeds as stated above, the unutilised 
amount may be placed in short-term deposits with banks and financial institutions or invested in money market instruments.

Non-Competition Deeds 

As disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 17 May 2013, to mitigate the potential conflicts of interest arising from 
Mr Lim Chap Huat’s executive roles in both Soilbuild Group Holdings Ltd and the Company as well as Ms Lim Cheng Hwa’s 
directorships in both Soilbuild Group Holdings Ltd and the Company, Soilbuild Group Holdings Ltd. entered into a non-
competition deed with the Company (“Parent Non-Competition Deed”). In addition to the Parent Non-Competition Deed, Mr 
Lim Chap Huat has a non-competition provision in his Service Agreement with the Company which is similar to the scope of 
the Parent Non-Competition Deed. Mr Lim has also provided a personal non-competition deed (“Personal Non-Competition 
Deed”), with the same terms and substance as the non-competition provision in his Service Agreement, which shall be in 
force for so long as he is a director or controlling shareholder of the Company. 

The Board had received and noted the written confirmations of adherence to the terms and conditions of each of the Parent 
Non-Competition Deed from Soilbuild Group Holdings Ltd. and the Personal Non-Competition Deed from Mr Lim Chap Huat.
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The directors present their statement to the members together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2016 and the balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2016.

In the opinion of the directors,

(a) the balance sheet of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group as set out on pages 60 
to 115 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and of the Group 
as at 31 December 2016 and the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the 
financial year covered by the consolidated financial statements; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they fall due.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are as follows:

Mr Lim Chap Huat
Mr Ho Toon Bah
Ms Lim Cheng Hwa
Mr Poon Hon Thang
Mr Tan Jee Ming
Mr Teo Chee Seng

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose object 
was to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, 
the Company or any other body corporate, other than as disclosed under “Share plans” in this statement.

DIRECTORS’
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES OR DEBENTURES

(a) According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, none of the directors holding office at the end of the financial year 
had any interest in the shares, debentures or warrants of the Company or its related corporations, except as follows:

Holdings registered 
in name of 

director or nominee

Holdings in which 
director is deemed 
to have an interest

At
31.12.2016

At 
1.1.2016

At
31.12.2016

At 
1.1.2016

Company
(No. of ordinary shares)

Mr Lim Chap Huat 491,251,000 489,743,000 – –

Mr Ho Toon Bah 10,389,000 8,938,000 – –

Ms Lim Cheng Hwa 200,000 200,000 – –

Mr Tan Jee Ming 300,000 300,000 – –

Mr Teo Chee Seng 200,000 200,000 – –

(No. of warrants)

Mr Lim Chap Huat 122,812,750 – – –

Mr Ho Toon Bah 2,597,250 – – –

Ms Lim Cheng Hwa 50,000 – – –

Mr Tan Jee Ming 75,000 – – –

Mr Teo Chee Seng 50,000 – – –

(b) According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, certain directors holding office at the end of the financial year 
were granted contingent awards of performance shares pursuant to the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share 
Plan, details of which are set out below and under “Share Plans” in this statement.

No. of unissued 
ordinary shares arising 

from contingent awards 
of performance shares

At
31.12.2016

At 
1.1.2016

Mr Lim Chap Huat

2014 PSP Award 1 707,356 1,414,712 

2015 PSP Award 2 1,203,138 Up to 2,730,000

2016 PSP Award 3 Up to 2,916,000 –

Mr Ho Toon Bah

2014 PSP Award 1 704,120 1,408,240

2015 PSP Award 2 1,123,665 Up to 2,800,000

2016 PSP Award 3 Up to 3,005,000 –
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

(b) (continued) 

1  Contingent awards of up to 6,269,000 shares pursuant to the 2014 PSP Awards were granted on 22 August 2014, of which 
2,621,000 shares, 2,688,000 shares and 960,000 shares were granted to Mr Lim Chap Huat, Mr Ho Toon Bah and the other 
participants respectively.

 Subsequent to the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the grant of 2014 PSP Awards were reviewed by the RC on 16 
February 2015, taking into consideration, among others, the performance of the participants of the 2014 PSP Awards for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2014. Based on such review, the number of shares awarded under the 2014 PSP Awards 
amounted to 5,663,952 shares, of which 2,357,712 shares, 2,346,240 shares and 960,000 shares were granted to Mr Lim Chap 
Huat, Mr Ho Toon Bah and the other participants respectively. More details on the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share 
Plan are disclosed under “Share Plans” in this statement.

2  Contingent awards of up to 6,782,000 shares pursuant to the 2015 PSP Awards were granted on 31 March 2015, of which 
2,730,000 shares, 2,800,000 shares and 1,252,000 shares were granted to Mr Lim Chap Huat, Mr Ho Toon Bah and the other 
participants respectively.

 Subsequent to the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the grant of 2015 PSP Awards were reviewed by the RC on 24 
February 2016, taking into consideration, among others, the performance of the participants of the 2015 PSP Awards for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2015. Based on such review, the number of shares awarded under the 2015 PSP Awards 
amounted to 3,874,327 shares, of which 2,003,782 shares and 1,870,545 shares were granted to Mr Lim Chap Huat and Mr Ho 
Toon Bah respectively. More details on the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan are disclosed under “Share Plans” 
in this statement.

 
3  Contingent awards of up to 7,696,000 shares pursuant to the 2016 PSP Awards were granted on 18 March 2016, of which 

2,916,000 shares, 3,005,000 shares and 1,775,000 shares were granted to Mr Lim Chap Huat, Mr Ho Toon Bah and the other 
participants respectively.

 
 Subsequent to the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the grant of 2016 PSP Awards were reviewed by the RC on 22 

February 2017, taking into consideration, among others, the performance of the participants of the 2016 PSP Awards for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2016. Based on such review, there were no shares awarded under the 2016 PSP Awards. 
More details on the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan are disclosed under “Share Plans” in this statement.

(c) Mr Lim Chap Huat, who by virtue of his interest of not less than 20% of the issued capital of the Company, is deemed 
to have an interest in the whole of the share capital of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries. 

(d) The directors’ interests in the ordinary shares of the Company as at 21 January 2017 were the same as those as at  
31 December 2016.

SHARE PLANS

The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) comprises the following directors and is responsible for administering the Soilbuild 
Construction Employee Share Option Scheme and the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan:

Mr Teo Chee Seng (Chairman)
Mr Poon Hon Thang
Mr Tan Jee Ming
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SHARE PLANS (CONTINUED)

(a) Soilbuild Construction Employee Share Option Scheme

The Soilbuild Construction Employee Share Option Scheme (“Scheme”) was approved by members of the Company at 
an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) held on 9 May 2013. The Scheme will provide eligible participants with an 
opportunity to participate in the equity of the Company and to motivate them towards better performance through 
increased dedication and loyalty.

The number of options to be offered to a participant of the Scheme shall be determined by the RC, which takes 
into account (where applicable) criteria such as the rank, past performance, years of service and potential for future 
development of the participant.

Under the Scheme, share options to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the Company may be granted to executive 
directors and employees of the Group and its associated companies (“Group Employees”) and non-executive directors 
of the Group. Options that are granted under the Scheme may have exercise prices that are, at the RC’s discretion, set 
at a price (the “Market Price”) equal to the average of the last dealt prices for a share on the Official List of the SGX-ST 
for the five consecutive market days immediately preceding the date on which an offer to grant an option is made or 
at a discount to the Market Price (subject to a maximum discount of 20%). Options which are fixed at the Market Price 
(“Market Price Option”) may be exercised after the first anniversary of the date on which an offer to grant that option 
is made while options exercisable at a discount to the Market Price may be exercised after the second anniversary 
from the date on which an offer to grant that option is made (“Incentive Option”).

Options granted under the Scheme will have a life span of 10 years for options granted to Group Employees (other 
than non-executive directors and/or employees of associated companies) and five years for options granted to non-
executive directors and/or employees of associated companies.

The aggregate number of shares over which the RC may grant options on any date, when added to the number of shares 
issued and issuable or transferred and to be transferred in respect of all options granted under the Scheme and the 
number of shares issued and issuable or transferred and to be transferred in respect of all options or awards granted 
under any other share option schemes or share schemes of the Company, shall not exceed 15% of the total number 
of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) on the day immediately preceding the date on which an offer to grant an 
option is made.

The Scheme shall continue in operation for a maximum period of ten years commencing from 9 May 2013, and may 
be continued for any further period thereafter with the approval of our shareholders by ordinary resolution in general 
meeting and of any relevant authorities which may then be required. 

Save as provided under the Scheme, the persons to whom the options have been issued have no right to participate by 
virtue of the options in any share issue of any other company.

No options have been granted under the Scheme since its commencement up to the end of the financial year. Accordingly, 
there are no share options outstanding as at the end of the financial year.

No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of options to take up unissued shares 
of the Company.
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SHARE PLANS (CONTINUED)

(b) Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan

The Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan (“PSP”) was approved by members of the Company at an EGM 
held on 9 May 2013. It was established to increase the Company’s flexibility and effectiveness in its continuing efforts 
to reward, retain and motivate employees and non-executive directors to achieve increased performance and to 
foster a greater ownership culture amongst key senior management, senior executives and non-executive directors. 

Awards represent the right of a participant to receive fully paid shares free of charge, provided that certain prescribed 
performance targets (if any) are met at the expiry of the prescribed performance period. Executive directors and 
employees of the Group and its associated companies who have attained the age of twenty-one (21) years and hold 
such rank as may be designated by the RC from time to time (“Group Executives”), and non-executive directors 
(including the Independent Directors) of the Group, shall be eligible to participate in the PSP. Controlling shareholders 
of the Company or associates of such controlling shareholders are eligible to participate in the PSP if their participation 
and awards are approved by independent shareholders in separate resolutions for each such person and for each 
such award. 

While the RC has the discretion to grant awards at any time in the year, it is currently anticipated that awards would, in 
general, be made once a year. The selection of a participant and the number of shares which are the subject of each 
award to be granted to a participant in accordance with the PSP shall be determined at the absolute discretion of the 
RC, which shall take into account criteria such as rank, job performance, creativity, innovativeness, entrepreneurship, 
years of service and potential for future development, the participant’s contribution to the success and development 
of the Group and, if applicable, the extent of effort and resourcefulness required to achieve the performance target(s) 
within the performance period.

Awards granted under the PSP are principally performance-based with performance targets to be set over a 
performance period and may vary from one performance period to another performance period and from one grant 
to another grant. Performance targets set by the RC are intended to be based on medium-term corporate objectives 
covering market competitiveness, quality of returns, business growth and productivity growth. Such performance 
targets and performance periods will be set according to the specific roles of each participant, and may differ from 
participant to participant. The performance targets are stretched targets aimed at sustaining long-term growth. These 
targets will be tied in with our Company’s corporate key performance indicators. The RC has the discretion to impose 
a further vesting period after the performance period to encourage participants to continue serving the Group for a 
further period of time.

As soon as reasonably practicable after the end of each performance period, the RC shall review the performance 
targets specified in respect of each award and determine at its discretion whether they have been satisfied and, if so, 
the extent to which they have been satisfied, and provided that the relevant participant has continued to be a Group 
executive or a non-executive director up to the end of the performance period, shall release to the relevant participant 
all or part (as determined by the RC at its discretion in the case where the RC has determined that there has been 
partial satisfaction of the performance target) of the shares to which the relevant award relates in accordance with the 
release schedule specified in respect of the relevant award. 

The RC shall have the discretion to determine whether the performance condition has been satisfied (whether fully 
or partially) or exceeded and in making any such determination, the RC shall have the right to make computational 
adjustments to the audited results of our Company or our Group, to take into account such factors as the RC may 
determine to be relevant, such as changes in accounting methods, taxes and extraordinary events, and further, the 
right to amend the performance target(s) if the RC decides that a changed performance target would be a fairer 
measure of performance. 
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SHARE PLANS (CONTINUED)

(b) Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan (continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued or transferred pursuant to awards granted under the PSP, when 
aggregated with the aggregate number of shares over which options are granted under any other share option 
schemes of the Company, shall not exceed 15% of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) from 
time to time. 

The PSP shall continue in force at the discretion of the RC, subject to a maximum period of 10 years commencing 
from 9 May 2013, provided always that the PSP may continue beyond the above stipulated period with the approval 
of Shareholders in general meeting and of any relevant authorities which may then be required. 

Details of the awards granted under the PSP are as follows:

Aggregate 
number of 

shares 
under the 

PSP granted
since 

commencement 
of the PSP 

to 
31 December 

2016

Aggregate 
number of 

shares 
under the 

PSP Awards
as at

1 January 
2016

Aggregate 
number of 

shares 
under the

PSP Awards 
granted 

during the 
financial 

year ended 
31 December 

20161

Aggregate 
number of 

shares 
under the 

PSP Awards
lapsed 

during the 
financial 

year ended 
31 December 

2016

Aggregate 
number of 

shares 
under the 

PSP Awards 
released 

upon vesting 
during the 
financial 

year ended 
31 December 

2016

Aggregate 
number of 

shares
under the 

PSP Awards 
outstanding 

as at 
31 December 

2016

Controlling shareholders and/or their associates
Mr Lim Chap Huat
2014 PSP Award 2,357,712 1,414,712 – – 707,356 707,356

2015 PSP Award 2,003,782
Up to 

2,730,000 – 726,218 800,644 1,203,138

2016 PSP Award
Up to 

2,916,000 –
Up to 

2,916,000 – –
Up to 

2,916,000

Director of the Company
Mr Ho Toon Bah
2014 PSP Award 2,346,240 1,408,240 – – 704,120 704,120

2015 PSP Award 1,870,545
Up to 

2,800,000 – 929,455 746,880 1,123,665

2016 PSP Award
Up to 

3,005,000 –
Up to 

3,005,000 – –
Up to 

3,005,000

Other Participants
2014 PSP Award 960,000 504,000 – – 252,000 252,000

2015 PSP Award –
Up to 

1,252,000 – 1,252,000 – –

2016 PSP Award
Up to 

1,775,000 –
Up to 

1,775,000 – –
Up to 

1,775,000

1 The aggregate number of ordinary shares to be awarded to the participants will be up to a maximum of 7,696,000 based on 
the achievement of certain predetermined performance targets as determined by the RC or otherwise in accordance with the 
rules of the PSP. For the avoidance of doubt, no shares will be awarded to the participants pursuant to the PSP if the Group is 
unprofitable during the relevant performance period.
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SHARE PLANS (CONTINUED)

(b) Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan (continued)

(i) Performance share awards granted for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (“2014 PSP Awards”)

During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, 2014 PSP Awards in respect of an aggregate of up to 
6,269,000 ordinary shares in the Company were granted to the relevant participants on 22 August 2014. The 
grant of the 2014 PSP Award to Mr Lim Chap Huat, a controlling shareholder of the Company, was conditional 
on independent shareholders’ approval for the participation by and grant of the 2014 PSP Award to him. Such 
approval was obtained on 10 October 2014. The 2014 PSP Awards are subject to the accomplishment of certain 
performance targets set over the performance period for the financial year ended 31 December 2014. Arising 
from the 2014 PSP Awards, ordinary shares will be released provided the respective participants have remained 
in the employment of the Group up to the respective release dates.

Subsequent to the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the grant of 2014 PSP Awards were reviewed by the 
RC on 16 February 2015, taking into consideration, among others, the performance of the participants of the 
2014 PSP Awards for the financial year ended 31 December 2014. Based on such review, the number of shares 
awarded under the 2014 PSP Awards amounted to 5,663,952 shares, and 605,048 shares under the 2014 PSP 
Awards have lapsed.

The vesting period of the respective tranches of the 2014 PSP Awards amounting to 40%, 30% and 30% is from 
22 August 2014 to their release dates which are within one month from the issuance of the audited financial 
statement of the Group for FY2014, FY2015 and FY2016 respectively. The 2014 PSP Awards will be released 
provided the respective participants have remained in the employment of the Group up to the respective release 
dates. As at 31 December 2014, no shares under the 2014 PSP Awards have been released upon vesting.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, 1,663,476 shares (2015: 2,265,000 shares) have been issued 
by virtue of the release of the awards under the 2014 PSP Awards.

(ii) Performance share awards granted for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 (“2015 PSP Awards”)

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, 2015 PSP Awards in respect of an aggregate of up to 
6,782,000 ordinary shares in the Company were granted to the relevant participants on 31 March 2015. The 
grant of the 2015 PSP Award to Mr Lim Chap Huat, a controlling shareholder of the Company, was conditional 
on independent shareholders’ approval for the grant of the 2015 PSP Award to him. Such approval was obtained 
on 24 April 2015. The 2015 PSP Awards are subject to the accomplishment of certain performance targets set 
over the performance period for the financial year ended 31 December 2015. Arising from the 2015 PSP Awards, 
ordinary shares or cash at the discretion of the RC will be released provided the respective participants have 
remained in the employment of the Group up to the respective release dates.

Subsequent to the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the grant of 2015 PSP Awards were reviewed by the 
RC on 24 February 2016, taking into consideration, among others, the performance of the participants of the 
2015 PSP Awards for the financial year ended 31 December 2015. Based on such review, the number of shares 
awarded under the 2015 PSP Awards amounted to 3,874,327 shares, and 2,907,673 shares under the 2015 PSP 
Awards have lapsed.
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SHARE PLANS (CONTINUED)

(b) Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan (continued)

(ii) Performance share awards granted for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 (“2015 PSP Awards”) (continued)

The vesting period of the respective tranches of the 2015 PSP Awards amounting to 40%, 30% and 30% is from 
31 March 2015 to their release dates which are within one month from the issuance of the audited financial 
statement of the Group for FY2015, FY2016 and FY2017 respectively. The 2015 PSP Awards will be released 
provided the respective participants have remained in the employment of the Group up to the respective release 
dates. As at 31 December 2015, no shares under the 2015 PSP Awards have been released upon vesting.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, 1,547,524 shares have been issued by virtue of the release 
of the awards under the 2015 PSP Awards.

(iii) Performance share awards granted for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 (“2016 PSP Awards”) 

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, 2016 PSP Awards in respect of an aggregate of up to 
7,696,000 ordinary shares in the Company were granted to the relevant participants on 18 March 2016. The 
grant of the 2016 PSP Award to Mr Lim Chap Huat, a controlling shareholder of the Company, was conditional 
on independent shareholders’ approval for the grant of the 2016 PSP Award to him. Such approval was obtained 
on 26 April 2016. The 2016 PSP Awards are subject to the accomplishment of certain performance targets set 
over the performance period for the financial year ended 31 December 2016. Arising from the 2016 PSP Awards, 
ordinary shares or cash at the discretion of the RC will be released provided the respective participants have 
remained in the employment of the Group up to the respective release dates.

Subsequent to the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the grant of 2016 PSP Awards were reviewed by the 
RC on 22 February 2017, taking into consideration, among others, the performance of the participants of the 
2016 PSP Awards for the financial year ended 31 December 2016. Based on such review, there were no shares 
awarded under the 2016 PSP Awards, and 7,696,000 shares under the 2016 PSP Awards have lapsed.

The vesting period of the respective tranches of the 2016 PSP Awards amounting to 40%, 30% and 30% is from 
18 March 2016 to their release dates which are within one month from the issuance of the audited financial 
statement of the Group for FY2016, FY2017 and FY2018 respectively. The 2016 PSP Awards will be released 
provided the respective participants have remained in the employment of the Group up to the respective release 
dates. As at 31 December 2016, no shares under the 2016 PSP Awards have been released upon vesting.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, no shares have been issued by virtue of the release of the 
awards under the 2016 PSP Awards.

Other than Mr Lim Chap Huat, none of the participants in relation to the PSP Awards are controlling shareholders 
of the Company and their associates and none of the participants have received 5% or more of the total number 
of shares under the PSP.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The members of the Audit Committee at the end of the financial year were as follows:

Mr Poon Hon Thang (Chairman)
Mr Tan Jee Ming
Mr Teo Chee Seng

All members of the Audit Committee were independent directors. 

The Audit Committee carried out its functions in accordance with Section 201B(5) of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 of Singapore. 
In performing those functions, the Committee reviewed:

•  the scope and the results of internal audit procedures with the internal auditor;

•  the audit plan of the Company’s independent auditor and any recommendations on internal accounting controls 
arising from the statutory audit; 

•  the assistance given by the Company’s management to the independent auditor; and

•  the balance sheet of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 
31 December 2016 before their submission to the Board of Directors.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that the independent auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, be 
nominated for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The independent auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, has expressed its willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the directors

Lim Chap Huat
Director

Ho Toon Bah
Director

29 March 2017
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Soilbuild Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”) 
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and the balance sheet of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSs”) so as to give 
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Company as at 31 
December 2016 and of the consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows 
of the Group for the financial year ended on that date.

What we have audited

The financial statements of the Company and the Group comprise:
• the balance sheet of the Group as at 31 December 2016;
• the balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2016;
• the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
• the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
• the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended; and
• the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) Code 
of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
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Our Audit Approach

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the 
accompanying financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective judgments; for 
example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events 
that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, 
including among other matters consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material 
misstatement due to fraud.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2016. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters.

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Accounting for construction contracts
Refer to Note 3 (Critical accounting estimates, 
assumptions and judgements) and Note 13 
(Construction contracts) to the financial statements

During the financial year ended 31 December 
2016, revenue from construction contract 
amounted to S$399,034,000 and it represented 
99.8% of the total revenue of the Group. 
 
The Group accounts for its contract revenue 
and contract costs by reference to the stage 
of completion of the contract activity at the 
end of each financial year (“percentage-of-
completion method”) in accordance with FRS 11 
Construction Contracts. 

Significant judgement is required to estimate 
the total construction contract costs, variations 
or claims recognised as contract revenue, and 
provision for liquidated damages that will affect 
the stage of completion and revenue and profit 
margins recognised from construction contracts. 
Accordingly, we have assessed the accounting for 
construction contracts as a key audit matter. 

We have performed the following audit procedures to address the key 
audit matter:

We have obtained an understanding of the projects under 
construction through discussions with management and examination 
of project documentation (including contracts and correspondences 
with customers). 

In relation to total contract revenue, our audit procedures include the 
following:

(a)  Traced total contract sums to contract and variation orders 
entered into by the Group and its customer;

(b)  Traced value of work performed to the surveyor/architect 
certification and assessed the competence of the surveyor/ 
architect; 

(c)  Recomputed the percentage of completion;

(d)  Assessed the adequacy of provision for liquidated damages to be 
net off against contract revenue recognised (where relevant); and

 
(e)  Assessed the reasonableness of the revenue recognised via 

discussion with the project teams and obtaining corroborating 
evidence such as correspondences with the customer.
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Our Audit Approach (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Accounting for construction contracts 
(continued)

In relation to total contract cost, our audit procedures include the 
following:

(a)  Reviewed the actual costs incurred by tracing to supplier invoices 
or sub-contractor progress billings; and

(b)  Reviewed management’s estimates of total construction costs 
and cost to complete via the following:

(i) Substantiated to quotations and contracts entered for 
sub-contracting costs. 

(ii) Reviewed the estimation of the materials, labour and other 
construction costs with reference to the progress of the 
project

(iii) Discussed with the project team and comparing the 
percentage of costs incurred over the total contract costs 
against the percentage of completion. 

Based on the audit procedures performed, we have assessed 
management’s estimates to be reasonable. 

We have also recomputed the cumulative contract revenue and the 
contract revenue for the current financial year as well as the amount 
of foreseeable loss (where relevant) for each project, and traced to 
the accounting records with no exceptions noted. 

We have also assessed the disclosures in the financial statements in 
relation to the sensitivity of contract revenue and contract costs of 
uncompleted contracts to the construction contract estimates to be 
appropriate.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the sections of the annual 
report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed 
on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient 
to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and 
transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair 
financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. 

We also:

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s 
internal control.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

•  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters 
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiary 
corporations incorporated in Singapore, of which we are the auditors, have been properly kept in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Lam Hock Choon. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 29 March 2017

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT 
To The Members of Soilbuild Construction Group Ltd.
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Note 2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Revenue 4 399,647 328,270

Cost of sales (377,316) (297,651)

Gross profit 22,331 30,619

Other income 7(a) 2,384 1,536

Other gains/(losses) - net 7(b) 274 (179)

Expenses

 - Administrative (8,587) (9,723)

 - Marketing (39) (79)

 - Finance 8 (33) –

 - Others (1,947) (1,052)

Share of profit of joint ventures 16 27 58

Profit before income tax 14,410 21,180

Income tax expense 9(a) (2,534) (2,618)

Net profit 11,876 18,562

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Currency translation differences arising from consolidation 65 54

Total comprehensive income 11,941 18,616

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 11,941 18,616

Earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the  Company (cents 
per share) 10

 - Basic 1.78 2.79

 - Diluted 1.71 2.75

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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Group

Note 2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11 32,830 6,721 5,312 228

Trade and other receivables 12 103,427 136,976 42,094 53,488

Other current assets 14 2,175 1,277 6,512 14

138,432 144,974 53,918 53,730

Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables 12 14,918 11,135 – –

Other non-current assets 14 10,000 10,000 – –

Investments in subsidiaries 15 – – 23,270 19,770

Investments in joint ventures 16 2,784 2,774 – –

Property, plant and equipment 17 23,474 17,217 – –

Intangible assets 18 179 224 – –

Land lease prepayment 19 25,535 26,423 – –

76,890 67,773 23,270 19,770

Total assets 215,322 212,747 77,188 73,500

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20(a) 112,702 117,506 378 1,433

Current income tax liabilities   9(b) 2,016 2,432 145 125

Provision for other liabilities 20(b) 1,119 1,351 – –

115,837 121,289 523 1,558

Non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities 21 1,394 585 – –

1,394 585 – –

Total liabilities 117,231 121,874 523 1,558

NET ASSETS 98,091 90,873 76,665 71,942

EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to
 equity holders of the Company
Share capital 22 58,798 58,047 58,798 58,047

Capital reserve 23 (1,070) (1,070) – –

Currency translation reserve 24 116 51 – –

Performance share plan reserve 25 719 964 719 964

Warrant reserve 26 8,161 – 8,161 –

Retained profits 27 31,367 32,881 8,987 12,931

TOTAL EQUITY 98,091 90,873 76,665 71,942

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

BALANCE 
SHEETS 
As at 31 December 2016
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Note
Share

capital
$’000 

Capital 
reserve

$’000

Currency 
translation 

reserve
$’000

Performance 
share plan 

reserve
$’000

Warrant
Reserve

$’000

Retained 
profits
$’000

Total
equity
$’000

2016
Beginning of financial 

year 58,047 (1,070) 51 964 – 32,881 90,873

Profit for the year – – – – – 11,876 11,876

Other comprehensive 
income for the year – – 65 – – – 65

Total comprehensive 
income for the year – – 65 – – 11,876 11,941

Issuance of shares 
pursuant to 
the Soilbuild 
Performance Share 
Plan 22, 25 748 – – (748) – – –

Issuance of warrants 26 – – – – 8,368 – 8,368

Issuance of shares 
pursuant to issuance 
of warrants 22, 26 3 – – – (1) – 2

Expenses relating to 
preferential offering 
of warrants 26 – – – – (206) – (206)

Share-based 
compensation 
expenses 25 – – – 503 – – 503

Dividends paid 28 – – – – – (13,390) (13,390)

Total transactions 
with owners, 
recognised directly 
in equity 751 – – (245) 8,161 (13,390) (4,723)

End of financial year 58,798 (1,070) 116 719 8,161 31,367 98,091

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY 
For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company 

Note
Share

capital
$’000 

Capital 
reserve

$’000

Currency 
translation 

reserve
$’000

Performance 
share plan 

reserve
$’000

Retained 
profits
$’000

Total
equity
$’000

2015
Beginning of financial 

year 57,490 (1,070) (3) 408 27,644 84,469

Profit for the year – – – – 18,562 18,562

Other comprehensive 
income for the year – – 54 – – 54

Total comprehensive 
income for the year – – 54 – 18,562 18,616

Issuance of shares 
pursuant to the Soilbuild 
Performance Share Plan 22, 25 557 – – (557) – –

Share-based compensation 
expenses 25 – – – 1,113 – 1,113

Dividends paid 28 – – – – (13,325) (13,325)

Total transactions with 
owners, recognised 
directly in equity 557 – – 556 (13,325) (12,212)

End of financial year 58,047 (1,070) 51 964 32,881 90,873

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY 
For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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Note 2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit 11,876 18,562
Adjustments for:
 - Amortisation of intangible assets 68 56
 - Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,559 2,597
 - Amortisation of land lease prepayment 888 222
 - Share-based compensation expense 503 1,113
 - Interest income (45) (222)
 - Interest expense 33 –
 - Income tax expense 2,534 2,618
 - Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 304 119
 - Share of profit of joint ventures (27) (58)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 18,693 25,007

Changes in working capital:
 - Trade and other receivables 29,766 (58,916)
 - Other current assets (898) (27)
 - Trade and other payables (4,804) 38,745
 - Provision for other liabilities (232) (41)
Cash generated from operations 42,525 4,768

Income tax paid (2,141) (3,230)
Net cash provided by operating activities 40,384 1,538

Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment (9,999) (7,076)
Additions of intangible assets (23) (101)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 878 810
Additions of land lease prepayment – (26,645)
Distributions received from a joint venture 17 –
Interest received 45 222
Net cash used in investing activities (9,082) (32,790)

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to equity holders of the Company 28 (13,390) (13,325)
Proceeds from issuance of shares 3 –
Proceeds from bank loans 12,800 –
Repayment of bank loans (12,800) –
Proceeds from preferential offering of warrants 8,368 –
Expenses relating to preferential offering of warrants (206) –
Interest paid (33) –
Net cash used in financing activities (5,258) (13,325)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 26,044 (44,577)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 11 6,721 51,247
Effects of currency translation on cash and cash equivalents 65 51
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 11 32,830 6,721

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS 
For the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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7heVe noteV Iorm an inteJral part oI and Vhould be read in conMunction Zith the accompanyinJ conVolidated financial 
statements.

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Soilbuild Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”) is listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited 
�Ȋ6*;�67ȋ� and iV incorporated and domiciled in 6inJapore� 7he addreVV oI itV reJiVtered oɝce iV 2� &hanJi 6outh 
Street 1, Singapore 486059.

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set 
out in Note 15. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

7heVe financial VtatementV haYe been prepared in accordance Zith 6inJapore Financial ReportinJ 6tandardV �ȊFR6ȋ� 
under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

7he preparation oI financial VtatementV in conIormity Zith FR6 reTuireV manaJement to e[erciVe itV MudJment in the 
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates 
and assumptions. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and 
eVtimateV are ViJnificant to the financial VtatementV� are diVcloVed in 1ote 3�

ΖnterpretationV and amendmentV to publiVhed VtandardV e΍ectiYe in 2016

On 1 January 2016, the Group adopted the new or amended FRS and Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) that are 
mandatory Ior application Ior the financial year� &hanJeV to the *roupȇV accountinJ policieV haYe been made aV 
required, in accordance with the transitional provisions in the respective FRS and INT FRS.

The adoption of these new or amended FRS and INT FRS did not result in substantial changes to the Group’s and 
&ompanyȇV accountinJ policieV and had no material e΍ectV on the amountV reported Ior the current or prior financial 
years.

2.2 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and rendering of 
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is presented, net of goods and services tax, rebates 
and discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue and related cost can be reliably measured, when it is 
probable that the collectability oI the related receiYables is reasonably assured and Zhen the specific criteria Ior each 
of the Group’s activities are met as follows:

 (a) Revenue from construction contracts 

Please refer to Note 2.8 for the accounting policy for revenue from construction contracts.

 (b) Rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of project management services is recognised over the period in which the services are 
rendered.

 (c) Rental income

Rental income from operating leases on investment properties (net of any incentives given to the lessees) is 
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

 (d) Interest income

Ζnterest income is recoJnised on an accrual basis usinJ the e΍ectiYe interest method.

2.3 Group accounting 

 (a) Subsidiaries 

(i) Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has control. The Group 
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with 
the entity and has the ability to a΍ect those returns throuJh its poZer oYer the entity. Subsidiaries are Iully 
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the 
date on that control ceases.

Ζn preparinJ the consolidated financial statements� transactions� balances and unrealised Jains on 
transactions between group entities are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but are 
considered an impairment indicator of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been 
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Group accounting (continued)

 (a) Subsidiaries (continued)

  (ii) Acquisition of businesses

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group.

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair value of the assets 
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration 
transferred also includes any contingent consideration arrangement and any pre-existing equity interest 
in the subsidiary measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Ζdentifiable aVVetV acTuired and liabilitieV and continJent liabilitieV aVVumed in a buVineVV combination are� 
with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree 
at the date of acquisition either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the 
acTuireeȇV net identifiable aVVetV�

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree 
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the 
identifiable net aVVetV acTuired iV recorded aV JoodZill� 

 (iii) Disposals of subsidiaries or businesses

When a change in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary results in a loss of control over the 
subsidiary, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary including any goodwill are derecognised. Amounts 
recoJniVed in other comprehenViYe income in reVpect oI that entity are alVo reclaVVified to profit or loVV or 
tranVIerred directly to retained profitV iI reTuired by a Vpecific 6tandard� 

Any retained intereVt in the entity iV remeaVured at Iair Yalue� 7he di΍erence betZeen the carryinJ amount 
oI the retained inYeVtment at the date Zhen control iV loVt and itV Iair Yalue iV recoJniVed in profit or loVV�

3leaVe reIer to 1ote 2�� Ior the accountinJ policy on inYeVtmentV in VubVidiarieV in the Veparate financial 
statements of the Company.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Group accounting (continued)

 (b) Joint ventures

Joint ventures are entities over which the Group has joint control as a result of contractual arrangement and 
rights to the net assets of the entities. 

ΖnYestments in Moint Yentures are accounted Ior in the consolidated financial statements usinJ the eTuity method 
of accounting less impairment losses, if any.

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter 
to recoJnise Groupȇs share oI its Moint Yenturesȇ post�acTuisition profits or losses oI the inYestee in profit or loss 
and its share of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee’s other comprehensive income. 
Dividends received or receivable from the joint ventures are recognised as a reduction of the carrying amount 
of the investments. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals to or exceeds its interest in the 
joint venture, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has legal or constructive obligations to 
maNe� or has made� payments on behalI oI the Moint Yenture. ΖI the Moint Yenture subseTuently reports profits� 
the Group resumes recoJnisinJ its share oI those profits only aIter its share oI the profits eTuals the share oI 
losses not recognised.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the 
Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides 
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. The accounting policies of joint ventures have been changed 
where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Investments in joint ventures are derecognised when the Group loses joint control. If the retained equity 
interest in the Iormer Moint Yenture is a financial asset� the retained eTuity interest is measured at Iair Yalue. 7he 
di΍erence betZeen the carryinJ amount oI the retained interest at the date Zhen Moint control is lost and its Iair 
Yalue and any proceeds on partial disposal is recoJnised in profit or loss.

3lease reIer to 1ote 2.� Ior the accountinJ policy on inYestments in Moint Yentures in the separate financial 
statements of the Company.

 (c) Joint operations

The Group’s joint operations are joint arrangements whereby the parties (the joint operators) that have joint 
control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations to the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.

The Group recognises, in relation to its interest in the joint operation:

•  its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;
•  its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;
•  its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation;
•  its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation; and
•  its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

When the Group sells or contributes assets to a joint operation, the Group recognises gains or losses on the sale 
or contribution of assets that is attributable to the interest of the other joint operators. The Group recognises 
the full amount of any loss when the sale or contribution of assets provides evidence of a reduction in the net 
realisable value, or an impairment loss, of those assets.



NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

Annual Report 2016

69

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Group accounting (continued)

 (c) Joint operations (continued)

The accounting policies of the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to the Group’s interest in a joint 
operation have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by 
the Group.

7he &ompany applieV the Vame accountinJ policy on Moint operationV in itV Veparate financial VtatementV�

2.4 Property, plant and equipment 

 (a) Measurement

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (Note 2.10). 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised includes its purchase price and any cost 
that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management.

 (b) Depreciation

Building under construction is not depreciated. 

Depreciation on others items of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to 
allocate their depreciable amounts over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Useful lives

Plant and equipment 5 - 10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Renovation, furniture and equipment 5 years

Computers 3 yearV

Containers 5 years

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment are 
reYieZed� and adMuVted aV appropriate� at the end oI each financial year� 7he e΍ectV oI any reYiVion are recoJniVed 
in profit or loVV Zhen the chanJeV ariVe�
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

 (c) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has already been recognised is added 
to the carryinJ amount oI the asset only Zhen it is probable that Iuture economic benefits associated Zith the 
item Zill ȵoZ to the entity and the cost oI the item can be measured reliably. $ll other repair and maintenance 
e[penses are recoJnised in profit or loss Zhen incurred. 

 (d) Disposal 

2n disposal oI an item oI property� plant and eTuipment� the di΍erence betZeen the disposal proceeds and its 
carryinJ amount is recoJnised in profit or loss Zithin Ȋ2ther Jains��losses� � netȋ. 

2.5 Land lease prepayment

Land lease prepayment is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 
$mortisation is recoJnised in profit or loss on a straiJht�line basis oYer the lease term oI 30 years.

2.6 Intangible assets

 Acquired computer software licences

Acquired computer software licences are initially capitalised at cost which includes the purchase price (net of 
any discounts and rebates) and other directly attributable cost of preparing the asset for its intended use. Direct 
expenditure including employee costs, which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its 
specifications and Zhich can be reliably measured is added to the oriJinal cost oI the soItZare. Costs associated Zith 
maintaining the computer software are recognised as expenses when incurred.

Computer software licences are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses �1ote 2.10�. 7hese costs are amortised to profit or loss usinJ the straiJht�line method oYer the 
shorter oI their estimated economic liIe oI fiYe years and the licence period.

The amortisation period and amortisation method of intangible assets other than goodwill are reviewed at least at the 
end oI each financial year. 7he e΍ects oI any reYision are recoJnised in profit or loss Zhen the chanJes arise.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Borrowing costs 

%orroZinJ coVtV are recoJniVed in profit or loVV uVinJ the e΍ectiYe intereVt method�

2.8 Construction contracts 

A conVtruction contract iV a contract Vpecifically neJotiated Ior the conVtruction oI an aVVet or a combination oI aVVetV 
that are closely interrelated or interdependent in terms of their design, technology and functions or their ultimate 
purpose or use.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and contract costs are 
recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at 
the end oI each financial year �ȊpercentaJe�oI�completion methodȋ�� :hen the outcome oI a conVtruction contract 
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to 
be recoverable. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is 
recognised as an expense immediately.

Contract revenue comprises the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and variations in the contract work 
and claims that can be measured reliably. A variation or a claim is recognised as contract revenue when it is probable 
that the customer will approve the variation or negotiations have reached an advanced stage such that it is probable 
that the customer will accept the claim.

The stage of completion is measured by reference to the value of work performed relative to the total contract value 
aV determined by the architectVȇ certificateV� 7he Yalue oI ZorN perIormed iV determined by the architectV baVed on 
physical surveys of the construction works completed. Costs incurred in connection with future activity on a contract 
are excluded from costs incurred to date when determining the stage of completion of a contract. Such costs are 
shown as construction contract work-in-progress on the balance sheet unless it is not probable that such contract 
costs are recoverable from the customers, in which case, such costs are recognised as an expense immediately. 

At the end oI each financial year� the aJJreJated coVtV incurred pluV recoJniVed profitV �leVV recoJniVed loVVeV� on each 
contract iV compared aJainVt the proJreVV billinJV� :here coVtV incurred pluV the recoJniVed profitV �leVV recoJniVed 
losses) exceed progress billings, the balance is presented as due from customers on construction contracts, within 
Ȋtrade and other receiYableVȋ� :here proJreVV billinJV e[ceed coVtV incurred pluV recoJniVed profitV �leVV recoJniVed 
losses), the balance is presented as due to customers on construction contracts, within “trade and other payables”.

Progress billings not yet paid by customers and retentions by customers are included within “trade and other 
receivables”. Advances received are included within “trade and other payables”.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses (Note 2.10) 
in the Companyȇs balance sheet. 2n disposal oI inYestments in such inYestments� the di΍erence betZeen disposal 
proceeds and the carryinJ amounts oI the inYestments are recoJnised in profit or loss.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

 Intangible assets 
 Land lease prepayment
 Property, plant and equipment
 Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Intangible assets, land lease prepayment, property, plant and equipment and investments in subsidiaries and joint 
ventures are tested for impairment whenever there is any objective evidence or indication that these assets may be 
impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and 
the Yalue�in�use� is determined on an indiYidual asset basis unless the asset does not Jenerate cash ȵoZs that are 
largely independent of those from other assets. If this is the case, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU 
to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of the asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of 
the asset �or CG8� is reduced to its recoYerable amount. 7he di΍erence betZeen the carryinJ amount and recoYerable 
amount is recoJnised as an impairment loss in profit or loss. 

An impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is reversed if, there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of this 
asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss 
been recognised for the asset in prior years. 

$ reYersal oI impairment loss Ior an asset other than JoodZill is recoJnised in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Loans and receivables

 Cash and cash equivalents
 Trade and other receivables
 Deposits

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and deposits are initially recognised at their fair values plus 
tranVaction coVtV and VubVeTuently carried at amortiVed coVt uVinJ the e΍ectiYe intereVt method� leVV accumulated 
impairment losses. 

7he &ompany aVVeVVeV at each balance Vheet date Zhether there iV obMectiYe eYidence that theVe financial aVVetV are 
impaired and recoJniVeV an alloZance Ior impairment Zhen Vuch eYidence e[iVtV� 6iJnificant financial diɝcultieV oI 
the debtor� probability that the debtor Zill enter banNruptcy and deIault or ViJnificant delay in paymentV are obMectiYe 
eYidence that theVe financial aVVetV are impaired�

The carrying amount of these assets is reduced through the use of an impairment allowance account which is 
calculated aV the di΍erence betZeen the carryinJ amount and the preVent Yalue oI eVtimated Iuture caVh ȵoZV� 
diVcounted at the oriJinal e΍ectiYe intereVt rate�

These assets are presented as current assets except for those that are expected to be realised later than 12 months 
after the balance sheet date, which are presented as non-current assets.

2.12 Borrowings

Borrowings are presented as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement for at 
least 12 months after the balance sheet date, in which case they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value (net of transaction costs) and subsequently carried at amortised cost. 
Any di΍erence betZeen the proceedV �net oI tranVaction coVtV� and the redemption Yalue iV recoJniVed in profit or 
loVV oYer the period oI the borroZinJV uVinJ the e΍ectiYe intereVt method�

2.13 Trade and other payables

7rade and other payableV repreVent liabilitieV Ior JoodV and VerYiceV proYided to the *roup prior to the end oI financial 
year Zhich are unpaid� 7hey are claVVified aV current liabilitieV iI payment iV due Zithin one year or leVV �or in the normal 
operating cycle of the business if longer). Otherwise, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the 
e΍ectiYe intereVt method�
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.14 Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities

7he Iair Yalues oI financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost are estimated by discountinJ the Iuture 
contractual cash ȵoZs at the current marNet interest rates that are aYailable to the Group Ior similar financial 
instruments.

7he Iair Yalues oI current financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost appro[imate their carryinJ amounts. 

2.15 Leases 

 (a) When the Group is the lessee: 

Operating leases

Leases Zhere substantially all risNs and reZards incidental to oZnership are retained by the lessors are classified 
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessors are 
recoJnised in profit or loss on a straiJht�line basis oYer the period oI the lease. 

ContinJent rents are recoJnised as an e[pense in profit or loss Zhen incurred.

 (b) When the Group is the lessor:

Operating leases

Leases Zhere the Group retains substantially all risNs and reZards incidental to oZnership are classified as 
operating leases. Rental income from operating leases (net of any incentives given to the lessees) is recognised 
in profit or loss on a straiJht line basis oYer the lease term. 

2.16 Income taxes 

Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognised at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered 
from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end 
oI financial year.

DeIerred income ta[ is recoJnised Ior all temporary di΍erences arisinJ betZeen the ta[ bases oI assets and liabilities 
and their carryinJ amounts in the financial statements e[cept Zhen the deIerred income ta[ arises Irom the initial 
recoJnition oI JoodZill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and a΍ects neither 
accountinJ nor ta[able profit or loss at the time oI the transaction.

$ deIerred income ta[ liability is recoJnised on temporary di΍erences arisinJ on inYestments in subsidiaries and Moint 
Yentures� e[cept Zhere the Group is able to control the timinJ oI the reYersal oI the temporary di΍erence and it is 
probable that the temporary di΍erence Zill not reYerse in the Ioreseeable Iuture.

$ deIerred income ta[ asset is recoJnised to the e[tent that it is probable that Iuture ta[able profit Zill be aYailable 
aJainst Zhich the deductible temporary di΍erences and ta[ losses can be utilised.
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Income taxes (continued)

Deferred income tax is measured:

(i) at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred 
income tax liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
by the end oI financial year� and

(ii) based on the tax consequence that will follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of 
financial year� to recoYer or Vettle the carryinJ amountV oI itV aVVetV and liabilitieV�

&urrent and deIerred income ta[eV are recoJniVed aV income or e[penVe in profit or loVV� e[cept to the e[tent that the 
tax arises from a business combination or a transaction which is recognised directly in equity. 

The Group accounts for investment tax credits (for example, productivity and innovation credit) similar to accounting 
for other tax credits where deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable 
that Iuture ta[able profitV Zill be aYailable aJainVt Zhich the unuVed ta[ creditV can be utiliVed�

2.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it 
iV more liNely than not that an outȵoZ oI reVourceV Zill be reTuired to Vettle the obliJation� and the amount haV been 
reliably estimated.

The Group recognises the estimated liability to rectify defects still under warranty at the balance sheet date. The 
provision is calculated based on historical experience of the level of defects.

2.18 Employee compensation 

(mployee benefitV are recoJniVed aV an e[penVe� unleVV the coVt TualifieV to be capitaliVed aV an aVVet�

 �a� Defined contribution planV

Defined contribution planV are poVt�employment benefit planV under Zhich the *roup payV fi[ed contributionV 
into separate entities such as the Central Provident Fund on a mandatory or contractual basis. The Group has 
no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. 

 (b) Short-term compensated absences

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made 
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the 
financial year�

 (c) Bonus plans 

The Group recognised a liability and an expense for bonuses based on a formula that takes into consideration 
the profit attributable to eTuity holderV oI the &ompany aIter certain adMuVtmentV� 7he *roup recoJniVeV a 
provision where contractually obliged to pay or when there is a past practice that has created a constructive 
obligation to pay.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Employee compensation (continued)

 (d) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan. The value of the employee services 
received in exchange for the grant of shares is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in the 
share-based compensation reserve over the vesting period. The total amount to be recognised over the vesting 
period is determined by reference to the fair value of the performance shares granted on the date of the grant. 
Non-market vesting conditions are included in the estimation of the number of shares under the share-based 
compensation plan that are expected to be released on the vesting date. 

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of shares under the share-based 
compensation plan that are expected to be released on the vesting date and recognises the impact of the 
revision of the estimates in the statement of comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to the 
Performance Share Plan reserve over the remaining vesting period.

When the shares are released, the related balance previously recognised in the share-based compensation 
reserve are credited to share capital account, when new ordinary shares are issued, or to the treasury shares 
account, when treasury shares are re-issued to the employees.

2.19 Currency translation 

 (a) Functional and presentation currency 

Ζtems included in the financial statements oI each entity in the Group are measured usinJ the currency oI the 
primary economic enYironment in Zhich the entity operates �the ȊIunctional currencyȋ�. 7he financial statements 
are presented in Singapore Dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation 
currency.

 (b) Transactions and balances

Transactions in a currency other than the functional currency (“foreign currency”) are translated into the 
Iunctional currency usinJ the e[chanJe rates at the dates oI the transactions. Currency translation di΍erences 
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in IoreiJn currencies at the closinJ rates at the balance sheet date are recoJnised in profit or loss. 

Non-monetary items measured at fair values in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the 
date when the fair values are determined.
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Currency translation 

 �c� 7ranVlation oI *roup entitieVȇ financial VtatementV

7he reVultV and financial poVition oI all the *roup entitieV �none oI Zhich haV the currency oI a hyperinȵationary 
economy� that haYe a Iunctional currency di΍erent Irom the preVentation currency are tranVlated into the 
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities are translated at the closing exchange rates at the reporting date;

(ii) income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless the average is not a reasonable 
appro[imation oI the cumulatiYe e΍ect oI the rateV preYailinJ on the tranVaction dateV� in Zhich caVe 
income and expenses are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions); and

�iii� all reVultinJ currency tranVlation di΍erenceV are recoJniVed in other comprehenViYe income and 
accumulated in the currency tranVlation reVerYe� 7heVe currency tranVlation di΍erenceV are reclaVVified to 
profit or loVV on diVpoVal or partial diVpoVal oI the entity JiYinJ riVe to Vuch reVerYe�

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operations are treated as assets and 
liabilities of the foreign operations and translated at the closing rates at the reporting date.

2.20 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to senior management 
who are responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

2.21 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpoVe oI preVentation in the conVolidated Vtatement oI caVh ȵoZV� caVh and caVh eTuiYalentV include caVh 
on hand� and depoVitV Zith financial inVtitutionV Zhich are VubMect to an inViJnificant riVN oI chanJe in Yalue�

2.22 Share capital 

2rdinary VhareV are claVVified aV eTuity� Ζncremental coVtV directly attributable to the iVVuance oI neZ ordinary VhareV 
are deducted against the share capital account.

2.23 Warrants

3roceedV Irom ZarrantV iVVued that meet the definition oI an eTuity inVtrument are claVVified aV Zarrant reVerYe 
under equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new warrants are deducted against the warrant 
reserve.

When the warrants are subsequently exercised for the issuance of new ordinary shares, the proceeds from the 
ZarrantV iVVued are reclaVVified Irom the Zarrant reVerYe to Vhare capital�

:hen the ZarrantV haYe e[pired� the proceedV Irom the ZarrantV iVVued are reclaVVified Irom the Zarrant reVerYe to 
retained earnings.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.24 Dividends

Dividends to the Company’s shareholders are recognised when the dividends are approved for payment. 

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised as a receivable at their fair value when there is reasonable assurance that 
the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all the attached conditions.

Government grants receivable are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related 
costs which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants relating to expenses are 
shown separately as other income.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS 

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

SiJnificant MudJement is used to estimate the total construction contract costs� Yariations or claims recoJnised as 
contract reYenue and proYision Ior liTuidated damaJes that Zill a΍ect the reYenue and profit marJins recoJnised 
from construction contracts. In making the judgement, the Group evaluates and places reliance on past experience, 
estimates from quantity surveyors and value of work performed as determined by the architects.

ΖI the estimated total construction cost oI uncompleted contracts increase�decrease by �� Irom manaJementȇs 
estimates� the e΍ects on the Groupȇs net profit aIter ta[ Zill be as IolloZs�

Increase/(Decrease)

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Estimated total construction cost

 � increased by �� (22,116) �11�3���

 � decreased by �� 23�2�� 11,911

ΖI the estimated total construction reYenue oI uncompleted contracts increase�decrease by �� Irom manaJementȇs 
estimates� the e΍ects on the Groupȇs net profit aIter ta[ Zill be as IolloZs�

Increase/(Decrease)

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Estimated total construction revenue

 � increased by �� 2��31� 13�0��

 � decreased by �� (24,175) (12,552)
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4. REVENUE 

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Revenue from construction contracts 3���03� 32��032

Revenue from rendering of project management services 613 1�23�

Total revenue 3���6�� 32��2�0

5. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Materials, sub-contractors and other construction costs 33��11� 261,125

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18) 68 56

Amortisation of land lease prepayment (Note 19) 888 222

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 17) 2,559 2,597

Total depreciation and amortisation 3��1� 2,875

Employee compensation (Note 6) 40,062 3���11

Auditors’ fees:

Fees on audit services paid/payable to:

- Auditor of the Company 187 187

- Other auditors 5 5

Fees on non-audit services paid/payable to:

- Auditor of the Company 42 60

- Other auditors 33 33

Rental expense 1�0�3 1,065

Transportation expenses 508 �3�

Other expenses 3�3�� 2,907

Total cost of sales, administrative, marketing and other 
 operating expenses 3������ 30���0�

6.  EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Wages and salaries 3����3 36���6

Employer’s contribution to Central Provident Fund 2,066 1,842

Share-based compensation expense (Note 25) �03 1�113

(mployee compenVation recoJniVed in profit or loVV �1ote �� 40,062 3���11
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7(a). OTHER INCOME

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Income from sale of materials 131 33
Interest income 45 222
Service income 668 471
Rental income 474 289
Government grants 671 404
Others 3�� 117

2�3�� 1��36

7(b). OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET

Group

2016
$’000

2015 
$’000

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment �30�� (119)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) - net 578 (60)

274 (179)

8. FINANCE EXPENSES

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Interest expense on bank borrowings 33 -
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9.  INCOME TAXES

(a) Income tax expense

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

7a[ e[penVe attributable to profit iV made up oI�

3rofit Irom current financial year�

 - Current income tax 1��32 2�3�2

 - Deferred income tax (Note 21) 655 79

2,587 2,451

�2Yer��under proYiVion in prior financial yearV�

 - Current income tax (207) 123

 - Deferred income tax (Note 21) 154 44

2��3� 2,618

7he ta[ e[penVe on the *roupȇV profit beIore ta[ di΍erV Irom the theoretical amount that Zould ariVe uVinJ the 
Singapore standard rate of income tax as follows:

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

3rofit beIore ta[ 14,410 21,180

6hare oI profit oI Moint YentureV� net oI ta[ (27) (58)

3rofit beIore ta[ and Vhare oI profit oI Moint YentureV 1��3�3 21,122

7a[ calculated at ta[ rate oI 1�� �201�� 1��� 2,445 3���1

(΍ectV oI�

 � di΍erent ta[ rateV in other countrieV 167 36

 - Singapore statutory stepped income exemption �113� (90)

 - tax incentives (279) (1,415)

 - income not subject to tax (116) ��3�

 - expenses not deductible for tax purposes ��3 402

 - (over)/under provision of tax ��3� 167

Tax charge 2��3� 2,618
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9.  INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

 (b) Movements in current income tax liabilities

Group Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

%eJinninJ oI financial year 2��32 3�16� 125 41

Tax expense 1��32 2�3�2 13� 121

Income tax paid (2,141) �3�230� (125) (40)

�2Yer��under proYision in prior financial years (207) 123 6 3

(nd oI financial year 2,016 2��32 145 125

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

 (a) Basic earnings per share

%asic earninJs per share are calculated by diYidinJ the net profit attributable to eTuity holders oI the Company 
by the ZeiJhted aYeraJe number oI ordinary shares outstandinJ durinJ the financial year.

2016 2015

1et profit attributable to eTuity holders oI the Company ��ȇ000� 11,876 18,562

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
 for basic earnings per share (’000) 66���13 665,649

Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 1.78 2.79
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10. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

For the purpoVe oI calculatinJ diluted earninJV per Vhare� profit attributable to eTuity holderV oI the &ompany 
and the ZeiJhted aYeraJe number oI ordinary VhareV outVtandinJ are adMuVted Ior the e΍ectV oI all dilutiYe 
potential ordinary shares. The Company has two categories of dilutive potential ordinary share: Soilbuild 
Construction Performance Share Plan (“PSP”) and warrants.

For the PSP, the weighted average number of shares on issue has been adjusted as if all dilutive shares were 
granted and vested. The number of shares that could have been issued upon the vesting of all dilutive shares is 
added to the denominator as the number of shares issued for no consideration. No adjustment is made to the 
net profit� 

For the ZarrantV� the ZeiJhted aYeraJe number oI VhareV on iVVue haV been adMuVted Ior the dilutiYe e΍ectV oI 
the warrants. The expected proceeds from the exercise of the warrants are deemed to be used by the Company 
in purchasing as many of its ordinary shares as possible in the open market, using an average market price for 
the period. Since these shares are fairly priced and are neither dilutive nor anti-dilutive, they are ignored in the 
diluted earnings per share calculation. They are therefore, deducted from the number of shares issued under 
the warrants to give the number of shares deemed to be issued at no consideration. As these shares are dilutive, 
they are added to the number of ordinary shares outstanding in the computation of diluted earnings per share. 
1o adMuVtment iV made to the net profit�

2016 2015

1et profit attributable to eTuity holderV oI the &ompany ��ȇ000� 11,876 18,562

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
 for diluted earnings per share (’000) 6�3���� 674,607

Diluted earnings per share (cents per share) 1.71 2.75

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Cash at bank and on hand 32��30 6,721 ��312 228
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12.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Group Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Current

Trade receivables

 - Related companies 2,190 – – –

 - Related parties* 122 422 – –

 - Subsidiaries – – 6 6

 - A joint operator 197 6�36� – –

 - Non-related parties 2��1�3 28,860 – –

30�6�2 3��6�1 6 6

Less: Allowance for impairment of  
receiYables � non�related parties >1ote 30�b�@ (50) (50) – –

Trade receivables - net 30�632 3��601 6 6

Construction contracts 

 � Due Irom customers �1ote 13� 2��30� 61,489 – –

 � Due Irom related companies �1ote 13� 170 2,109 – –

 � Due Irom a Moint operator �1ote 13� ��3�� 9,459 – –

 - Due from related parties* �1ote 13� – 48 – –

33��2� �3�10� – –

Retentions

 � 5elated companies �1ote 13� 3�31� 2,899 – –

 - Related parties* �1ote 13� 105 64 – –

 � -oint Yenture �1ote 13� 3��10 3��10 – –

 � 1on�related parties �1ote 13� ��3�� 11,791 – –

16,577 18,564 – –

Accrued revenue

 - Related companies 1,214 451 – –

 - Non-related parties 3���� 7,471 – –

��1�3 7,922 – –

Amounts due from related companies 
 (non-trade) ��3 330 – –

Amounts due from subsidiaries
 (non-trade) – – 1,918 13�2��

Loan due from subsidiaries – – 40,092 40,152

Other receivables 16,648 1,454 78 85

103��2� 136���6 42,094 �3����

* Related parties pertain to family members of a director of the Company.
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12.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Group Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Non-current
Retentions
 � Related companieV �1ote 13� 696 – – –
 - Related parties* �1ote 13� – 64 – –
 � A Moint operator �1ote 13� 2�323 1,940 – –
 � 1on�related partieV �1ote 13� 11,899 ��131 – –

14,918 11�13� – –

Total trade and other receivables 11��3�� 148,111 42,094 �3����

 * Related parties pertain to family members of a director of the Company.

The Group has non-trade amounts due from related companies which are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable 
on demand.

The Company has non-trade amounts due from subsidiaries which are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable 
on demand.

The Company has loans due from subsidiaries of $40,092,000 (2015: $40,152,000) which are unsecured, repayable on 
demand� and intereVt�bearinJ at the rate oI 1��0� per annum �201�� 1��2� per annum� oYer 6inJapore ΖnterbanN Rate 
�Ȋ6Ζ%2Rȋ�� 7he loanV haYe an aYeraJe e΍ectiYe intereVt rate oI 3�06� �201�� 3�02�� per annum aV at 31 December 2016�

Ζncluded in other receiYableV are Vhort term adYanceV amountinJ to �13�661�000 �201�� 1il� JiYen to a cuVtomer in 
relation to a construction contract which are unsecured, interest-free and is expected to be recovered within twelve 
months from the balance sheet date.

13. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

AJJreJate coVtV incurred and profitV recoJniVed �leVV loVVeV recoJniVed� to date 655,798 33��266
Less: Progress billings �62��331� (265,098)

27,467 70,168

Presented as:
Due from customers on construction contracts (Note 12) 2��30� 61,489
Due from related companies on construction contracts (Note 12) 170 2,109
Due from a joint operator on construction contract (Note 12) ��3�� 9,459
Due from related parties on construction contract* (Note 12) – 48
Due to customers on construction contracts (Note 20(a)) ���6�3� �2��3��
Due to a related company on construction contracts (Note 20(a)) (1,674) –

27,467 70,168

Retentions on construction contracts (Note 12) 31���� 29,699
* Related parties pertain to family members of a director of the Company.
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14.  OTHER ASSETS 

Group Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Current

Deposits 1,412 1,072 – –

Dividend receivable – – 6,500 –

Prepayments �63 205 12 14

2,175 1,277 6,512 14

Non-current

Deposits 10,000 10,000 – –

Other non-current asset pertains to security deposit given to a customer in relation to a construction contract and is 
not expected to be recovered within twelve months from the balance sheet date.

15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Equity investments at cost

%eJinninJ oI financial year 19,770 19,770

Subscription of new ordinary shares of a subsidiary 3��00 -

(nd oI financial year 23�2�0 19,770

DurinJ the financial year ended 31 December 2016� the Company increased its inYestment in the share capital oI its 
Zholly�oZned subsidiary� S% 3rocurement 3te. Ltd.� by subscribinJ Ior an additional 3��00�000 ordinary shares in cash 
amountinJ to an aJJreJate consideration oI �3��00�000.

The subsidiaries in the Group are:

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities

Country of 
business/

incorporation Equity holding

2016
%

2015
%

HELD BY THE COMPANY:

Soil-Build (Pte.) Ltd. (a) Building contractors Singapore 100 100

SB Procurement Pte. Ltd. (a)

Construction and 
procurement services Singapore 100 100

SB Project Services Pte. Ltd. (a)

Project and construction 
management services Singapore 100 100
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiaries
Principal 
activities

Country of 
business/

incorporation Equity holding

2016
%

2015
%

HELD BY THE COMPANY: 
(continued)

Soilbuild Construction  
International Pte. Ltd. (a)

Project and construction 
management services Singapore 100 100

Soilbuild Construction Engineering  
Pte. Ltd. (a) Building contractors Singapore 100 100

Soilbuild E&C Pte. Ltd. (a) Building contractors Singapore 100 100

HELD BY A SUBSIDIARY:

Soilbuild (Myanmar) Company  
Limited (b) Project management Myanmar 100 100

Soilbuild Construction (Myanmar) 
Company Limited (b)

Construction and 
procurement services Myanmar 100 100

 (a)  Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Singapore
 (b) Audited by :in 7hin 	 AVVociateV �&ertified 3ublic AccountantV� 0yanmar� 

16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

%eJinninJ oI financial year 2,774 2,716

Distributions received from a joint venture (17) –

6hare oI profitV 27 58

(nd oI financial year 2,784 2,774
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16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Set out beloZ are the Moint Yentures oI the Group as at 31 December 2016� Zhich� in the opinion oI the directors� are 
material to the Group. The joint ventures as listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which 
are held directly by the Group; the country of incorporation is also their principal place of business. 

Name of entity

Place of business/
country of

incorporation
% of ownership

interest

2016 2015

Forte Builder Pte. Ltd. (a) Singapore 50 50

Solstice Development Pte. Ltd. (b) Singapore 19* 19*

Soilbuild-Shincon J.V. (c) Singapore 51 –

(a)  Audited by Nexia TS Public Accounting Corporation

(b)  Audited by Ken Tan & Co.

 *  $lthouJh the Group has only 1�� oZnership in Solstice DeYelopment 3te. Ltd.� decisions about the releYant actiYities oI 
Solstice Development Pte. Ltd. require the unanimous consent of the Group and the other joint venture partners. Accordingly, 
the Group has joint control over Solstice Development Pte. Ltd..

(c)  Audited by Goh You Kee & Co.

Forte Builder Pte. Ltd. is a general contractor for construction of buildings, including major upgrading works in Singapore.

Solstice Development Pte. Ltd. is in the business of investment in properties, development of properties for sale and 
management of properties in Singapore.

Soilbuild-Shincon J.V. is in the business of general building construction and civil engineering works associated with 
sca΍oldinJ ZorNs in SinJapore.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the joint ventures.
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16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

 6ummariVed financial inIormation Ior Moint YentureV

6et out beloZ are the VummariVed financial inIormation Ior Forte %uilder 3te� /td�� 6olVtice DeYelopment 3te� /td� and 
Soilbuild-Shincon J.V..

 Summarised balance sheet

Forte Builder Pte. 
Ltd.

As at 31 December

Solstice 
Development 

Pte. Ltd.
As at 31 December

Soilbuild-Shincon J.V.
As at 31 December

Total
As at 31 December

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Current assets 11,885 11��30 152 170 3�� – 12�3�1 11,700

Includes:

 - Cash and cash 
equivalents ���63 4,751 152 170 10 – 4,925 4,921

Current liabilities 6�3�6 6,042 12 11 32� – 6,726 6�0�3

Includes:

 - Financial liabilities 
 (including trade 

payables) 6�3�� 6�03� 12 10 32� – 6,710 6,048

Non-current assets – – – – – – – –

Net assets 5,499 5,488 140 159 16 – 5,655 5,647
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16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
 
 Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Forte Builder Pte. 
Ltd.

For the year ended
31 December

Solstice 
Development 

Pte. Ltd.
For the year ended

31 December

Soilbuild-Shincon J.V.
For the year ended

31 December

Total
For the year ended

31 December

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Revenue 300 1,118 – – 1,025 – 1�32� 1,118

Interest income 29 31 – – – – 29 31

Profit from continuing 
operations 12 65 (19) (41) 50 – �3 24

Income tax expense (1) 24 – 114 – – (1) 13�

Post-tax profit 
from continuing 
operations 11 89 (19) �3 50 – 42 162

Other comprehensive 
 income – – – – – – – –

Total comprehensive 
 income 11 89 (19) �3 50 – 42 162

Dividends and 
distributions 
received from joint 
ventures – – – – �3�� – �3�� –
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16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

7he inIormation aboYe reȵectV the amountV preVented in the financial VtatementV oI the Moint YentureV �and not the 
*roupȇV Vhare oI thoVe amountV�� adMuVted Ior di΍erenceV in accountinJ policieV betZeen the *roup and the Moint 
ventures.

Reconciliation oI VummariVed financial inIormation

Reconciliation oI the VummariVed financial inIormation preVented to the carryinJ amount oI the *roupȇV intereVt in 
joint ventures.

Forte Builder Pte. 
Ltd.

As at 31 December

Solstice 
Development 

Pte. Ltd.
As at 31 December

Soilbuild-Shincon J.V.
As at 31 December

Total
As at 31 December

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Net Assets
At 1 January 5,488 ��3�� 159 86 – – 5,647 5,485

3rofit Ior the year 11 89 (19) �3 50 – 42 162

Dividends and 
distributions paid – – – – �3�� – �3�� –

At 31 December 5,499 5,488 140 159 16 – 5,655 5,647

Interest in joint 
YentureV ��0�� 1��� 
�1�� 2,750 2,744 26 30 8 – 2,784 2,774

Carrying value 2,750 2,744 26 30 8 – 2,784 2,774

Carrying value of Group’s interest in joint ventures 2,784 2,774
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17.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Plant and 
equipment

$’000 

Motor 
vehicles

$’000

Renovation, 
furniture 

and 
equipment

$’000
Computers

$’000
Containers

$’000

Building in 
construction

$’000
Total
$’000

Group 
2016
Cost
%eJinninJ oI financial year 22��33 1,298 223 6�3 404 547 26,048
Additions 1�316 6�3 12 49 10 7,969 9,999
Disposals (2,718) (57) – – (20) – (2,795)
Currency translation 

di΍erences (1) 4 – (1) (1) – 1
(nd oI financial year 21��30 1,888 23� 691 3�3 8,516 33�2�3

Accumulated depreciation
%eJinninJ oI financial year 7,595 268 215 �33 220 – ���31
Depreciation charge (Note 5) 2,115 30� 1 79 57 – 2,559
Disposals (1,549) (57) – – (7) – �1�613�
Currency translation 

di΍erences 2 2 (1) (1) – – 2
(nd oI financial year ��163 520 215 611 270 – 9,779

Net book value
End of financial year 13�36� 1�36� 20 80 123 8,516 23����

Plant and 
equipment

$’000 

Motor 
vehicles

$’000

Renovation, 
furniture 

and 
equipment

$’000
Computers

$’000
Containers

$’000

Building in 
construction

$’000
Total
$’000

Group 
2015
Cost
%eJinninJ oI financial year 20�123 1�3 217 566 269 – 21�32�
Additions 5,169 1,142 6 77 13� 547 7,076
Disposal �2�3��� – – – – – �2�3���
Currency translation 

di΍erences – 3 – – – – 3
(nd oI financial year 22��33 1,298 223 6�3 404 547 26,048

Accumulated depreciation
%eJinninJ oI financial year 6,729 117 215 444 159 – 7,664
Depreciation charge (Note 5) 2,296 151 * 89 61 – 2,597
Disposals �1��30� – – – – – �1��30�
Currency translation 

di΍erences – * * * – – *

(nd oI financial year 7,595 268 215 �33 220 – ���31

Net book value
End of financial year 1��33� 1�030 8 110 184 547 17,217

* Less than $1,000
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17.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

 Assets under construction

The Group’s property, plant and equipment included $8,516,000 (2015: $547,000) which relate to expenditure directly 
attributable for construction of a building located at Airport Road.

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Acquired computer software licences

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Cost

%eJinninJ oI financial year 414 313

Additions 23 101

(nd oI financial year �3� 414

Accumulated amortisation 

%eJinninJ oI financial year 190 13�

Amortisation charge (Note 5) 68 56

(nd oI financial year 258 190

Net book value 179 224

Amortisation of intangible assets of $68,000 (2015: $56,000) was recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income under “Expenses - Others”.
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19. LAND LEASE PREPAYMENT

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Cost

%eJinninJ oI financial year 26,645 –

Additions – 26,645

(nd oI financial year 26,645 26,645

Accumulated amortisation 

%eJinninJ oI financial year 222 –

Amortisation charge (Note 5) 888 222

(nd oI financial year 1,110 222

Net book value 2���3� 26��23

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Amount to be amortised:

 - Not later than one year 888 888

 � Later than one year but not later than fiYe years 3���3 3���3

 � Later than fiYe years 21,094 21,982

Land lease prepayment relates to the lease of a parcel of land located at Airport Road, Singapore. The lease will expire 
in 2045.
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20.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES & PROVISION FOR OTHER LIABILITIES

(a) Trade and other payables 

Group Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Trade payables:

 - Non-related parties 71,641 67,247 – –

 - Joint venture 333 333 – –

71,974 67,580 – –

Due to customers on construction  
contractV �1ote 13� ��6�3 2��3� – –

Due to a related company on  
conVtruction contractV �1ote 13� 1,674 – – –

Rental deposits �3 31 – –

Accrued operating expenses ���3� 4,875 282 1,247

Accrued construction costs 14,149 3���62 – –

Other payables 9,050 7,078 96 177

Amounts due to related companies (non-
trade) 6,694 �3 – 9

Total trade and other payables 112,702 117,506 3�� 1��33

The non-trade amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. 

(b) Provision for other liabilities

Group Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Provision for cost of defects 580 989 – –

Other provisions �3� 362 – –

1,119 1�3�1 – –
 
 Movement in provision for cost of defects is as follows:

Group Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

%eJinninJ oI financial year 989 1,122 – –

Provision made 267 509 – –

Provision utilised (676) (642) – –

(nd oI financial year 580 989 – –
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20.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES & PROVISION FOR OTHER LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

 (b) Provision for other liabilities (continued)

Movement in other provisions is as follows:

Group Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

%eJinninJ oI financial year 362 270 – –

Provision made 180 112 – –

Provision utilised �3� (20) – –

(nd oI financial year �3� 362 – –

21. DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 

DeIerred income ta[ assets and liabilities are o΍set Zhen there is a leJally enIorceable riJht to o΍set current income 
ta[ assets aJainst current income ta[ liabilities and Zhen the deIerred income ta[es relate to the same fiscal authority. 
7he amounts� determined aIter appropriate o΍settinJ� are shoZn on the statement oI financial position as IolloZs�

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Deferred income tax liabilities

 - To be settled within one year – –

 - To be settled after one year 1�3�� 585

1�3�� 585

7he moYement in the deIerred income ta[ assets and liabilities �prior to o΍settinJ oI balances Zithin the same ta[ 
jurisdiction) is as follows: 

Group

Deferred income tax assets

Provisions
$’000

Tax losses
$’000

Total
$’000

2016
%eJinninJ oI financial year (265) ��36� (701)
CharJed to profit or loss 63 �36 499
(nd oI financial year (202) – (202)

2015
%eJinninJ oI financial year (267) �3�0� (657)
CharJed��credited� to profit or loss 2 (46) (44)
(nd oI financial year (265) ��36� (701)
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21. DEFERRED INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

Group (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities

Accelerated 
tax 

depreciation
$’000

2016
%eJinninJ oI financial year 1,286

&harJed to profit or loVV 310

(nd oI financial year 1,596

2015 
%eJinninJ oI financial year 1,119

&harJed to profit or loVV 167

(nd oI financial year 1,286

22.  SHARE CAPITAL 

Issued
share capital

No. of 
ordinary 
shares

 ’000
Amount

$’000

Group and Company

2016
%eJinninJ oI financial year 666,265 58,047

Conversion of warrant to ordinary shares 13 3

Issuance of shares pursuant to the Performance Share Plan(a) (Note 25) 3�211 748

(nd oI financial year 669,489 58,798

2015
%eJinninJ oI financial year 664,000 57,490

Issuance of shares pursuant to the Performance Share Plan(b) (Note 25) 2,265 557

(nd oI financial year 666,265 58,047

(a) DurinJ the financial year ended 31 December 2016� the &ompany allotted and iVVued 3�211�000 neZ VhareV �1ote 2�� 
amounting to $748,000 pursuant to the Performance Share Plan.

(b) DurinJ the financial year ended 31 December 201�� the &ompany allotted and iVVued 2�26��000 neZ VhareV �1ote 2�� 
amounting to $557,000 pursuant to the Performance Share Plan.

All issued ordinary shares are fully paid. There is no par value for these ordinary shares.

The newly issued shares rank pari passu in all aspects with the previously issued shares.
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23. CAPITAL RESERVE

Group 

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

%eJinninJ and end oI financial year 1,070 1,070

DurinJ the financial year ended 31 December 2013� pursuant to a restructurinJ e[ercise� the Company entered into 
a sales and purchase agreement with a related company to acquire the entire equity interests of Soil-Build (Pte.) Ltd., 
SB Procurement Pte. Ltd. and SB Project Services Pte. Ltd.. A related company pertains to a company which is wholly-
owned by a director of the Company.

7he capital reserYe represents the di΍erence betZeen the purchase consideration amountinJ to �16���0�000 Zhich is 
entirely satisfied by the allotment and issuance oI shares and the carryinJ Yalue oI the net assets acTuired amountinJ 
to $15,500,000.

24. CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

%eJinninJ oI financial year 51 �3�

1et currency translation di΍erences oI IoreiJn operations 65 54

(nd oI financial year 116 51

25. PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN RESERVE

Group and Company 

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

%eJinninJ oI financial year 964 408

Share-based compensation expenses (Note 6) �03 1�113

Issuance of shares pursuant to the PSP (Note 22) (748) (557)

(nd oI financial year 719 964

The Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan (“PSP”) was approved by the members of the Company at an EGM 
held on � 0ay 2013. 7he details oI the plan are as disclosed under ȊShare 3lansȋ in the Directorsȇ Statement. 
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25. PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN RESERVE (CONTINUED)

�a� 3erIormance Vhare aZardV Jranted Ior the financial year ended 31 December 201� �Ȋ2014 PSP Awards”) 

DurinJ the financial year ended 31 December 201�� 201� 363 AZardV in reVpect oI an aJJreJate oI up to 
6,269,000 ordinary shares in the Company were granted to the relevant participants on 22 August 2014. The 
grant of the 2014 PSP Award to Mr Lim Chap Huat, a controlling shareholder of the Company, was conditional 
on independent shareholders’ approval for the participation by and grant of the 2014 PSP Award to him. Such 
approval was obtained on 10 October 2014. The 2014 PSP Awards are subject to the accomplishment of certain 
perIormance tarJetV Vet oYer the perIormance period Ior the financial year ended 31 December 201�� AriVinJ 
from the 2014 PSP Awards, ordinary shares will be released provided the respective participants have remained 
in the employment of the Group up to the respective release dates.

6ubVeTuent to the financial year ended 31 December 201�� the Jrant oI 201� 363 AZardV Zere reYieZed by the 
RC on 16 February 2015, taking into consideration, among others, the performance of the participants of the 
201� 363 AZardV Ior the financial year ended 31 December 201�� %aVed on Vuch reYieZ� the number oI VhareV 
aZarded under the 201� 363 AZardV amounted to ��663���2 VhareV� and 60��0�� VhareV under the 201� 363 
Awards have lapsed.

7he YeVtinJ period oI the reVpectiYe trancheV oI the 201� 363 AZardV amountinJ to �0�� 30� and 30� iV Irom 
22 AuJuVt 201� to their releaVe dateV Zhich are Zithin one month Irom the iVVuance oI the audited financial 
statements of the Group for FY2014, FY2015 and FY2016 respectively. The 2014 PSP Awards will be released 
provided the respective participants have remained in the employment of the Group up to the respective release 
dateV� AV at 31 December 201�� no VhareV under the 201� 363 AZardV haYe been releaVed upon YeVtinJ�

DurinJ the financial year ended 31 December 2016� 1�663���6 VhareV �201�� 2�26��000 VhareV� haYe been iVVued 
by virtue of the release of the awards under the 2014 PSP Awards.

Further detailV oI the 201� 363 AZardV Zhich include the moYement durinJ the financial year ended 31 December 
2016 and the number outVtandinJ aV at 31 December 2016 are aV diVcloVed under Ȇ6hare 3lanVȇ in the DirectorVȇ 
Statement.

7he Iair Yalue oI the 201� 363 AZardV ZaV determined uVinJ the %lacN 6choleV 9aluation 0odel� 7he ViJnificant 
inputs into the model were the share price of $0.25 and $0.24 per share at the grant dates of 22 August 2014 
and 10 2ctober 201� reVpectiYely� the Vtandard deYiation oI e[pected Vhare price returnV oI 3��� the diYidend 
yield oI 6�� the YeVtinJ period oI the 201� 363 AZardV aV diVcloVed aboYe� and annual riVN�Iree intereVt rate oI 
2�3�� 7he Yolatility meaVured aV the Vtandard deYiation oI e[pected Vhare price returnV ZaV eVtimated baVed on 
VtatiVtical analyViV oI Vhare priceV Irom the liVtinJ date to 31 December 201��

�b� 3erIormance Vhare aZardV Jranted Ior the financial year ended 31 December 201� �Ȋ2015 PSP Awards”)

DurinJ the financial year ended 31 December 201�� 201� 363 AZardV in reVpect oI an aJJreJate oI up to 
6���2�000 ordinary VhareV in the &ompany Zere Jranted to the releYant participantV on 31 0arch 201�� 7he 
grant of the 2015 PSP Award to Mr Lim Chap Huat, a controlling shareholder of the Company, was conditional 
on independent shareholders’ approval for the grant of the 2015 PSP Award to him. Such approval was obtained 
on 24 April 2015. The 2015 PSP Awards are subject to the accomplishment of certain performance targets set 
oYer the perIormance period Ior the financial year ended 31 December 201�� AriVinJ Irom the 201� 363 AZardV� 
ordinary shares or cash at the discretion of the RC will be released provided the respective participants have 
remained in the employment of the Group up to the respective release dates.
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25. PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN RESERVE (CONTINUED) 

�b� 3erIormance share aZards Jranted Ior the financial year ended 31 December 201� �Ȋ2015 PSP Awards”) 
(continued)

SubseTuent to the financial year ended 31 December 201�� the Jrant oI 201� 3S3 $Zards Zere reYieZed by the 
RC on 24 February 2016, taking into consideration, among others, the performance of the participants of the 
201� 3S3 $Zards Ior the financial year ended 31 December 201�. %ased on such reYieZ� the number oI shares 
aZarded under the 201� 3S3 $Zards amounted to 3�����32� shares� and 2��0��6�3 shares under the 201� 3S3 
Awards have lapsed.

7he YestinJ period oI the respectiYe tranches oI the 201� 3S3 $Zards amountinJ to �0�� 30� and 30� is Irom 
31 0arch 201� to their release dates Zhich are Zithin one month Irom the issuance oI the audited financial 
statements of the Group for FY2015, FY2016 and FY2017 respectively. The 2015 PSP Awards will be released 
provided the respective participants have remained in the employment of the Group up to the respective release 
dates. 

DurinJ the financial year ended 31 December 2016� 1������2� shares haYe been issued by Yirtue oI the release 
of the awards under the 2015 PSP Awards.

Further details oI the 201� 3S3 $Zards Zhich include the moYement durinJ the financial year ended 31 December 
2016 and the number outstandinJ as at 31 December 2016 are as disclosed under ȆShare 3lansȇ in the Directorsȇ 
Statement.

7he Iair Yalue oI the 201� 3S3 $Zards Zas determined usinJ the %lacN Scholes 9aluation 0odel. 7he siJnificant 
inputs into the model Zere the share price oI �0.231 and �0.2�� per share at the Jrant dates oI 31 0arch 201� 
and 2� $pril 201� respectiYely� the standard deYiation oI e[pected share price returns oI 2�.��� the diYidend 
yield oI ��� the YestinJ period oI the 201� 3S3 $Zards as disclosed aboYe� and annual risN�Iree interest rate oI 
2.63�. 7he Yolatility measured as the standard deYiation oI e[pected share price returns Zas estimated based 
on statistical analysis oI share prices Irom the listinJ date to 31 December 201�.

�c� 3erIormance share aZards Jranted Ior the financial year ended 31 December 2016 �Ȋ2016 PSP Awards”)

DurinJ the financial year ended 31 December 2016� 2016 3S3 $Zards in respect oI an aJJreJate oI up to 
7,696,000 ordinary shares in the Company were granted to the relevant participants on 18 March 2016. The 
grant of the 2016 PSP Award to Mr Lim Chap Huat, a controlling shareholder of the Company, was conditional 
on independent shareholders’ approval for the grant of the 2016 PSP Award to him. Such approval was obtained 
on 26 April 2016. The 2016 PSP Awards are subject to the accomplishment of certain performance targets set 
oYer the perIormance period Ior the financial year ended 31 December 2016. $risinJ Irom the 2016 3S3 $Zards� 
ordinary shares or cash at the discretion of the RC will be released provided the respective participants have 
remained in the employment of the Group up to the respective release dates.

SubseTuent to the financial year ended 31 December 2016� the Jrant oI 2016 3S3 $Zards Zere reYieZed by the 
RC on 22 February 2017, taking into consideration, among others, the performance of the participants of the 
2016 3S3 $Zards Ior the financial year ended 31 December 2016. %ased on such reYieZ� there Zere no shares 
awarded under the 2016 PSP Awards, and 7,696,000 shares under the 2016 PSP Awards have lapsed.
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25. PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN RESERVE (CONTINUED) 

�c� 3erIormance Vhare aZardV Jranted Ior the financial year ended 31 December 2016 �Ȋ2016 PSP Awards”) 
(continued)

7he YeVtinJ period oI the reVpectiYe trancheV oI the 2016 363 AZardV amountinJ to �0�� 30� and 30� iV Irom 
1� 0arch 2016 to their releaVe dateV Zhich are Zithin one month Irom the iVVuance oI the audited financial 
statement of the Group for FY2016, FY2017 and FY2018 respectively. The 2016 PSP Awards will be released 
provided the respective participants have remained in the employment of the Group up to the respective release 
dateV� AV at 31 December 2016� no VhareV under the 2016 363 AZardV haYe been releaVed upon YeVtinJ�

DurinJ the financial year ended 31 December 2016� no VhareV haYe been iVVued by Yirtue oI the releaVe oI the 
awards under the 2016 PSP Awards.

Further detailV oI the 2016 363 AZardV Zhich include the moYement durinJ the financial year ended 31 December 
2016 and the number outVtandinJ aV at 31 December 2016 are aV diVcloVed under Ȇ6hare 3lanVȇ in the DirectorVȇ 
Statement.

There are no fair value measurements required for the 2016 PSP Awards as there were no shares awarded 
under the 2016 PSP Awards based on review by the RC.

26. WARRANT RESERVE

Group and Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

%eJinninJ oI financial year – –

3roceedV Irom preIerential o΍erinJ oI ZarrantV ��36� –

([penVeV relatinJ to preIerential o΍erinJ oI ZarrantV (206) –

Issuance of shares pursuant to exercise of warrants (1) –

(nd oI financial year 8,161 –

2n 13 -uly 2016� the &ompany iVVued 16��36��000 ZarrantV purVuant to itV preIerential o΍erinJ oI ZarrantV� 7he 
proceedV Irom the preIerential o΍erinJ oI ZarrantV amountinJ to ���36��000 are claVVified aV Zarrant reVerYe under 
eTuity� 7he e[penVeV relatinJ to the preIerential o΍erinJ oI ZarrantV amount to �206�000 are deducted aJainVt the 
warrant reserve.
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27. RETAINED PROFITS

0oYement in retained profits Ior the Company is as IolloZs�

Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

%eJinninJ oI financial year 12��31 11�23�

Total comprehensive income for the year 9,446 15,017

Dividends paid (Note 28) �13�3�0� �13�32��

(nd oI financial year 8,987 12��31

28.  DIVIDENDS

Group and Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Ordinary dividends paid

Final diYidends paid in respect oI the prior financial year

– Soilbuild Construction Group Ltd. of $0.005 (2015: $0.005) per share 3�3�� 3�331

Special diYidends paid in respect oI the prior financial year

– Soilbuild Construction Group Ltd. of $0.0075 (2015: $0.010) per share 6,695 6�663

Ζnterim diYidends paid in respect oI the current financial year

– Soilbuild Construction Group Ltd. of $0.005 (2015: $0.005)  per share 3�3�� 3�331

13�3�0 13�32�

$t the $nnual General 0eetinJ on 22 $pril 201�� a final diYidend oI �0.00� per share amountinJ to �3�3���000 and a 
special diYidend oI �0.00�� per share amountinJ to ���021�000 Zill be recommended. 7hese financial statements do 
not reȵect this diYidend� Zhich Zill be accounted Ior in shareholdersȇ eTuity as an appropriation oI retained profits Ior 
the financial year endinJ 31 December 201�.

29.  COMMITMENTS 

(a) Operating lease commitments - where the Group is a lessor

The Group leases out land to a non-related party under non-cancellable operating lease. The leasee is required 
to maNe fi[ed rental payments Ior the lease.

 

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Not later than one year – 240
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29.  COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Operating lease commitments - where the Group is a lessee

7he *roup leaVeV a production area� ZarehouVe� ZorNerVȇ accommodation and oɝce premiVeV Irom related 
partieV under non�cancellable operatinJ leaVeV� 7he *roup iV reTuired to maNe fi[ed rental paymentV Ior the 
leaVeV� 7he *roup leaVeV land and oɝce premiVeV Irom non�related partieV under non�cancellable operatinJ 
leases. The Group is required to make upfront payments for the leases. 

The future minimum lease payable under operating leases contracted for at the balance sheet date but not 
recognised as liabilities, are as follows:

 

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Not later than one year 621 1,285

%etZeen one and fiYe yearV �3 3

674 1,288

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to market risks (including interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s 
oYerall riVN manaJement VtrateJy VeeNV to minimiVe potential adYerVe e΍ectV Irom the unpredictability oI financial 
marNetV on the financial perIormance oI the *roup�

7he %oard oI DirectorV iV reVponVible Ior VettinJ the obMectiYeV and underlyinJ principleV oI financial riVN manaJement 
for the Group. Management then establishes the detailed policies such as authority levels, oversight responsibilities, 
riVN identification and meaVurement� e[poVure limitV and hedJinJ VtrateJieV� in accordance Zith the obMectiYeV and 
underlying principles approved by the Board of Directors. Financial risk management is carried out by management 
in accordance with the policies set.

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

The Group operates predominately in Singapore and Myanmar and the functional currencies of the entities 
in each of the countries are the Singapore Dollar (“SGD”) and the United States Dollar (“USD”) respectively. 
Currency risks arise within entities in the Group when transactions denominated in foreign currencies 
such as the SGD, USD and Myanmar Kyat (“MMK”). Entities in the Group transact predominately in their 
functional currencies and hold matching currency assets and liabilities to manage the currency risk.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i) Currency risk (continued)

The currency exposure of the Group and the Company based on the information provided to key 
management is as follows:

Group Company

USD
$’000

MMK
$’000

USD
$’000

At 31 December 2016
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 63� 2�6�3 –

Trade and other receivables 5,927 3��2� ��3

2ther financial assets 233 – –

6,797 6,471 ��3

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (7,416) �1�133� –

(7,416) �1�133� –

Net financial (liabilities)/assets (619) ��33� ��3

$dd� 1et financial liabilities denominated in the 
respective entities’ functional currencies 3�160 – –

Currency exposure 2,541 ��33� ��3

At 31 December 2015
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 92 285 –

Trade and other receivables 3�060 66 608

2ther financial assets 5 – –

3�1�� 3�1 608

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (1,689) (55) –

(1,689) (55) –

Net financial assets 1,468 296 608

Less� 1et financial assets denominated in the  
respective entities’ functional currencies (116) – –

Currency exposure 1�3�2 296 608
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i) Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis for currency risk

ΖI the 86D chanJeV aJainVt the 6*D by �� �201�� ��� and the 00. chanJeV aJainVt the 6*D by �� �201�� 
��� Zith all other YariableV includinJ ta[ rate beinJ held conVtant� the e΍ectV ariVinJ Irom the net financial 
liability/asset position will be as follows:

 

Increase/(decrease)
Profit after tax

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Group
USD against SGD

–  strengthened 105 56

–  weakened (105) (56)

MMK against SGD

–  strengthened 200 11

–  weakened (200) (11)

Company
USD against SGD

–  strengthened 24 25

–   weakened (24) (25)

(ii) Price risk

3rice riVN iV the riVN that the Yalue oI a financial inVtrument Zill ȵuctuate aV a reVult oI chanJeV in marNet 
priceV� Zhether thoVe chanJeV are cauVed by IactorV Vpecific to the indiYidual inVtrument or itV iVVuer or 
IactorV a΍ectinJ all inVtrumentV traded in the marNet�

7he *roup and the &ompany are not e[poVed to any ViJnificant price riVNV�
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(a) Market risk (continued)

�iii� Cash ȵoZ and Iair Yalue interest rate risNs 

Cash ȵoZ interest rate risN is the risN that the Iuture cash ȵoZs oI a financial instrument Zill ȵuctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a 
financial instrument Zill ȵuctuate due to chanJes in marNet interest rates. 

7he Group is not e[posed to any siJnificant interest rate risNs. 

7he Company has interest bearinJ loans due Irom subsidiaries at Yariable rates on Zhich e΍ectiYe hedJes 
haYe not been entered into. ΖI the interest rates had been hiJher�loZer by 0.�0� �201�� 0.�0�� Zith all other 
Yariables includinJ ta[ rate beinJ held constant� the profit aIter ta[ Zould be hiJher�loZer by �166�000 
(2015: $167,000) as a result of higher/lower interest income on these loans due from subsidiaries.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risN reIers to the risN that a counterparty Zill deIault on its contractual obliJations resultinJ in financial 
loss to the Group. 7he Groupȇs and Companyȇs maMor classes oI financial assets are cash and cash eTuiYalents� 
trade and other receivables and deposits.

The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred due to increased 
credit risk exposure. For trade receivables, the Group adopts the policy of dealing only with customers of 
appropriate credit history� and obtaininJ suɝcient collateral or deposits Zhere appropriate to mitiJate credit 
risN. Ζn addition� receiYable balances and payment profile oI the debtors are monitored on an onJoinJ basis Zith 
the result that the Groupȇs e[posure to bad debts is not siJnificant. For other financial assets� the Group adopts 
the policy of dealing only with high credit quality counterparties.

7he trade receiYables oI the Group comprise � debtors �201�� � debtors� that indiYidually represented 10 � 31� 
�201�� 10 � 23�� oI the trade receiYables.

Exposure to credit risk

7he ma[imum e[posure to credit risN Ior each class oI financial instruments is the carryinJ amount oI that class 
oI financial instruments presented on the balance sheet.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Bank deposits that are neither past due nor impaired are mainly deposits with banks with high credit-ratings 
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. Trade and other receivables and deposits that are neither past 
due nor impaired are substantially companies with a good collection track record with the Group.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets that are past due and/or impaired

7here iV no other claVV oI financial aVVetV that iV paVt due and�or impaired e[cept Ior trade receiYableV�

The age analysis of trade receivables past due but not impaired is as follows:

Group Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

3aVt due 0 to 30 dayV 3�011 13��61 - -

3aVt due 31 to �0 dayV 666 2,507 - -

Past due 91 days 10,745 1,165 - -

14,422 1���33 - -

The carrying amount of trade receivables individually determined to be impaired and the movement in the 
related allowance for impairment are as follows:

Group Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Gross amount 50 50 - -

Less: Allowance for impairment (Note 12) (50) (50) - -

- - - -

%eJinninJ and end oI financial year 50 50 - -

7rade receiYableV that are indiYidually determined to be impaired at the end oI the financial year relate to 
debtorV that are in ViJnificant financial diɝcultieV and haYe deIaulted on paymentV� 7heVe receiYableV are not 
secured by any collateral or credit enhancements.

(c) Liquidity risk

/iTuidity riVN iV the riVN that the *roup Zill not be able to meet itV financial obliJationV aV they Iall due� 7he 
*roup actiYely manaJeV itV debt maturity profile� operatinJ caVh ȵoZV and the aYailability oI IundinJ Vo aV 
to enVure that all refinancinJ� repayment and IundinJ needV are met� AV part oI itV oYerall prudent liTuidity 
manaJement� the *roup maintainV Vuɝcient leYel oI caVh or caVh conYertible inYeVtmentV to meet itV ZorNinJ 
capital requirements. In addition, the Group strives to maintain available banking facilities at a reasonable level 
to itV oYerall debt poVition� AV Iar aV poVVible� the *roup Zill conVtantly raiVe committed IundinJ Irom financial 
institutions and prudently balance its portfolio with some short term funding so as to achieve overall cost 
e΍ectiYeneVV�
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

7he table beloZ analyses the maturity profile oI the Groupȇs financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted 
cash ȵoZs. 7rade and other payables due Zithin 12 months eTual their carryinJ balances as the impact oI 
discountinJ is not siJnificant.

Not later 
than 

1 year
$’000

More than
1 year
$’000

Group

At 31 December 2016
Trade and other payables (112,702) –

At 31 December 2015
Trade and other payables (117,506) –

Company

At 31 December 2016
Trade and other payables �3��� –

At 31 December 2015
Trade and other payables �1��33� –

(d) Capital risk

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise shareholder value. In order to maintain 
or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment, return capital to 
shareholder, issue new shares, obtain new borrowings or sell assets to reduce borrowings.

7he Group is reTuired by the banNs to maintain a JearinJ ratio oI not e[ceedinJ 12�� �201�� 12���. 7he JearinJ 
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by shareholder funds. Net debt is calculated as gross borrowings less cash 
and cash equivalents. Shareholder funds represent all equity attributable to the equity holders of the Group. As 
the Group has no borroZinJs� it has no JearinJ ratio and it e΍ectiYely uses no debt financinJ in its oYerall capital 
structure.

7he Group is also in compliance Zith all e[ternally imposed capital reTuirements Ior the financial years ended 
31 December 201� and 2016.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(e) Financial instruments by category

7he aJJreJate carryinJ amountV oI loanV and receiYableV and financial liabilitieV at amortiVed coVt are aV IolloZV�

Group Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Loans and receivables 162,587 165,904 �3��06 �3��16

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 112,702 117,506 3�� 1��33

(f) Fair value measurements

The carrying amounts of non-current trade receivables and non-current assets as disclosed in Note 12 and Note 
14 respectively approximate their fair values.

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

�a� Ζn addition to the related party inIormation VhoZn elVeZhere in the financial VtatementV� the IolloZinJ ViJnificant 
transactions took place between the Group and related parties at terms agreed by the parties:

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Revenue from construction contracts from related companies# 11�3�� 14,161

Revenue from construction contracts from a joint operator 21,582 2����3

Revenue from construction contracts from related parties* 1,655 1,527

Revenue from rendering of project management services to related 
companies# 41 1�3

Rental expense charged by a related company# �23 �23

Renovation/reinstatement services received/receivable from related 
companies# 3�1 36

Other service income received/receivable from related companies# 47 206

Purchase of property, plant and equipment from a related company# – 74

Share of common overheads paid/payable to related companies# 409 59

Share of common overheads received/receivable from related companies# 95 8

* Related parties pertain to family members of a director of the Company.
# Related companies pertain to companies which are wholly-owned by a director of the Company.
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(b) Key management personnel compensation

The key management personnel compensation is as follows:

Group

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Salaries and other short�term employee benefits 3���� 3���6

2ther lonJ term benefits � share based compensation �03 1�113

Contribution to Central Provident Fund 208 13�

4,189 ��13�

Details on directors’ remuneration are discussed in the Corporate Governance Report.

32. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by senior management that are 
used to make strategic decisions. Senior management comprises the Executive Chairman and Executive Director, and 
is the Group’s chief operating decision-maker.

Senior management considers the business of the Group from the geographical perspective. Geographically, senior 
management manages and monitors the business in the two primary geographic areas namely Singapore and 
Myanmar. All geographic areas are engaged mainly in the construction business. 
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32. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The segment information provided to senior management for the reportable segments is as follows:

Singapore
$’000

Myanmar
$’000

Elimination
$’000

Total
$’000

Group

2016
Revenue
External customers 3���262 11�3�� – 3���6��

3���262 11�3�� – 3���6��

Result
Segment result before interest 12�30� 2,061 – 1��36�

Interest income 45

3rofit beIore income ta[ 14,410

Income tax expense �2��3��

1et profit 11,876

Segment results include:
–  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2��3� 24 – 2,559

–  Amortisation of intangible assets 68 – – 68

–  Amortisation of land lease prepayment 888 – – 888

Ȃ  6hare oI profit oI Moint YentureV 27 – – 27

Segment assets 206�636 9,578 (892) 21��322

Segment assets includes:

Investment in joint ventures 2,784 – – 2,784

Additions to:

–  Property, plant and equipment 9,642 3�� – 9,999

–  Intangible assets 23 – – 23

Segment liabilities �11��363� (7,472) 4,604 �11��231�
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32. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Singapore
$’000

Myanmar
$’000

Elimination
$’000

Total
$’000

Group

2015
Revenue
External customers 32��206 1,064 – 32��2�0

Inter-segment revenue – 192 (192) –

32��206 1,256 (192) 32��2�0

Result
Segment result before interest 20,499 459 – 20,958

Interest income 222

3rofit beIore income ta[ 21,180

Income tax expense (2,618)

1et profit 18,562

Segment results include:
–  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,590 7 – 2,597

–  Amortisation of intangible assets 56 – – 56

–  Amortisation of land lease prepayment 222 – – 222

Ȃ  Share oI profit oI Moint Yentures 58 – – 58

Segment assets 212,015 1,506 (774) 212,747

Segment assets includes:

Investment in joint ventures 2,774 – – 2,774

Additions to:

 - Property, plant and equipment 7,058 18 – 7,076

 - Intangible assets 101 – – 101

 - Land lease prepayment 26,645 – – 26,645

Segment liabilities (121,728) (1,084) �3� (121,874)

Revenue between segments are recognised at market terms. The revenue from external parties reported to the senior 
Management is measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Senior manaJement assesses the perIormance oI the operatinJ seJments based on net profit Zhereby the amounts 
are prepared on the same basis as the financial statements. $ccordinJly� there are no reconcilinJ items to be disclosed.

The amounts reported to senior management with respect to total assets, total liabilities have been prepared on the 
same basis as the financial statements. $ccordinJly� there are no reconcilinJ items to be disclosed.

5eYenues oI �2�2���3�000 �201�� �200�002�000� are deriYed Irom � e[ternal customers �201�� � e[ternal companies�. 
These revenues are attributable to the Singapore segment.
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33. JOINT OPERATIONS

On 28 May 2014, SB Procurement Pte. Ltd. (“SB Procurement”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, under a 
consortium with Leong Hin Builders Pte. Ltd. (“Leong Hin”), has been awarded a construction contract amounting to 
approximately $179,500,000 by Kranji Development Pte. Ltd. in relation to an industrial development at 60 Jalan Lam 
Huat, Singapore. SB Procurement and Leong Hin had entered into a deed of agreement dated 28 May 2014, to govern 
their rights and obligations in respect of the construction contract. Based on the deed of agreement, SB Procurement 
haV 60� intereVt in the riJhtV to the aVVetV and obliJationV Ior the liabilitieV� in reVpect oI the conVtruction contract� 

As decisions about the relevant activities of the construction contract require the unanimous consent of both SB 
Procurement and Leong Hin under the deed of agreement, SB Procurement and Leong Hin has joint control over the 
arrangement. Accordingly, the arrangement is a joint arrangement under FRS 111 Joint Arrangements. As the joint 
arrangement is not carried out through a separate legal entity, the arrangement has been accounted for as a joint 
operation in the *roupȇV conVolidated financial VtatementV� 

3leaVe reIer to 1ote 2�3�c� Ior the accountinJ policy on Moint operationV�

34. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The Company’s ultimate controlling party is Mr Lim Chap Huat who is a controlling shareholder and director of the 
Company.

35. NEW OR REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Below are the mandatory standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that have been published, 
and are relevant for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or later periods and which 
the Group has not early adopted:

• FRS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

This is the converged standard on revenue recognition. It replaces FRS 11 Construction contracts, FRS 18 
Revenue, and related interpretations. Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a good or 
VerYice� A cuVtomer obtainV control Zhen it haV the ability to direct the uVe oI and obtain the benefitV Irom the 
good or service. 

The core principle of FRS 115 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or 
VerYiceV to cuVtomerV in an amount that reȵectV the conVideration to Zhich the entity e[pectV to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services. An entity recognises revenue in accordance with that core principle by 
applying the following steps:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
6tep 3� Determine the tranVaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
6tep �� RecoJniVe reYenue Zhen �or aV� the entity VatiVfieV a perIormance obliJation

FRS 115 also includes a cohesive set of disclosure requirements that will result in an entity providing users 
oI financial VtatementV Zith comprehenViYe inIormation about the nature� amount� timinJ and uncertainty oI 
reYenue and caVh ȵoZV ariVinJ Irom the entityȇV contractV Zith cuVtomerV�
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35. NEW OR REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS (CONTINUED)

• FRS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) 
(continued)

0anaJement is currently assessinJ the e΍ects oI applyinJ the neZ standard on the Groupȇs financial statements 
and has identified the IolloZinJ areas that are liNely to be a΍ected�

(i) Rights of return – FRS 115 requires separate presentation on the balance sheet of the right to recover the 
goods from the customer and the refund obligation; and

�ii� $ccountinJ Ior certain costs incurred in IulfillinJ a contract Ȃ certain costs Zhich are currently e[pensed 
may need to be recognised as an asset under FRS 115. 

$t this staJe� the Group is not able to estimate the impact oI the neZ rules on the Groupȇs financial statements. 
The Group will make more detailed assessment of the impact over the next twelve months.

• FRS 109 Financial instruments (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

7he complete Yersion oI F5S 10� replaces most oI the Juidance in F5S 3�. F5S 10� retains the mi[ed measurement 
model and establishes three primary measurement cateJories Ior financial assets� amortised cost� Iair Yalue 
throuJh 2ther ComprehensiYe Ζncome �2CΖ� and Iair Yalue throuJh 3rofit or Loss. 

7he basis oI classification depends on the entityȇs business model and the contractual cash ȵoZ characteristics 
oI the financial asset. ΖnYestments in eTuity instruments are reTuired to be measured at Iair Yalue throuJh profit 
or loss with the irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair value in OCI. 

For financial liabilities there Zere no chanJes to classification and measurement e[cept Ior the recoJnition oI 
chanJes in oZn credit risN in 2CΖ� Ior liabilities desiJned at Iair Yalue throuJh profit or loss. 

F5S 10� rela[es the reTuirements Ior hedJe e΍ectiYeness by replacinJ the briJht line hedJe e΍ectiYeness tests. 
Ζt reTuires an economic relationship betZeen the hedJed item and hedJinJ instrument and Ior the ȆhedJed 
ratio’ to be the same as the one management actually use for risk management purposes.

There is now a new expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in FRS 
3�. Ζt applies to financial assets classified at amortised cost� debt instruments measured at Iair Yalue throuJh 
OCI, contract assets under FRS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers, lease receivables, loan commitments 
and certain financial Juarantee contracts.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and changes in presentation.

7he neZ standard is not e[pected to haYe any siJnificant impact on the financial statements oI the Group.
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35. NEW OR REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS (CONTINUED)

• FRS 116 Leases (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019)

FRS 116 will result in almost all leases being recognised on the balance sheet, as the distinction between operating 
and finance leaVeV iV remoYed� 8nder the neZ Vtandard� an aVVet �the riJht to uVe the leaVed item� and a financial 
liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases. The accounting 
Ior leVVorV Zill not chanJe ViJnificantly�

7he Vtandard Zill a΍ect primarily the accountinJ Ior the *roupȇV operatinJ leaVeV� AV at the reportinJ date� the 
Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of $674,000 (Note 29(b)). However, the Group has yet 
to determine to what extent these commitments will result in the recognition of an asset and a liability for future 
paymentV and hoZ thiV Zill a΍ect the *roupȇV profit and claVVification oI caVh ȵoZV� 

Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception for short-term and low-value leases and some 
commitments may relate to arrangements that will not qualify as leases under FRS 116.

36. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7heVe financial VtatementV Zere authoriVed Ior iVVue in accordance Zith a reVolution oI the %oard oI DirectorV oI 
Soilbuild Construction Group Ltd. on 29 March 2017.
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Class of Shares     :  Ordinary shares
Voting Rights     :  One vote per share
No. of Issued Shares (“Shares”)   :  669,594,500

There are no treasury shares held in the issued capital of the Company.

Analysis of Shareholders

Size of Shareholdings
Number of 

Shareholders
% of  

Shareholders
Number of  

Shares
% of Issued  

Share Capital

 1 - 99 – – – –

100 - 1,000 262 17.86 243,297 0.04

1,001 - 10,000      468 31.90 2,737,400 0.41

10,001 - 1,000,000 715 48.74 68,665,003 10.25

1,000,001 - and above 22 1.50 597,948,800 89.30

1,467 100.00 669,594,500 100.00

Substantial Shareholders
 (As recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders)

Direct  
Interest %

Deemed 
Interest %

Lim Chap Huat 491,251,000 73.37 – –

STATISTICS OF
SHAREHOLDERS 
As at 13 March 2017
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Twenty Largest Shareholders 

No. Name of Shareholders
Number of  

Shares
% of Issued 

Share Capital

1. Lim Chap Huat 491,251,000 73.37

2. Lim Han Ren (Lin Hanren) 27,250,000 4.07

3. DBS Vickers Securities (Singapore) Pte Ltd 10,501,000 1.57

4. DBS Nominees Pte Ltd – Ho Toon Bah 10,389,000 1.51

5. Lim Han Feng (Lin Hanfeng) 8,500,500 1.27

6. Lim Han Qin 7,865,700 1.17

7. DBS Nominees (Pte) Ltd 7,536,500 1.13

8. Raffles Nominees (Pte) Ltd 5,255,000 0.78

9. Ho Kiat Chong 3,574,000 0.53

10. Ng Hock Kon 3,500,000 0.52

11. RHB Securities Singapore Pte Ltd 3,047,900 0.46

12. Ng Siew Lan 2,420,000 0.36

13. Maybank Kim Eng Securities Pte Ltd 2,211,400 0.33

14. DB Nominees (S) Pte Ltd 2,000,000 0.30

15. Lee Chee Seng 2,000,000 0.30

16. Tan Hee Nam 2,000,000 0.30

17. Lim Sze Pheng 1,500,000 0.22

18. Chong Ah Lan 1,300,000 0.19

19. Wire & Metal Products (Pte) Ltd 1,260,000 0.19

20. Lim Mary 1,233,900 0.18

594,595,900 88.79

Shareholding Held in the Hands of Public

Based on the information provided, to the best knowledge of the Directors and the substantial shareholders of the 
Company, 18.47% of the issued share capital of the Company was held in the hands of public as at 13 March 2017. 
Accordingly, the Company has complied with Rule 723 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.

STATISTICS OF
SHAREHOLDERS 
As at 13 March 2017
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Distribution of warrantholders by size of warrantholdings as at 13 March 2017.

Size of Warrantholdings
Number of 

Warrantholders
% of 

Warrantholders
Number of 
Warrants

% of Issued 
Warrants

 1 - 99 3 1.03 125 –

100 - 1,000 9 3.09 7,500 0.01

1,001 - 10,000      83 28.52 521,225 0.31

10,001 - 1,000,000 185 63.58 16,140,828 9.65

1,000,001 - and above 11 3.78 150,580,822 90.03

291 100.00 167,250,500 100.00

Twenty Largest Warrantholders 

No. Name of Warrantholders
Number of 
Warrants

% of Issued 
Warrants

1. Lim Chap Huat 122,812,750 73.43

2. Lim Han Ren (Lin Hanren) 8,000,047 4.78

3. DBS Vickers Securities (Singapore) Pte Ltd 3,530,750 2.11

4. Lim Han Feng (Lin Hanfeng) 2,860,000 1.71

5. Lim Han Qin 2,860,000 1.71

6. Ho Toon Bah 2,597,250 1.55

7. DBS Nominees Pte Ltd 1,951,300 1.17

8. Ng Hock Kon 1,875,000 1.12

9. Phillip Securities Pte Ltd 1,676,525 1.00

10. RHB Securities Singapore Pte Ltd 1,212,000 0.72

11. Raffles Nominees (Pte) Ltd 1,205,200 0.72

12. Tan Hee Nam 1,000,000 0.60

13. Ho Kiat Chong 834,000 0.50

14. Ng Siew Lan 605,000 0.36

15. Lim Chap Heng 600,000 0.36

16. DB Nominees (S) Pte Ltd 500,000 0.30

17. Lee Chee Seng 500,000 0.30

18. Chong Ah Lan 400,000 0.24

19. Lim Sze Pheng 375,000 0.22

20. Wire & Metal Products (Pte) Ltd 315,000 0.19

Total 155,709,822 93.09

STATISTICS OF
WARRANTHOLDERS 
As at 13 March 2017
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Fourth Annual General Meeting of Soilbuild Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”) will be 
held at 25 Changi South Street 1, Singapore 486059 on Monday, 24 April 2017 at 9.30 a.m. to transact the following business:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 
2016 and the Directors’ Statement and Independent Auditor’s Report thereon.            (Resolution 1)

2. To declare a final (tax exempt one-tier) dividend of 0.50 cents per share and a special (tax exempt one-tier) dividend 
of 0.75 cents per share for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.              (Resolution 2)

3. To approve the Directors’ fees of S$340,000.00 for the financial year ending 31 December 2017. (2016: S$340,000.00)  
                       (See Explanatory Note 1) (Resolution 3)

4. To re-elect the following Directors retiring by rotation pursuant to Article 94 of the Company’s Constitution:

(i) Mr Lim Chap Huat (Article 94)                        (see Explanatory Note 2) (Resolution 4)

(ii) Mr Teo Chee Seng (Article 94)                         (see Explanatory Note 3) (Resolution 5)

Mr Teo Chee Seng will upon re-election as Director of the Company, remain as the Chairman of the Remuneration 
Committee and a Member of the Audit and Nominating Committees, and will be considered independent for the 
purposes of Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

5. To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditor of the Company to hold office until the next Annual General 
Meeting of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.         (Resolution 6)

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions, of which Resolutions 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11 will be proposed as 
ordinary resolutions, with or without modifications:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

6.       Authority to allot and issue shares

(a) That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore and the Listing Manual (“Listing Manual”) 
of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST”), approval be and is hereby given to the Directors 
of the Company at any time to such persons and upon such terms and for such purposes as the Directors may in their 
absolute discretion deem fit, to:

(i) issue shares of the Company whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise;

(ii)  make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) that might or would require shares 
to be issued or other transferable rights to subscribe for or purchase shares including but not limited to the 
creation and issue of warrants, debentures or other instruments convertible into shares; and

(iii) issue additional Instruments arising from adjustments made to the number of Instruments previously issued in 
the event of rights, bonus or capitalisation issues; and

(b) (notwithstanding the authority conferred by the shareholders may have ceased to be in force) issue shares in 
pursuance of any Instrument made or granted by the Directors while the authority was in force, 

NOTICE OF FOURTH
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provided always that:

(1) the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this resolution (including shares to be issued in pursuance of 
Instruments made or granted pursuant to this resolution) does not exceed 50% of the total number of issued shares 
excluding treasury shares of the Company, of which the aggregate number of shares (including shares to be issued in 
pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this resolution) to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to 
shareholders of the Company does not exceed 20% of the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares of 
the Company. Unless prior shareholder approval is required under the Listing Manual, an issue of treasury shares will 
not require further shareholder approval, and will not be included in the aforementioned limits.

 
For the purpose of this resolution, the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares is based on the 
Company’s total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares at the time this resolution is passed, after 
adjusting for:

(a) new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of convertible securities;

(b) new shares arising from exercising share options or vesting of share awards outstanding or subsisting at the 
time this resolution is passed, provided the options or awards were granted in compliance with Part VIII of 
Chapter 8 of the Listing Manual; and

(c) any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of the Company’s shares; and

(2) such authority shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company at a general meeting, continue in force until the 
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company 
is required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier.              (See Explanatory Note 4) (Resolution 7)

7. Authority to grant options and to allot and issue shares under the Soilbuild Construction Employee Share  
 Option Scheme

That authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to: 

(a) offer and grant options in accordance with the provisions of the Soilbuild Construction Employee Share Option 
Scheme (the “Scheme”); and 

(b) allot and issue from time to time such number of fully-paid ordinary shares of the Company as may be required 
to be issued pursuant to the exercise of options granted or to be granted under the Scheme, 

provided always that the aggregate number of (i) new ordinary shares allotted and issued and/or to be allotted and 
issued, and (ii) existing ordinary shares (including shares held in treasury) delivered and/or to be delivered, pursuant 
to the Scheme and the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan shall not exceed 15% of the total number of 
issued shares (excluding treasury shares) of the Company from time to time, as determined in accordance with the 
provisions of the Scheme.                   (See Explanatory Note 5) (Resolution 8)

8. Authority to grant awards and to allot and issue shares under the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan

That authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to:

(a) grant awards in accordance with the provisions of the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan (the “PSP”);  
 and 
(b) allot and issue from time to time such number of fully-paid ordinary shares of the Company as may be required 

to be issued pursuant to the vesting of awards granted under the PSP, 
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provided always that the aggregate number of (i) new ordinary shares allotted and issued and/or to be allotted and 
issued, and (ii) existing ordinary shares (including shares held in treasury) delivered and/or to be delivered, pursuant 
to the PSP and the Soilbuild Construction Employee Share Option Scheme, shall not exceed 15% of the total number 
of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) of the Company from time to time, as determined in accordance with the 
provisions of the PSP.                    (See Explanatory Note 6) (Resolution 9)

9. Proposed Renewal of the General Mandate for Interested Person Transactions

That:

(a) approval be and is hereby given for the purposes of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange 
Securities Trading Limited (“Chapter 9”), for the Company, its subsidiaries and associated companies that are 
considered to be “entities at risk” (as that term is used in Chapter 9), or any of them, to enter into any of the 
transactions falling within the types of Mandated Interested Person Transactions described in the Appendix to 
the Notice of Fourth Annual General Meeting (the “Appendix”) which is enclosed with the Company’s Annual 
Report 2016, with any party who is of the class of Mandated Interested Persons described in the Appendix, 
provided that such transactions are made on normal commercial terms, are not prejudicial to the interests of 
the Company and its minority shareholders, and are in accordance with the review procedures for Mandated 
Interested Person Transactions (the “IPT Mandate”) as set out in the Appendix;

(b) the IPT Mandate shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, continue in force until the 
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company; and

(c) the Directors of the Company and each of them be and are hereby authorised to complete and do all such acts 
and things (including, without limitation, executing all such documents as may be required) as they or he may 
consider expedient or necessary or in the interests of the Company to give effect to the IPT Mandate and/or this 
Resolution.                  (See Explanatory Note 7) (Resolution 10)

10. Proposed Grant of Award to a Controlling Shareholder under the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan

That:

the grant of a contingent award (the “2017 Award”) comprising up to 3,050,000 shares to Mr Lim Chap Huat (who is 
regarded as a controlling shareholder in relation to the Company) by the Remuneration Committee of the Company 
administering the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan, be and is hereby approved; and

the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to allot and issue shares, or transfer existing shares 
procured by the Company, upon the release of the 2017 Award.
(See Explanatory Note 8) (Resolution 11)

11. To transact any other ordinary business which may be properly transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Lee Bee Fong (Ms)

Company Secretary
Singapore, 7 April 2017
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Explanatory Notes:

1. The ordinary resolution proposed in item 3 above is to seek approval for the payment of Directors’ fees for the financial year ending 
31 December 2017.

 The amount of the Directors’ fees has been computed based on the current fees structure reported in the Corporate Governance 
Report section of the Company’s Annual Report 2016.

2. In relation to the ordinary resolution proposed in item 4(i) above, Mr Lim Chap Huat is an Executive Director and substantial 
shareholder of the Company. Apart from that, there is no relationship (including immediate family relationships) between Mr Lim 
Chap Huat and the other Directors and the Company or its 10% shareholder and detailed information on Mr Lim Chap Huat is set out 
in the section entitled “Board of Directors” and in the Corporate Governance Report section of the Company’s Annual Report 2016.

3. In relation to the ordinary resolution proposed in item 4(ii) above, there is no relationship (including immediate family relationships) 
between Mr Teo Chee Seng and the other Directors and the Company or its 10% shareholder and detailed information on Mr Teo 
Chee Seng is set out in the section entitled “Board of Directors” and in the Corporate Governance Report section of the Company’s 
Annual Report 2016.

4. The ordinary resolution proposed in item 6 above is to authorise the Directors of the Company from the date of the Meeting until 
the next Annual General Meeting to issue shares and to make or grant instruments (such as warrants or debentures) convertible 
into shares, and to issue shares in pursuance of such instruments, up to an amount not exceeding in aggregate 50% of the total 
number of issued shares excluding treasury shares of the Company, of which the total number of shares (including shares to be 
issued in pursuance of instruments made or granted) issued other than on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders shall not exceed 
20% of the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares of the Company at the time the resolution is passed, for such 
purposes as they consider would be in the interests of the Company. Rule 806(3) of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange 
Securities Trading Limited currently provides that the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares of the Company 
for this purpose shall be the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares at the time this resolution is passed (after 
adjusting for new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of convertible securities or share options or vesting of share awards 
outstanding or subsisting at the time this resolution is passed and any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of the 
Company’s shares). This authority will, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, expire at the next Annual General Meeting of 
the Company.

5. The ordinary resolution proposed in item 7 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company to offer and grant options 
under the Soilbuild Construction Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) in accordance with and pursuant to the rules of 
the Scheme and to allot and issue from time to time such number of fully-paid shares as may be required to be allotted and issued 
pursuant to the exercise of such options under the Scheme, provided always that the aggregate number of (i) new ordinary shares 
allotted and issued and/or to be allotted and issued, and (ii) existing ordinary shares (including treasury shares) delivered and/or 
to be delivered, pursuant to options granted under the Scheme and awards granted under the Soilbuild Construction Performance 
Share Plan (the “PSP”) shall not exceed 15% of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) of the Company from 
time to time.

6. The ordinary resolution proposed in item 8 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company to grant awards under 
the PSP in accordance with and pursuant to the rules of the PSP and to allot and issue from time to time such number of fully-paid 
shares as may be required to be allotted and issued pursuant to the vesting of such awards under the PSP, provided always that the 
aggregate number of (i) new ordinary shares allotted and issued and/or to be allotted and issued, and (ii) existing ordinary shares 
(including treasury shares) delivered and/or to be delivered, pursuant to awards granted under the PSP and options granted under 
the Scheme shall not exceed 15% of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) of the Company from time to time.

7. The ordinary resolution proposed in item 9 above, if passed, will renew, effective until the conclusion of the next Annual General 
Meeting, the mandate (the “IPT Mandate”) to enable the Company, its subsidiaries and associated companies which are considered 
“entities at risk” to enter in the ordinary course of business into certain types of interested person transactions with specific classes 
of the Company’s interested persons. Particulars of the IPT Mandate are set out in the Appendix to this Notice of Fourth Annual 
General Meeting (the “Appendix”) which is enclosed with the Company’s Annual Report 2016.
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8. The ordinary resolution proposed in item 10 above, if passed, will empower the Remuneration Committee of the Company 
administering the PSP to grant a contingent award (the “2017 Award”) of up to 3,050,000 shares to Mr Lim Chap Huat under the PSP 
in accordance with and pursuant to the rules of the PSP and to allot and issue from time to time such number of fully-paid shares as 
may be required to be allotted and issued pursuant to the vesting of such awards under the PSP. Particulars of the 2017 Award are 
set out in the Appendix which is enclosed with the Company’s Annual Report 2016.

Notes:

1. (a)   A member who is not a relevant intermediary is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend, speak  
 and vote at the Meeting. Where such member’s form of proxy appoints more than one proxy, the proportion of  
 the shareholding concerned to be represented by each proxy shall be specified in the form of proxy.

(b) A member who is a relevant intermediary is entitled to appoint more than two proxies to attend, speak and vote at the 
Meeting, but each proxy must be appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by such member. 
Where such member’s form of proxy appoints more than two proxies, the number and class of shares in relation to which each 
proxy has been appointed shall be specified in the form of proxy.

 
“Relevant intermediary” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 181 of the Companies Act.

2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. If the appointor is a corporation, the proxy must be executed under seal or the hand of its duly authorised officer or attorney.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the office of the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Barbinder Share 
Registration Services at 80 Robinson Road, #11-02 Singapore 068898 not less than 72 hours before the time appointed for the 
Meeting.

Personal data privacy:

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting and/
or any adjournment thereof, a member of the Company (a) consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the member’s personal data 
by the Company (or its agents or service providers) for the purpose of the processing, administration and analysis by the Company (or its 
agents or service providers) of proxies and representatives appointed for the Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof) 
and the preparation and compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating to the Annual General Meeting (including 
any adjournment thereof), and in order for the Company (or its agents or service providers) to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules, 
take-over rules, regulations and/or guidelines (collectively, the “Purposes”), (b) warrants that where the member discloses the personal data 
of the member’s proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to the Company (or its agents or service providers), the member has obtained the prior 
consent of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its agents or service providers) 
of the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the Purposes, and (c) agrees that the member will indemnify the Company 
in respect of any penalties, liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages as a result of the member’s breach of warranty.
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NOTICE OF BOOKS CLOSURE AND
DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATES
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Share Transfer Books and the Register of Members of the Company will be closed at  
5.00 p.m. on 3 May 2017, for the purpose of determining members’ entitlements to the final (tax exempt one-tier) dividend 
of 0.50 cents per share and the special (tax exempt one-tier) dividend of 0.75 cents per share for the financial year ended 
31 December 2016 (the “Proposed Dividends”).

Duly completed registrable transfers in respect of ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”) received by the Company’s 
Registrar, Tricor Barbinder Share Registration Services (a division of Tricor Singapore Pte. Ltd.) of 80 Robinson Road #02-
00 Singapore 068898, up to 5.00 p.m. on 3 May 2017 (the “Book Closure Date”) will be registered to determine members’ 
entitlements to the Proposed Dividends. The Proposed Dividends, if approved at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 
24 April 2017, will be paid on 23 May 2017.

Members whose Securities Accounts with The Central Depository (Pte) Limited are credited with Shares at 5.00 p.m. on the 
Book Closure Date will be entitled to the Proposed Dividends.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Lee Bee Fong (Ms)

Company Secretary
Singapore, 7 April 2017



SOILBUILD CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD.
(Company Registration No. 201301440Z)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

PROXY FORM

*I/We 

*NRIC/Passport/Co. Reg No  of  

being *a member/members of SOILBUILD CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. (the “Company”), hereby appoint

Name Address
NRIC/

Passport No
Proportion of shareholdings to 

be represented by proxy (%)

*and/or, failing him/her

Name Address
NRIC/

Passport No
Proportion of shareholdings to 

be represented by proxy (%)

or failing *him/her/them, the Chairman of the meeting as *my/our *proxy/proxies to attend, speak and vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf 
at the Fourth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 25 Changi South Street 1, Singapore 486059 on Monday, 24 April 2017 
at 9.30 am and at any adjournment thereof.

*I/We direct *my/our proxy/proxies to vote for or against the resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting as indicated with 
an “X” in the spaces provided hereunder. If no specific directions as to voting are given, the *proxy /proxies will vote or abstain from voting 
at *his/her/their discretion, as *he/she/they will on any other matter arising at the Annual General Meeting.

NOTE: Each resolution at the Annual General Meeting will be voted on by way of a poll.

No ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS For Against
Ordinary Business

1. To receive and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 
2016 and the Directors’ Statement and Independent Auditor’s Report thereon. 

2. To declare a final (tax exempt one-tier) dividend of 0.50 cents per share and a special (tax exempt 
one-tier) dividend of 0.75 cents per share for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

3. To approve the Directors’ fees for the financial year ending 31 December 2017.
4. To re-elect Mr Lim Chap Huat retiring by rotation pursuant to Article 94 of the Company’s Constitution.
5. To re-elect Mr Teo Chee Seng retiring pursuant to Article 94 of the Company’s Constitution.
6. To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditor of the Company and to authorise the Directors 

to fix their remuneration.
Special Business

7. To authorise Directors to issue shares pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of 
Singapore and the Listing Manual (“Listing Manual”) of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading 
Limited (“SGX-ST”).

8. To authorise Directors to offer and grant options and to allot and issue shares pursuant to the 
Soilbuild Construction Employee Share Option Scheme.

9. To authorise Directors to grant awards and to allot and issue shares pursuant to the Soilbuild 
Construction Performance Share Plan.

10. To authorise the Company, its subsidiaries and associated companies to enter into transactions with 
interested persons as defined in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.

11. To approve the proposed grant of award to a controlling shareholder under the Soilbuild Construction 
Performance Share Plan.

Dated this ________day of _______________ 2017

Signature(s) of Member(s)/Common Seal of Corporate Shareholder
* Delete accordingly

IMPORTANT: Please read notes overleaf

IMPORTANT
1. Relevant intermediaries as defined in Section 181 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore may 

appoint more than two proxies to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting.
2. This proxy form is not valid for use and shall be ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or 

purported to be used by CPF/SRS investors who hold shares through their CPF/SRS funds. CPF/SRS 
investors should contact their respective Agent Banks/SRS Operators if they have any queries regarding 
their appointment as proxies.

3. By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s), the member accepts and 
agrees to the personal data privacy terms set out in the Notice of Fourth Annual General Meeting dated 
7 April 2017.

Total Number of Shares 
Held



Notes:

1. If the member has shares entered against his name in the Depository Register (maintained by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited), he should insert that number of shares. If the 
member has shares registered in his name in the Register of Members (maintained by or on behalf of the Company), he should insert that number of shares. If the member has 
shares entered against his name in the Depository Register and shares registered in his name in the Register of Members, he should insert the aggregate number of shares. If no 
number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to relate to all the shares held by the member.

2. (a)  A member who is not a relevant intermediary is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend, speak and vote at the meeting. Where such member’s form of proxy   
 appoints more than one proxy, the proportion of the shareholding concerned to be represented by each proxy shall be specified in the form of proxy. 

 (b)  A member who is a relevant intermediary is entitled to appoint more than two proxies to attend, speak and vote at the meeting, but each proxy must be appointed to exercise  
 the rights attached to a different share or shares held by such member. Where such member’s form of proxy appoints more than two proxies, the number and class of shares  
 in relation to which each proxy has been appointed shall be specified in the form of proxy.

 “Relevant intermediary” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 181 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore.

3. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Barbinder Share Registration Services at 80 Robinson Road, #11-02 
Singapore 068898 not less than 72 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.

5. Completion and return of this instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall not preclude a member from attending, speaking and voting at the meeting. Any appointment of a proxy 
or proxies shall be deemed to be revoked if a member attends the meeting in person, and in such event, the Company reserves the right to refuse to admit any person or persons 
appointed under the instrument of proxy, to the meeting.

6. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or 
proxies is executed by a corporation, it must be executed either under its common seal or under the hand of its attorney or a duly authorised officer.

7. Where an instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney, the letter or power of attorney or a duly certified copy thereof must (failing 
previous registration with the Company) be lodged with the instrument of proxy, failing which the instrument may be treated as invalid.

8. The Company shall be entitled to reject an instrument appointing a proxy or proxies which is incomplete, improperly completed, illegible or where the true intentions of the 
appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified in the instrument (including any related attachment). In addition, in the case of a member whose 
shares are entered in the Depository Register, the Company may reject an instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if the member, being the appointor, is not shown to have 
shares entered against his name in the Depository Register as at 72 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting, as certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited 
to the Company.

The Company Secretary 
SOILBUILD CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. 

c/o Tricor Barbinder Share Registration Services 
80 Robinson Road #11-02

Singapore 068898

AFFIX 
STAMP



If you are in any doubt as to the contents herein or as to the course of action that you should take, you should 
consult your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other professional adviser immediately.

The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited assumes no responsibility for the correctness of any of the 
statements made, reports contained or opinions expressed in this Appendix.

APPENDIX TO THE
NOTICE OF FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

DATED 7 APRIL 2017
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DEFINITIONS

In this Appendix, the following definitions apply throughout unless otherwise stated:

“AGM” : The Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 24 April 2017

“Associate” : An associate as defined under the Listing Manual

“Audit Committee” : The Audit Committee of the Company, comprising Mr Poon Hon Thang, 
Mr Tan Jee Ming and Mr Teo Chee Seng

“Auditor” : The auditor of the Company for the time being

“Award” : A contingent award of Shares granted under the Soilbuild Construction 
Performance Share Plan

“Award Date” : In relation to an Award, the date on which the Award is granted under the 
Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan

“Board” : The board of directors of the Company

“CDP” : The Central Depository (Pte) Limited

“Committee” : The Remuneration Committee of the Company

“Companies Act” : The Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore

“Company” : Soilbuild Construction Group Ltd.

“Control” : The capacity to dominate decision-making, directly or indirectly, in 
relation to the financial and operating policies of a company

“Controlling Shareholder” : A person who holds directly or indirectly 15% or more of the total number 
of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares) in the Company (unless 
otherwise determined by the SGX-ST that a person who satisfies this sub-
paragraph is not a Controlling Shareholder), or in fact exercises Control 
over the Company 

“Director” : A director of the Company for the time being

“FY” : Financial year ended or, as the case may be, ending 31 December

“Group” : The Company and its subsidiaries
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“Group Executive” : Any employee of the Group and the Company’s associated companies 
over which the Company has Control (including any Group Executive 
Director who meets the relevant criteria and who shall be regarded 
as a Group Executive for the purposes of the Soilbuild Construction 
Performance Share Plan) selected by the Committee to participate in the 
Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan in accordance with the 
provisions thereof

“Group Executive Director” : A director of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any of its 
associated companies over which the Company has Control, as the case 
may be, who performs an executive function

“Latest Practicable Date” : 24 March 2017, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of 
this Appendix

“Listing Manual” : The listing manual of the SGX-ST

“Market Day” : A day on which the SGX-ST is open for trading in securities

“Market Value” : In relation to a Share, on any day:

(a) the volume-weighted average price of a Share on the SGX-ST over
 the five (5) immediately preceding Market Days; or

(b) if the Committee is of the opinion that the Market Value as 
determined in accordance with (a) above is not representative of 
the value of a Share, such price as the Committee may determine, 
such determination to be confirmed in writing by the Auditor (acting 
only as experts and not as arbitrators) to be in their opinion, fair 
and  reasonable

“Non-executive Director” : A director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries, other than one who 
performs an executive function

“Participant” : A Group Executive or a Non-executive Director who has been granted an 
Award

“Securities Account” : Securities account maintained by a Depositor with CDP, but does not 
include a securities sub-account maintained with a Depository Agent

“SFA” : Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore

“SGX-ST” : Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

DEFINITIONS
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“Shareholders” : Registered holders of Shares in the Register of Members of the Company 
except that where the registered holder is CDP, the term “Shareholders” 
shall, in relation to such Shares and where the context admits, mean 
the Depositors who have Shares entered against their names in the 
Depository Register maintained by CDP. Any reference to Shares held 
by or shareholdings of Shareholders shall include Shares standing to the 
credit of their respective Securities Accounts

“Shares” : Ordinary shares of the Company

“Soilbuild Construction Performance 
Share Plan”

: The Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan adopted by the 
Company at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 
9 May 2013, as the same may be modified or altered from time to time

“S$” : Singapore dollars 

“%” : Percentage or per centum

The terms “Depositor”, “Depository Agent” and “Depository Register” shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the 
SFA.

Words importing the singular shall, where applicable, include the plural and vice versa. Words importing the masculine 
gender shall, where applicable, include the feminine and neuter genders. References to persons shall include corporations.

The headings in this Appendix are inserted for convenience only and shall be ignored in construing this Appendix.

Any reference in this Appendix to any enactment is a reference to that enactment as for the time being amended or re-
enacted. Any word defined under the Companies Act, or any statutory modification thereof and not otherwise defined in 
this Appendix shall have the same meaning assigned to it under the Companies Act or any statutory modification thereof, 
as the case may be.

Any reference to a time of day in this Appendix is made by reference to Singapore time unless otherwise stated.

Any discrepancies in figures included in this Appendix between the amounts listed and the totals thereof are due to 
rounding.

DEFINITIONS
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1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Company refers to Resolutions 10 and 11 of the Notice of Fourth Annual General Meeting of the Company (“AGM”). 
Resolutions 10 and 11 are ordinary resolutions to be proposed at the AGM for (i) the renewal of the Company’s 
general mandate for interested person transactions (the “IPT Mandate”) and (ii) the approval of a contingent award 
of shares (“Award”) to a Controlling Shareholder, respectively.

1.2 The purpose of this Appendix is to provide Shareholders with information relating to Resolutions 10 and 11.

2. PROPOSED RENEWAL OF THE GENERAL MANDATE FOR INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

2.1 Background

At the third annual general meeting of the Company held on 26 April 2016 (the “2016 AGM”), Shareholders had 
approved the renewal of the IPT Mandate for the purposes of the Listing Manual. The terms of the IPT Mandate were 
set out in the Appendix to the Notice of Third Annual General Meeting dated 4 April 2016. 

The IPT Mandate enables the Company, its subsidiaries and associated companies that are considered to be “entities 
at risk” within the meaning of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual (the “SBC Group”), to enter in the ordinary course of 
business into any of the mandated transactions with specified classes of the Company’s interested persons, provided 
that such transactions are made on normal commercial terms and are not prejudicial to the interests of the Company 
and its minority Shareholders. Mr Lim Chap Huat is considered a Controlling Shareholder, and Mr Lim Chap Huat 
and his Associates, including Soilbuild Group Holdings Ltd. (“Soilbuild Group Holdings”), as well as the rest of the 
Directors and their Associates, are regarded as “interested persons” of the Company for the purposes of Chapter 9 of 
the Listing Manual.

2.2 Annual Renewal of the IPT Mandate 

The IPT Mandate renewed at the 2016 AGM was expressed to be effective until the conclusion of the forthcoming 
AGM. Hence, the IPT Mandate will continue in force only until the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM, which is to be 
held on 24 April 2017. Accordingly, it is proposed that the IPT Mandate be renewed at the forthcoming AGM, to take 
effect until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company.

2.3 Particulars of the IPT Mandate to be Renewed

The nature of the interested person transactions and the classes of interested persons in respect of which the IPT 
Mandate is sought to be renewed remain unchanged. Particulars of the IPT Mandate, including the rationale for 
the IPT Mandate, the benefits to be derived by the SBC Group, as well as the review procedures for determining 
transaction prices with the specified classes of interested persons, are set out in paragraph 2.6 of this Appendix.

2.4 Audit Committee’s Confirmation 

Pursuant to Rule 920(1)(c) of the Listing Manual, the Audit Committee confirms that: 

(a) the methods or procedures for determining the transaction prices have not changed since the 2016 AGM; and 

(b) the methods and procedures referred to in sub-paragraph (a) above are sufficient to ensure that the Mandated 
Transactions (as defined below) carried out thereunder will be on normal commercial terms, and will not be 
prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its minority Shareholders.

APPENDIX TO THE NOTICE OF FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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2.5 Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual

2.5.1 Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual governs transactions between a listed company, as well as transactions by its 
subsidiaries and associated companies that are considered to be “at risk”, with the listed company’s interested 
persons.

2.5.2 Except for any transaction which is below S$100,000 in value and certain transactions which, by reason of the 
nature of such transactions, are not considered to put the listed company at risk to its interested person and 
hence are excluded from the ambit of Chapter 9, when this Chapter applies to a transaction with an interested 
person and the value of the transaction alone or in aggregation with other transactions conducted with the same 
interested person during the financial year reaches or exceeds certain materiality thresholds (which are based 
on the listed company’s latest audited consolidated net tangible assets (“NTA”)), the listed company is required 
to make an immediate announcement, or to make an immediate announcement and seek its shareholders’ 
approval for the transaction. In particular, shareholders’ approval is required for an interested person transaction 
of a value equal to, or exceeding:

(a) 5% of the listed company’s latest audited consolidated NTA; or

(b) 5% of the listed company’s latest audited consolidated NTA, when aggregated with the values of all other 
transactions entered into with the same interested person (as such term is construed under Chapter 9 of 
the Listing Manual) during the same financial year.

Based on the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 
2016, the consolidated NTA of the Company was S$98.1 million. Accordingly, in relation to the Company, for the 
purposes of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual, in the current financial year and until the audited consolidated 
financial statements of the Company for the financial year ending 31 December 2017 are published, 5% of the 
Company’s latest audited consolidated NTA would be S$4.9 million.

2.5.3 Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual, however, allows the Company to seek a mandate from its Shareholders for 
recurrent interested person transactions which are of a revenue or trading nature or for those necessary for 
the SBC Group’s day-to-day operations. These transactions may not include the purchase or sale of assets, 
undertakings or businesses which are not part of the SBC Group’s day-to-day operations. 

2.5.4 For the purposes of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual:

(a) an “associate” in relation to an interested person who is a director, chief executive officer or controlling 
shareholder, includes an immediate family member (that is, the spouse, child, adopted child, step-child, 
sibling or parent) of such director, chief executive officer or controlling shareholder, the trustees of any 
trust of which the director/his immediate family, the chief executive officer/his immediate family or the 
controlling shareholder/his immediate family is a beneficiary, or in the case of a discretionary trust, is 
a discretionary object, and any company in which the director/his immediate family, the chief executive 
officer/his immediate family or the controlling shareholder/his immediate family has or have an aggregate 
interest (directly or indirectly) of 30% or more, and, where a controlling shareholder is a corporation, its 
subsidiary or holding company or fellow subsidiary or a company in which it and/or they have (directly or 
indirectly) an interest of 30% or more; 

(b) an “approved exchange” means a stock exchange that has rules which safeguard the interests of 
shareholders against interested person transactions according to similar principles as Chapter 9;

(c) an “associated company” means a company in which at least 20% but not more than 50% of its shares are 
held by the listed company or group;

APPENDIX TO THE NOTICE OF FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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(d) an “entity at risk” means:

(i) the listed company;

(ii) a subsidiary of the listed company that is not listed on the SGX-ST or an approved exchange; or

(iii) an associated company of the listed company that is not listed on the SGX-ST or an approved 
exchange, provided that the listed company and/or its subsidiaries (the “listed group”), or the listed 
group and its interested person(s), has control over the associated company;

(e) an “interested person” means a director, chief executive officer or controlling shareholder of the listed 
company or an associate of such director, chief executive officer or controlling shareholder;

(f) an “interested person transaction” means a transaction between an entity at risk and an interested 
person;

(g) a “transaction” includes the provision or receipt of financial assistance; the acquisition, disposal or leasing 
of assets; the provision or receipt of services; the issuance or subscription of securities; the granting of 
or being granted options; and the establishment of joint ventures or joint investments, whether or not 
entered into in the ordinary course of business, and whether entered into directly or indirectly; and

(h) in interpreting the term “same interested person” for the purpose of aggregation of the values of all 
transactions entered into with the same interested person during the same financial year under Rules 905 
and 906 of the Listing Manual, the following applies:

(i) transactions between an entity at risk and interested persons who are members of the same group 
are deemed to be transactions between the entity at risk with the same interested person; and

(ii) if an interested person (which is a member of a group) is listed, its transactions with the entity at risk 
need not be aggregated with transactions between the entity at risk and other interested persons 
of the same group, provided that the listed interested person and other listed interested persons 
have boards the majority of whose directors are different and are not accustomed to act on the 
instructions of the other interested persons and their associates and have audit committees whose 
members are completely different.

2.6 Renewal of the IPT Mandate

2.6.1 Introduction. The Company anticipates that the SBC Group would, in the ordinary course of business, continue 
to enter into certain transactions with its interested persons (as such term is defined in the Listing Manual), 
including but not limited to those categories of transactions described below. In view of the time-sensitive 
and recurrent nature of commercial transactions, it would be advantageous for the Company to obtain an IPT 
Mandate to enter into certain interested person transactions in the normal course of business, provided that 
all such transactions are carried out on normal commercial terms and are not prejudicial to the interests of 
the Company and its minority Shareholders. As the SBC Group is principally engaged in general construction 
services, such services would fall under the scope of recurrent transactions of a revenue nature, thereby allowing 
the Company to obtain an IPT Mandate pursuant to Rule 920(1) of the Listing Manual. 

Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual allows a listed company to obtain a mandate from its shareholders for recurrent 
interested person transactions which are of a revenue or trading nature or for those necessary for its day-to-
day operations. These transactions may not include the purchase or sale of assets, undertakings or businesses 
which are not part of its day-to-day operations.

APPENDIX TO THE NOTICE OF FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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The IPT Mandate will take effect from the passing of Resolution 10 relating thereto, and will continue in force 
until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company (unless sooner revoked or varied by the 
Company in general meeting). Approval from Shareholders will be sought for the renewal of the IPT Mandate 
at the next annual general meeting and each subsequent annual general meeting of the Company, subject to 
satisfactory review by the Audit Committee of its continued application to the Mandated Transactions.

2.6.2 Rationale for and Benefits of the IPT Mandate. The SBC Group will benefit from transacting with Mandated 
Interested Persons (as defined below), in addition to non-Mandated Interested Persons, in an expeditious 
manner. The IPT Mandate and its subsequent renewal on an annual basis would eliminate the need to convene 
separate general meetings from time to time to seek Shareholders’ approval as and when potential interested 
person transactions with a specific class of Mandated Interested Persons arise, thereby reducing substantially 
administrative time and expenses in convening such meetings, without compromising the corporate objectives 
and adversely affecting the business opportunities available to the SBC Group.  

The IPT Mandate is intended to facilitate transactions in the normal course of the SBC Group’s business which 
are transacted from time to time with the specified classes of Mandated Interested Persons, provided that they 
are carried out in accordance with the procedures outlined in this Appendix and on normal commercial terms 
and are not prejudicial to the Company and its minority Shareholders.

In accordance with the requirements of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual, the Company will: (a) disclose in the 
Company’s annual report the aggregate value of transactions conducted with Mandated Interested Persons 
pursuant to the IPT Mandate during the financial year (as well as in the annual reports for subsequent financial 
years that the IPT Mandate continues to be in force); and (b) announce the aggregate value of transactions 
conducted with Mandated Interested Persons pursuant to the IPT Mandate for the financial periods that it is 
required to report on pursuant to Rule 705 of the Listing Manual (which relates to quarterly reporting by listed 
companies) within the time required for the announcement of such report. 

2.6.3 Entities at Risk. For the purposes of the IPT Mandate, an “Entity At Risk” means:

(a) the Company;

(b) a subsidiary of the Company that is not listed on the SGX-ST or an approved exchange; or

(c) an associated company of the Company that is not listed on the SGX-ST or an approved exchange, provided 
that the Group and its interested person(s) have control over the associated company.

2.6.4 Classes of Mandated Interested Persons. The IPT Mandate will apply to the transactions that are carried 
out with Soilbuild Group Holdings, the Company’s Directors and their respective Associates (the “Mandated 
Interested Persons”).

2.6.5 Categories of Mandated Interested Person Transactions. The types of transactions to which the IPT Mandate 
will apply (the “Mandated Transactions”), and the benefits to be derived therefrom, are set out below:

(a) Construction Transactions

This category of transactions pertains to the construction business of the SBC Group (“Construction 
Transactions”). The transactions within this category comprise:

APPENDIX TO THE NOTICE OF FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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(i)  the tender by the SBC Group for (whether by way of public tender, invitation or otherwise) and/or 
obtaining by the SBC Group of the award of contracts from the Mandated Interested Persons as main 
contractors, subcontractors, suppliers and/or consultants for construction, building, engineering, 
architectural, retro-fitting and/or alteration and addition works for residential, commercial, industrial, 
institutional, recreational, infrastructural and other projects, turnkey projects and design and build 
projects (“Construction Services”);

(ii) the provision of renovation services (such as fitting-out, upgrading and tenancy works) (“Renovation 
Services”) by the SBC Group to the Mandated Interested Persons; 

(iii) the provision and/or obtaining of property-linked services (such as project management, property 
marketing, property and rental valuation services, building maintenance services and security 
services) (“Property-linked Services”) by the SBC Group to and/or from the Mandated Interested 
Persons; and

(iv) the provision and/or obtaining of such other products and services which are incidental to or in 
connection with the provision or obtaining of products and services in sub-paragraphs (i) to (iii) above, 
by the SBC Group to and/or from the Mandated Interested Persons. 

(b) General Transactions

This category of transactions pertains to the general business transactions for services and products 
arising in the day-to-day operations of various companies in the SBC Group (“General Transactions”). The 
transactions within this category comprise:

(i) the leasing and/or rental of properties, other than as envisaged in any lease agreement in force 
between the SBC Group and the Mandated Interested Persons; and

(ii) the provision or obtaining of such other products and services which are incidental to or in connection 
with the provision or obtaining of products and services in sub-paragraph (i) above. 

2.6.6 Review Procedures for Mandated Transactions with Mandated Interested Persons. The SBC Group has an 
internal control system in place to ensure that Mandated Transactions with the Mandated Interested Persons 
are made on normal commercial terms and consistent with the SBC Group’s usual policies and practices.

(a) The internal control system includes the following procedures:

Provision of Construction Services, Renovation Services and Property-linked Services

In relation to the provision of Construction Services, Renovation Services or Property-linked Services, the 
payments made by the Mandated Interested Person will be based on the higher tender price determined 
by the following approaches:

(i) Comparable third party contracts approach: At least two recent contracts, for the same or substantially 
the same nature of Construction Services, Renovation Services or Property-linked Services, entered 
into by the SBC Group with third parties will be used as a basis of comparing and determining the 
tender price and commercial terms (including the credit terms) to be offered to the Mandated 
Interested Person, after taking into account, inter alia, if applicable, factors such as but not limited 
to, the complexity of the services rendered, the Mandated Interested Person’s project specifications, 
the delivery schedule, the sufficiency and availability of resources, creditworthiness of the Mandated 
Interested Person, engineering and technical expertise requirements, soil conditions, and prevailing 
estimated project costs determined by quantity surveyor(s). The SBC Group will compare and 
determine the tender price in the following manner:
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(1) as the main drivers affecting construction costs are floor area and installations required, the 
contracts of a similar nature will be analysed on a cost per square feet or cost per installation 
basis. After analysing the costs in specific detail, the SBC Group will then derive a meaningful 
contract sum for the Mandated Interested Person. For example, in the construction of flatted 
factories, it is envisaged that the core materials and services required, as well as the construction 
method, will generally be similar; hence, the detailed costing methodology will also be similar;

(2) for all projects, the SBC Group will perform the internal costing and budgetary evaluations 
according to the design and specifications in the technical drawings. This process includes, inter 
alia, quantification and costing of materials, equipment, labour and services requirements, and 
where necessary, obtaining quotations from external suppliers and/or service providers to 
justify the costing; and

(3) adjustments to the contract sum will be made based on the assessment by the SBC Group to 
account for differences between the comparable third party contracts and the transaction with 
the Mandated Interested Person, as described above.

(ii) Appropriate gross profit margins approach: Where it is impractical or impossible to compare against 
recent contracts entered into by the SBC Group with third parties, the tender price will be determined 
based on internal costing and budgetary evaluations of the arm’s length project costs determined 
by a project director and quantity surveyor(s) marked up with an appropriate gross profit margin 
which will not be more favourable to the Mandated Interested Person than those extended to third 
parties, in line with the SBC Group’s usual business and pricing policies (including the SBC Group’s 
gross profit margin policies for contracting with third parties). For instance, it is impractical to adopt 
the comparable third party contracts approach when there are projects of a unique nature to be 
awarded by the Mandated Interested Person. In such situations, the SBC Group may not have 
executed projects of a similar nature with third parties. For example, the SBC Group has not been 
involved in the construction of major infrastructure projects and there are no meaningful comparable 
third party contracts available. In such instances, the SBC Group will have to rely on the appropriate 
gross margins approach which utilises a bottom up methodology to derive a reasonable tender price 
based on costing and budgetary fundamental factors and marked up with an acceptable gross profit 
margin. 

In determining the appropriate gross profit margin, the SBC Group will take into account, inter 
alia, if applicable, factors such as but not limited to, the complexity of the services rendered, the 
Mandated Interested Person’s specifications, the delivery schedule, the sufficiency and availability of 
resources, creditworthiness of the Mandated Interested Person, engineering and technical expertise 
requirements, and soil conditions. In addition, the Audit Committee or such other senior executive(s) 
of the Company designated by the Audit Committee from time to time for such purpose will check that 
the appropriate gross profit margin is in line with those reported by certain construction companies 
deemed relevant for the purposes of comparison based on the nature of business, business segments 
and geographical segments of such companies. 
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Others

Except for the provision of Construction Services, Renovation Services or Property-linked Services, in 
relation to Construction Transactions and General Transactions, any transaction proposed to be carried 
out with a Mandated Interested Person for the obtaining or provision of the services or products described 
above shall be made at the prevailing rates/prices of the service or product provider which (in relation 
to services or products to be provided to a Mandated Interested Person) are no more favourable to the 
Mandated Interested Person than those extended to third parties, or (in relation to services or products 
to be obtained from a Mandated Interested Person) are no less favourable than those extended by the 
Mandated Interested Person to third parties, and on the service or product provider’s usual commercial 
terms or otherwise in accordance (where applicable) with industry norms. 

For the above purposes, market rates will be reviewed where applicable. As a basis for comparison to 
determine whether the price and terms offered to the Mandated Interested Person are no more favourable 
than those extended to third parties, at least two recent contracts for the same or substantially the same 
types of transactions entered into by the SBC Group with third parties will be used. As a basis for comparison 
to determine whether the terms offered by the Mandated Interested Person are fair and reasonable (taking 
into account, where relevant, factors such as pricing, delivery schedule, rebates or discounts accorded for 
bulk purchases), quotes will be obtained wherever possible from at least two third party suppliers, for the 
same or substantially similar quantities and quality of products and/or services. Where it is impractical or 
not possible for such contracts or (as the case may be) quotes to be obtained:

(i) in relation to the sale of goods or services to the Mandated Interested Person, the terms of supply will 
be determined in accordance with the SBC Group’s usual business practice and consistent with the 
margins obtained by the SBC Group in its business operations; and 

(ii) in relation to the purchase of goods or services from the Mandated Interested Person, the terms of 
supply will be compared to those for the same or substantially the same types of transactions entered 
into between the Mandated Interested Persons and third parties. The review procedures in such 
cases may include, where applicable, reviewing the standard price lists provided by the Mandated 
Interested Person to its customers for such services or products and be based on the commercial 
merits of the transaction. Where it is impractical or not possible to compare the terms of supply 
with those for the same or substantially the same types of transactions entered into between the 
Mandated Interested Persons and third parties, the Relevant Authorised Persons (as referred to in 
sub-paragraph (b) below) will determine whether the terms of supply are fair and reasonable. This 
would include taking into account, where known, among other matters as may be necessary, the 
nature and duration of the transaction, the cost and margins of the relevant project (if any) and the 
quality of the items or services to be purchased. 

(b) The following review and approval procedures will apply to the Mandated Transactions:

(i) Transactions equal to or exceeding S$100,000 each in value but below the Financial Limit (as defined 
below) each in value, will be reviewed and approved by either the Company’s Executive Chairman or 
the Company’s Executive Director, together with the Audit Committee or such other senior executive(s) 
of the Company designated by the Audit Committee from time to time for such purpose (collectively, 
the “Relevant Authorised Persons”), and tabled for review by the Audit Committee on a quarterly 
basis.

(ii) Transactions equal to or exceeding the Financial Limit each in value will be reviewed and approved by 
the Audit Committee.
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(iii) Any of the Relevant Authorised Persons, and the Audit Committee, may, as he/it deems fit, request 
for additional information pertaining to the transaction under review from independent sources or 
advisers, including requesting for an independent financial adviser’s opinion and/or the obtaining of 
valuations from independent professional valuers.

For the purposes of sub-paragraphs (i) and (ii) above, the Financial Limit shall be the amount equivalent to 
5% of the Group’s audited consolidated NTA for the time being, as determined by reference to the Group’s 
latest announced audited consolidated financial statements. 

(c) The following will apply to the review and approval process for all categories of Mandated Transactions:

(i) If any of the Relevant Authorised Persons has an interest in the transaction or is a nominee for the 
time being of the Mandated Interested Person, the review and approval process shall be undertaken 
by the remaining Relevant Authorised Persons who do not have an interest in the transaction or 
are not nominees for the time being of the Mandated Interested Person, save that if both of the 
Executive Chairman of the Company and the Executive Director of the Company have an interest in 
the transaction or are nominees for the time being of the Mandated Interested Person, the review 
and approval process shall be undertaken by the Audit Committee or such other senior executive(s) 
of the Company designated by the Audit Committee from time to time for such purpose. 

(ii) If all of the Relevant Authorised Persons have an interest in the transaction or are nominees for the 
time being of the Mandated Interested Person, the review and approval process shall be undertaken 
by the Chairman of the Audit Committee or another member of the Audit Committee (who is not a 
nominee of the Mandated Interested Person and has no interest in the transaction) designated by the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee from time to time for such purpose.

(iii) If a member of the Audit Committee has an interest in a transaction or is a nominee for the time being 
of the Mandated Interested Person, he shall abstain from participating in the review and approval 
process of the Audit Committee in relation to that transaction.

(iv) If a member of the Audit Committee (who is not a nominee of the Mandated Interested Person and 
has no interest in the transaction) also serves as an independent non-executive director on the board 
of directors or (as the case may be) an audit or other board committee of the Mandated Interested 
Person, and he participates in the review and approval process of the Audit Committee in relation to a 
transaction with that Mandated Interested Person, he will abstain from participating on any decision 
before the board or committee of that Mandated Interested Person with respect to such transaction.

(d) The Company will maintain a register of Mandated Transactions carried out with Mandated Interested 
Persons (recording the basis, including the quotations obtained to support such basis, on which they are 
entered into), and the Company’s annual internal audit plan will incorporate a review of all Mandated 
Transactions entered into in the relevant financial year pursuant to the IPT Mandate. 

The Audit Committee will review the internal audit reports on Mandated Transactions to ascertain that the 
internal control procedures and review procedures for Mandated Transactions have been complied with.

(e) If during any of the reviews by the Audit Committee, the Audit Committee is of the view that the internal 
control procedures and review procedures for Mandated Transactions have become inappropriate or 
insufficient in the event of changes to the nature of, or manner in which, the business activities of the SBC 
Group or the Mandated Interested Persons are conducted, the Company will revert to Shareholders for 
a fresh general mandate based on new internal control procedures and review procedures so that the 
Mandated Transactions will be carried out at arm’s length, on commercial terms and will not be prejudicial 
to the interests of the Company and its minority Shareholders. 
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3. PROPOSED GRANT OF AWARD TO A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER UNDER THE SOILBUILD CONSTRUCTION 
 PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN

3.1 On 2 March 2017, the Company announced the grant of an Award (“2017 Award”) to Mr Lim Chap Huat (the 
Executive Chairman and who is regarded as a Controlling Shareholder in relation to the Company) under the Soilbuild 
Construction Performance Share Plan (as defined in paragraph 3.2 below), subject to the approval by independent 
Shareholders for the grant of such Award to such Controlling Shareholder. 

3.2 Background  

The Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan, adopted by the Company at an extraordinary general meeting 
of the Company held on 9 May 2013 (the “Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan”), was implemented 
to increase the Company’s flexibility and effectiveness in its continuing efforts to reward, retain and motivate 
participants, being Group Executives or Non-executive Directors who have been granted Awards (“Participants”), to 
achieve increased performance and to further strengthen the Company’s competitiveness in attracting and retaining 
superior local and foreign talent. It allows the Company to target specific performance objectives and to provide an 
incentive for Participants to achieve these targets. It also provides the Company with a flexible approach to provide 
performance incentives to its Participants, including its staff, and, consequently, to improve performance and achieve 
sustainable growth for the Company in the changing business environment, and to foster a greater ownership culture 
amongst its Participants, including key management and senior executives. 

Under the Listing Manual and the rules of the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan, Controlling Shareholders 
of the Company or their Associates are eligible to participate in the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan 
if their participation and Awards are approved by independent Shareholders in separate resolutions for each such 
person and for each such Award. 

One of the objectives of the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan is to motivate Participants to achieve 
key financial and operational goals of the Company and/or their respective business units. The objectives of the 
Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan apply equally to employees who are Controlling Shareholders or their 
Associates because the Company believes that all deserving and eligible employees should be motivated, regardless 
of whether or not they are Controlling Shareholders or their Associates. The Company is therefore of the view that 
employees who are Controlling Shareholders or their Associates should be entitled to the same benefits as other 
employees and should not be excluded from benefiting under the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan by 
virtue of their level of shareholdings in the Company. The Company also believes that the application of the Soilbuild 
Construction Performance Share Plan would not unduly favour Controlling Shareholders or their Associates over 
other eligible employees. In respect of the determination of eligibility and grant of Awards, the terms of the Soilbuild 
Construction Performance Share Plan do not differentiate between employees who are Controlling Shareholders or 
their Associates and other employees who are not Controlling Shareholders or their Associates.  

In accordance with the Listing Manual and the rules of the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan, the 
participation of Mr Lim Chap Huat, who is a Controlling Shareholder and the Executive Chairman of the Company, 
has been approved by independent Shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 10 
October 2014.

3.3 Grant of Award to a Controlling Shareholder under the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan

The Company has granted the 2017 Award to Mr Lim Chap Huat, subject to the approval by independent Shareholders 
for the grant of such Award to Mr Lim Chap Huat, on the following terms:
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Aggregate number of Shares under the 2017 Award Release and Vesting of the 2017 Award(2)

Up to 3,050,000(1) 40%  in 2018(3), 30% in 2019(4) and 30% in 2020(5)

Notes:

(1) The aggregate number of Shares to be finally awarded to Mr Lim Chap Huat will be based on the achievement of certain predetermined 
performance targets as determined by the Committee administering the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan or otherwise in 
accordance with the rules of the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan. 

(2) The Shares which are the subject of the 2017 Award will be released to Mr Lim Chap Huat after the vesting period if certain predetermined 
performance targets as determined by the Committee administering the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan are achieved or 
otherwise in accordance with the rules of the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan. The Committee may determine to make a release 
of the 2017 Award, wholly or partly, in the form of cash rather than Shares which would otherwise have been released to Mr Lim Chap Huat on 
the relevant vesting date, in which event the Company shall pay to Mr Lim Chap Huat as soon as practicable after such vesting date, in lieu of all 
or part of such Shares, the aggregate Market Value of such Shares on such vesting date. 

(3) Within one month from the issuance of the Group’s audited financial statements for FY2017.

(4) Within one month from the issuance of the Group’s audited financial statements for FY2018. 

(5) Within one month from the issuance of the Group’s audited financial statements for FY2019. 

As is the case for other Participants, the aggregate number of Shares under the 2017 Award has been determined after 
taking into account, inter alia, Mr Lim Chap Huat’s rank, job performance, creativity, innovativeness, entrepreneurship, 
years of service and potential for future development, his contribution to the success and development of the Group 
and the extent of effort and resourcefulness required to achieve the performance targets within the performance 
period. 

The Shares which are the subject of the 2017 Award will be released to Mr Lim Chap Huat after the vesting period if 
certain predetermined performance targets as determined by the Committee are achieved or otherwise in accordance 
with the rules of the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan. 

Awards granted under the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan are principally performance-based with 
performance targets to be set over a performance period.  Performance targets set are intended to be based on 
medium-term corporate objectives covering market competitiveness, quality of returns, business growth and 
productivity growth.  Such performance targets will be set according to the specific roles of each Participant, and may 
differ from Participant to Participant. The performance targets are stretched targets aimed at sustaining long-term 
growth. These targets will be tied in with the Company’s corporate key performance indicators.

The performance targets for Mr Lim Chap Huat will be based on, inter alia, (a) the Group’s profit for FY2017; (b) 
the Group’s return on equity for FY2017; (c) the Group’s order books and new construction contracts secured in 
FY2017; and (d) various qualitative non-financial performance targets such as the expansion of the Group’s business 
in Myanmar as well as in the civil engineering sector in the local market and demonstration of leadership in securing 
and executing projects. 

As soon as reasonably practicable after the end of the relevant performance period, the Committee shall review the 
performance targets and determine at its discretion whether they have been satisfied and, if so, the extent to which 
they have been satisfied, and provided that Mr Lim Chap Huat has continued to be in the employment of the Group 
from the Award Date up to the end of the relevant performance period, shall release to Mr Lim Chap Huat all or part 
(as determined by the Committee at its discretion in the case where the Committee has determined that there has 
been partial satisfaction of the performance targets) of the Shares to which the 2017 Award relates in accordance with 
the release schedule specified in respect of the 2017 Award. 
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The Committee may determine to make a release of the 2017 Award, wholly or partly, in the form of cash rather than 
Shares which would otherwise have been released to Mr Lim Chap Huat on the relevant vesting date, in which event 
the Company shall pay to Mr Lim Chap Huat as soon as practicable after such vesting date, in lieu of all or part of such 
Shares, the aggregate Market Value of such Shares on such vesting date. 

In accordance with the Listing Manual and the rules of the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan, the grant of 
the 2017 Award to Mr Lim Chap Huat is subject to the approval of independent Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.

3.4 Rationale for the Grant of Award to Mr Lim Chap Huat under the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan 

Mr Lim Chap Huat is a co-founder of the Soilbuild Group Holdings group (including the Group) with over 40 years of 
experience in the construction and property development business. He is the Executive Chairman of the Company 
and was appointed to the Board on 14 January 2013. Mr Lim Chap Huat will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM 
and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election as a Director at the forthcoming AGM. Mr Lim Chap Huat charts the 
Group’s strategic direction, and business planning and development as well as succession planning. Leveraging on his 
extensive industry experience, he also oversees the Group’s operations and provides guidance in project management 
and tender submissions for the Group’s various projects.

The leadership provided by Mr Lim Chap Huat is critical to the Group’s future success. His experience and proven 
track record illustrates the value of his leadership and vision. For FY2016, the Group reported a profit before tax of 
S$11.9 million with an order book of S$385.7 million as at 31 December 2016. At the operating level, the Group’s 
gross profit in FY2016 amounted to S$22.3 million (as compared to S$30.6 million for FY2015) while the gross profit 
margin in FY2016 moderated to 5.6% in FY2016 as compared with 9.3% in FY2015 as a result of revenue recognised 
for projects that generated comparatively lower profit margins in FY2016 as well as an increase in project costs for 
certain projects.

The Group’s continued success is dependent on its ability to retain key management. Particularly, the loss of the 
services of Mr Lim Chap Huat without an adequate, suitable and timely replacement could have an adverse impact 
on the Group’s business, operations, financial performance and financial condition. Although Mr Lim Chap Huat has a 
controlling interest in the Company, the extension of the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan to him would 
ensure that he is equally entitled with the other employees who are not Controlling Shareholders or their Associates 
to take part in and benefit from this system of remuneration, thereby further enhancing his long term commitment to 
the Company, and allow the Company to reward and recognise his contributions to the Group. 

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr Lim Chap Huat holds a direct interest of 73.4% in the Company’s issued Shares 
(excluding treasury shares). Please see paragraph 4 below for more details. The 2017 Award would provide Mr Lim 
Chap Huat with an opportunity to strengthen his shareholding interest in the Company and thereby align his interests 
more closely with the interests of the Company. In this way, the Company believes that Mr Lim Chap Huat will be more 
encouraged and motivated to continue his efforts and contribution towards the Group’s long term objectives. 

Despite the substantial shareholding held by Mr Lim Chap Huat, the Company is of the view that the 2017 Award 
will motivate him to further create higher shareholders’ value in order to realise the benefits of the 2017 Award. 
Furthermore, as such Award may not be released until after the vesting period and the achievement of certain 
predetermined performance targets as determined by the Committee administering the Soilbuild Construction 
Performance Share Plan or otherwise in accordance with the rules of the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share 
Plan, the rewards to be reaped from the grant of the 2017 Award would not be immediate. The value of the 2017 
Award would be best realised only when the results and prospects of the Group’s long term performances and growth 
translate directly into higher share price and higher shareholders’ wealth. 
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In view of the above reasons, the Company has granted to Mr Lim Chap Huat the 2017 Award of up to 3,050,000 
Shares, subject to the approval by independent Shareholders for the grant of such Award to Mr Lim Chap Huat. The 
aggregate number of Shares to be finally awarded to Mr Lim Chap Huat will be based on the achievement of certain 
predetermined performance targets as determined by the Committee administering the Soilbuild Construction 
Performance Share Plan or otherwise in accordance with the rules of the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share 
Plan. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares) is 669,822,000. 
The total number of Shares which may be issued or transferred pursuant to Awards granted under the Soilbuild 
Construction Performance Share Plan, when aggregated with the aggregate number of Shares over which options 
or awards are granted under any other share option schemes or share schemes of the Company, shall not exceed 
15% of the total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares) from time to time, which limit is equivalent 
to 100,473,300 Shares as at the Latest Practicable Date. The maximum number of Shares under the 2017 Award in 
relation to Mr Lim Chap Huat represents approximately 0.46% of the total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury 
shares) and approximately 3.04% of the maximum number of Shares available under the Soilbuild Construction 
Performance Share Plan. As such, the Company believes that the 2017 Award in relation to Mr Lim Chap Huat is fair 
and not excessive. 

For FY2016, the remuneration to Mr Lim Chap Huat for his services to the Company was S$576,053. The remuneration 
included directors’ fees, fixed salary, variable/performance bonus, benefits in kind as well as long term incentives 
comprising Awards granted in FY2015 and FY2016 under the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan.

 
3.5 As at the Latest Practicable Date, Awards in respect of an aggregate of up to 25,610,000 Shares (other than the 2017 

Award granted to Mr Lim Chap Huat) have been granted under the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan.  

Participants

Aggregate number of 
Shares under Awards 

granted
Aggregate number of 

Shares lapsed

Aggregate number of 
Shares released upon 

vesting

Participants who are not Controlling 
Shareholders or their Associates

Up to 17,343,000 7,375,215 3,025,000

Participants who are Controlling 
Shareholders or their Associates

Up to 8,267,000 (other 
than the 2017 Award)

3,905,506 2,451,000

Total Up to 25,610,000 11,280,721 5,476,000

The aggregate number of Shares to be finally awarded to the Participants will be based on the achievement of certain 
predetermined performance targets as determined by the Committee administering the Soilbuild Construction 
Performance Share Plan or otherwise in accordance with the rules of the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan.

Under the rules of the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan, the aggregate number of Shares which may be 
issued or transferred pursuant to Awards to Participants who are Controlling Shareholders and their Associates shall 
not exceed 25% of the Shares available under the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan. Based on 669,822,000 
Shares in issue (excluding treasury shares) as at the Latest Practicable Date, Awards in respect of an aggregate of up to 
25,118,325 Shares may be granted to Participants who are Controlling Shareholders or their Associates.

Under the rules of Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan, the number of Shares which may be issued or 
transferred pursuant to Awards to each Participant who is a Controlling Shareholder or his Associate shall not exceed 
10% of the Shares available under the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan. Based on 669,822,000 Shares in 
issue (excluding treasury shares) as at the Latest Practicable Date, Awards in respect of up to 10,047,330 Shares may 
be granted to a Participant who is a Controlling Shareholder or his Associate. 
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Assuming that approval by independent Shareholders for the grant of the 2017 Award to Mr Lim Chap Huat is 
obtained at the AGM, the aggregate number of Shares under Awards granted to Mr Lim Chap Huat (including the 2017 
Award and after taking into account Shares that have lapsed) is up to 7,411,494 Shares. Accordingly, based on the 
669,822,000 Shares in issue (excluding treasury shares) as at the Latest Practicable Date, the grant of the 2017 Award 
to Mr Lim Chap Huat would be within the limits prescribed under the Listing Manual and the Soilbuild Construction 
Performance Share Plan.

The details of the Awards that have been granted under the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan to 
Participants who are Directors, Controlling Shareholders or their Associates (other than the 2017 Award granted to 
Mr Lim Chap Huat) are as follows:

Name Award Date

Aggregate number of 
Shares under Awards 

granted
Aggregate number of 

Shares lapsed

Aggregate number of 
Shares released upon 

vesting

Lim Chap Huat 22 August 2014 Up to 2,621,000(1) 263,288 1,650,356

31 March 2015 Up to 2,730,000(1) 726,218 800,644

18 March 2016 Up to 2,916,000(1) 2,916,000 -

Ho Toon Bah 22 August 2014 Up to 2,688,000(1) 341,760 1,642,120

31 March 2015 Up to 2,800,000(1) 929,455 746,880

18 March 2016 Up to 3,005,000(1) 3,005,000 -

2 March 2017 Up to 3,142,000(1) - The Award has not been 
released.

Note:

(1) The aggregate number of Shares to be finally awarded to the Participants will be based on the achievement of certain predetermined performance 
targets as determined by the Committee administering the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan or otherwise in accordance with the 

rules of the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan.

4. DIRECTORS’ AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

The interests of the Directors and substantial Shareholders of the Company in the issued share capital of the Company 
can be found on pages 47 and 116 of the Company’s Annual Report 2016.

5. ABSTENTION FROM VOTING 

Mr Lim Chap Huat, the Executive Chairman of the Company, is a director of Soilbuild Group Holdings. Ms Lim Cheng 
Hwa, a Non-Executive Director of the Company, is also a director of Soilbuild Group Holdings. As Soilbuild Group 
Holdings is an interested person in relation to the IPT Mandate, each of Mr Lim Chap Huat and Ms Lim Cheng Hwa has 
abstained from making any recommendation to Shareholders in relation to the proposed renewal of the IPT Mandate.

Mr Lim Chap Huat, Ms Lim Cheng Hwa, the Relevant Directors (as defined below), Soilbuild Group Holdings and their 
respective Associates, which or who are interested persons in relation to the renewal of the IPT Mandate, will also 
abstain from voting their Shares, if any, at the AGM in respect of Resolution 10 relating to the renewal of the IPT 
Mandate, and will also decline to accept appointment as proxy for any Shareholder to vote in respect of Resolution 10 
unless that Shareholder concerned shall have given specific instructions in his Proxy Form as to the manner in which 
his votes are to be cast in respect of Resolution 10.
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Mr Lim Chap Huat and his Associates will abstain from voting their Shares at the AGM in respect of Resolution 11 
relating to the grant of the 2017 Award to Mr Lim Chap Huat (“Grant of 2017 Award”), and will also decline to accept 
appointment as proxy for any Shareholder to vote in respect of Resolution 11 unless that Shareholder concerned 
shall have given specific instructions in his Proxy Form as to the manner in which his votes are to be cast in respect 
of Resolution 11.

Shareholders who are eligible to participate in the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan are also required 
to abstain from voting their Shares at the AGM in respect of Resolution 11 relating to the Grant of 2017 Award and 
shall not accept appointment as proxy for any Shareholder to vote in respect of Resolution 11 unless that Shareholder 
concerned shall have given specific instructions in his Proxy Form as to the manner in which his votes are to be cast 
in respect of Resolution 11.

6. DIRECTORS’ RECOMMENDATIONS

6.1 Proposed Renewal of the General Mandate for Interested Person Transactions

Notwithstanding that all the Directors are Mandated Interested Persons (as described in paragraph 2.6.4 above), it is 
anticipated that none of Mr Ho Toon Bah, Mr Poon Hon Thang, Mr Tan Jee Ming and Mr Teo Chee Seng (the “Relevant 
Directors”) (or their respective Associates) will enter into any Mandated Transactions (as described in paragraph 2.6.5 
above) with the SBC Group (as described in paragraph 2.1 above). Accordingly, the Relevant Directors are considered 
independent for the purposes of the proposed renewal of the IPT Mandate. Having considered the terms of the IPT 
Mandate, the Relevant Directors are of the opinion that the entry by the SBC Group into the Mandated Transactions  
with the Mandated Interested Persons in the ordinary course of business will enhance the efficiency of the SBC Group, 
and is in the interests of the Company. For the reasons set out in paragraphs 2.6.1, 2.6.2 and 2.6.5 above, they 
recommend that minority Shareholders vote in favour of Resolution 10 relating to the renewal of the IPT Mandate at 
the AGM.

6.2 Proposed Grant of Award to a Controlling Shareholder under the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan

Under the rules of the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan, all the Directors are eligible to participate 
in the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan. Accordingly, the Directors have refrained from making any 
recommendation as to how Shareholders should vote in respect of Resolution 11 relating to the Grant of 2017 Award 
at the AGM.

7. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given in this 
Appendix and confirm after making all reasonable enquiries that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, this 
Appendix constitutes full and true disclosure of all material facts about the proposed renewal of the IPT Mandate 
and the Grant of 2017 Award (the “Proposals”), and the Company and its subsidiaries which are relevant to the 
Proposals, and the Directors are not aware of any facts the omission of which would make any statement in this 
Appendix misleading. Where information in this Appendix has been extracted from published or otherwise publicly 
available sources or obtained from a named source, the sole responsibility of the Directors has been to ensure that 
such information has been accurately and correctly extracted from those sources and/or reproduced in this Appendix 
in its proper form and context.
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8. INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

The following documents may be inspected at the registered office of the Company during normal business hours 
from the date hereof up to and including the date of the AGM:

(a) the Constitution of the Company; and 

(b) the rules of the Soilbuild Construction Performance Share Plan.
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